
Mayor Jim Schwartz 
 

Council Member Scott Wolfersberger 
 

Council Member Joe Caron 
 

Council Member Jacob Gates 
 

Council Member Theresa Chaney-Huggett 
 

Council Member Ryan Underhill 
 

Council Member Ryan Traver 
 

City Manager Derek N. Perry 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
March 6, 2023 

Regular Meeting - 7:00 PM 
 

1) CALL TO ORDER  
2) ROLL CALL  
3) INVOCATION  
4) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
5) APPROVAL OF AGENDA - Items can be added or deleted from the Agenda by City Council 

action.  
6) PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS Persons addressing Council are required to give 

their name and address for the record when called upon by the Mayor. Members of the 
public shall be limited to speaking for a maximum of five (5) minutes on agenda items only. 

7) CONSENT AGENDA  
 A. City Council Minutes 

Work Session- February 21, 2023 
Regular Session - February 21, 2023 

 B. City Bills 
Purchases- 2/17/2023 $324,163.78 
Purchases- 2/24/2023 $1,725,119.34 
Purchases- 3/7/2023 $59,330.23 
TOTAL $2,108,613.35 

8) PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS  
9) INFORMATIONAL ITEMS  
10) PUBLIC HEARINGS & SUBSEQUENT COUNCIL ACTION  
11) OLD BUSINESS  
12) REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS  
 A. STEPS OF VALHALLA SPECIAL EVENT 
 B. ALBAN HEFIN - CELTIC FESTIVAL SPECIAL EVENT REQUEST 
 C. THE DARK MASQUERADE (MICHIGAN VAMPIRE BALL) AND CARNIVAL 

OF SHADOWS 

Page 1 of 174



 D. OAKLAWN COLOR CLASSIC 5K AND FUN RUN SPECIAL EVENT 
 E. OAKLAWN PET, BIKE, AND WAGON PARADE 
 F. RUEBEN RACE SPECIAL EVENT 
 G. INDUSTRIAL ROAD CONSTRUCTION UPDATE AND ENGINEERING 
 H. NORTHEAST NIA- GREEN DEVELOPMENT VENTURES DEVELOPMENT 

AGREEMENT 
 I. SENIOR MILLAGE GRANT REQUEST 
 J. MLB - SCOTTS FIELD REFURBISHMENT GRANT 
 K. SECOND QUARTER FY2023 FINANCIAL REPORT 
 L. SECOND QUARTER FY2023 INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO 
 M. SECOND QUARTER FY2023 CASH POSITION REPORT 
 N. SECOND QUARTER FY2023 BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
 O. WARNER VINEYARDS JOINT OFF-PREMISE TASTING ROOM 
 P. WARNER VINEYARDS SOCIAL DISTRICT REQUEST 
13) APPOINTMENTS / ELECTIONS  
14) PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS  

Persons addressing Council are required to give their name and address for the record 
when called upon by the Mayor. Members of the public shall be limited to speaking for a 
maximum of five (5) minutes on items not on the agenda. 

15) COUNCIL AND MANAGER COMMUNICATIONS  
16) ADJOURNMENT  

 

Page 2 of 174



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
February 21, 2023 

Regular Meeting - 7:00 PM 
 

1) CALL TO ORDER   
 IN A REGULAR SESSIONS held on Tuesday, February 21, 2023 at 7:00 PM in the 

Board of Commission Chambers of the Marshall County Building, 315 West Green St, 
Marshall, MI 49068, the Marshall City Council was called to order by Mayor Schwatrz. 

2) ROLL CALL   
 Roll was called: 

 
Present: Mayor Schwartz, Members Caron, Chaney-Huggett, Gates, Traver, Underhill, 
Wolfersberger 
 
Also Present: Manager Perry and Clerk Eubank 
 
Absent: None 

3) INVOCATION   
 

 

4) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 Mayor Schwartz led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
5) APPROVAL OF AGENDA - Items can be added or deleted from the Agenda by City Council 

action.   
 Moved Joe Caron, supported Scott Wolfersberger to approve the agenda as presented. On 

a voice vote: Motion carried. 
6) PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS - Persons addressing 

Council are required to give their name and address for the record when called upon by the 
Mayor. Members of the public shall be limited to speaking for a maximum of five (5) minutes 
on any agenda item.  

 Stephanie Fries of Dearborn and Ford Motor Company stated that Ford is excited to join 
the community with their planned $3.5 Billion investment in a fully Ford-owned facility. 
She stated that Ford has heard the concerns of the citizens of the area and that Ford is 
working towards addressing them, including 245 acres of a natural conservation area 
and working with the state to preserve the historic barns on the property. She further 
stated that they are working on finding a date for a community engagement session in 
the near future, but questions or concerns could be e-mailed prior. 
 
Josh Hunt of the MEDC stated that the purpose of the MEDC is to promote long-term 
growth in Michigan and that they hope to accomplish that with the new LFP battery plant 
that will be fully owned by Ford. They hope this will begin generational growth as well as 
bring millions of dollars into the community, all while being subject to strict state and 
federal regulations. 
 
Glen Kowalske of Marshall Township stated that the 245 acres that Ford is offering is 
unusable land and that he feels that the government will be to blame for the destruction 
of the land. He further stated his opposition to the lack of discussion and transparency 

Page 3 of 174



with the residents. 
 
Jim Durian of Mason stated that MAEDA is the local chamber of commerce, which has 
paid for various improvements over the years, including the new tree lights and benches 
downtown. He further stated that the new Ford facility will bring in new career 
opportunities that have been lost when other companies have moved away and will bring 
billions in capital investments to the area. 
 
Barry Wayne Adams of 622 W Green stated that big companies will come in and replace 
all the small businesses. He further stated that money can not replace land and that we 
need food more than cars. 
 
Rebecca Glotfelty of Charlevoix stated that the land in question is some of the best farm 
land in the county and that this would be an injustice to the area. She further stated that 
she liked Marshall better when there were fewer people and that she believes a park is 
needed to help heal society. A copy of a proposed park was added to the record 
 
Carolyn Watson of the City of Marshall stated that hiking is a growing hobby and that a 
state park would rejuvenate Marshall. She stated that the area would be perfect for a 
park without destroying farms and that it would help small businesses without bringing 
in big businesses. A copy of her statement was added to the record. 
 
Johanna Tewes of Fredonia Township stated that she moved to Marshall because of the 
historical charm and its safety. She fears her grandchildren won't be safe, nor will she 
be able to use her well water anymore as she won't be able to trust it. She would like 
more information to be shared with the citizens. 
 
Jason Blanchard of 311 N Madison stated that the population follows 30 year cycles and 
that Marshall is due for a population increase. He further stated that the unemployment 
rate in Marshall is lower than the state and national average. He has concerns about the 
long term economics of the project due to the volatile nature of the pricing of the raw 
materials and the need for the batteries. 
 
Scott Davis of Marshall Township stated that he was pleased to hear about the nature 
preserve and asked what else was being asked of Ford. He suggested asking for things 
such as a rec center while things were being settled. 
 
Natalie Valle of Marengo Township stated that she chose Marshall due to the small town 
atmosphere with minimal traffic or safety concerns and is concerned Ford will change 
that for the area. She stated that kids are too disconnected and that they need more 
green space to help with anxiety and other issues. She feels a state park would be a 
good fit for the community. A copy of her statement was added to the record. 
 
Maggie Emerson Rich of 616 Union St stated that she is still opposed to the megasite 
as the soil is highly permeable, so any accident would have materials in the water table, 
the river and ultimately Lake Michigan. She further stated that people from the plant 
wouldn't be able to afford housing in Marshall, and with the tax break, Marshall wouldn't 
see any extra money coming in. She suggested putting the plant in the industrial park 
away from the river. 
 

Page 4 of 174



Karli Withee of Marengo Township stated that she believes the history of the town will 
be lost with rapid growth and that the schools won't be able to handle it. She stated that 
the megasite area won't be the only land lost and that eventually the factory will move 
away and nothing will be left for the people in the area. A copy of her statement was 
added to the record. 
 
Connie Wireman of Marshall Township stated that she has lived in Marshall her entire 
life and that she would like to see the current industrial park developed and a state park 
on the mega site. She believed that the factory would bring in blight and pollution and 
that residents would move away. A copy of her statement was added to the record. 
 
Laura Bartlett of 435 N Linden stated that she had spoken with neighbors and they 
demand better leadership and transparency. She believes the proposed factory is a high 
risk and that eventually a vacant factory will serve as a reminder of bad decisions. A 
copy of her statement with various signatures was added to the record. 
 
Emily Emerson Rich of 616 Union St stated she believes when governmental incentives 
change for alternative energy the factory will close. She urged the council to hear 
peoples voices and to put the issue to a referendum. 
 
Sue Lee Bryant of Marshall Township stated that she is concerned about the 
environmental impact of the factory, especially on the water and wells. She stated that 
the river is full of people in the summer and worries about the air and potential health 
concerns. She further stated her concern about the involvement of the Chinese with the 
proximity to the federal center and Fort Custer. 
 
Josh of Marengo Township stated that electric vehicles are a risky endeavor to invest in 
as the benefits and sustainability are still disputed and that they are highly politically 
driven. He stated that he would like to see other things done to make money and that 
people have legitimate concerns that need to be heard. 
 
Mick Woods of Marshall Township stated that they would like to see this put to a 
vote  due to the size and scale of the project. It was further stated that they don't believe 
the culture and small town feel will be able to be preserved and that Ford will be gone 
before their tax break is up. 
 
Connie River of Marengo Twonship stated that she is opposed to the scope and scale 
of the Ford project and she believes the board was bought. She stated that her family 
intends to leave if the project comes and she is concerned about where those being 
displaced will be able to find homes. 
 
Rick Sadler stated that he believes no one is listening to the people and that he doesn't 
expect this type of shady business at the local level. He further stated his concern about 
the lack of transparency and stated that this is not the American ideal. 

7) CONSENT AGENDA   
 Moved Scott Wolfersberger, supported Joe Caron to approve the consent agenda as 

presented. On a roll call vote: 
  
Ayes:  Joe Caron, Theresa Chaney-Huggett, Jacob Gates, Ryan Traver, Ryan Underhill, 
Scott Wolfersberger, Mayor James Schwartz 

Page 5 of 174



Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
 
Motion carried. 

 A. City Council Minutes 
Work Session-February 6, 2023 
Regular Session - February 6, 2023  

 
 

 B. City Bills 
Purchases- 2/3/2023 $377,993.43 
Purchases- 2/10/2023 $1,322,173.85 
January Power Purchase- $877,755.84 
Total $2,577,863.12  

 
 

8) PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS   
 

 

9) INFORMATIONAL ITEMS   
 

 

10) PUBLIC HEARINGS & SUBSEQUENT COUNCIL ACTION   
 

 

 A. PA425 FOR MULTIPLE MARSHALL TOWNSHIP PROPERTIES  
 Mayor Schwartz opened the public hearing on the proposed PA 425 land transfers of the 

following properties: 16-301-006-00, 16-290-024-00, 16-320-012-00, 16-291-012-00, 16-
290-018-00, 16-282-009-00, 16-272-009-00, and 16-340-078-00. 
 
Glenn Kowalske of Marshall Township stated he would like to see this put to a 
referendum, as he believes everyone loses in this. He stated that from his research 
MAEDA and the county started working on getting the site ready in 2019 and that there 
are at least 79 properties under option by MAEDA. He stated that there are multiple 
people on the MAEDA board, as well as other commissions that should have brought 
the details to the public. He stated that there have been several businesses that have 
come in since State Farm left and that the loss of population is due to high taxes. A copy 
of his statement is added to the record. 
 
Rebecca Glotfelty of Charlevoix stated that she doesn't believe her dad would have 
wanted this and that this was a turning point for Marshall and the wrong choice was being 
made. She stated that Ford does not care about Marshall but that the people in the room 
do care and want better. 
 
Conni Wireman of Marshall Township stated that hundreds of people on Michigan Ave 
and the surrounding area won't stay if the factory comes in due to light, sounds, and 
smells from the factory, and she may consider moving. She doesn't believe the water 
from any wells will be safe and won't patronize Marshall businesses if this factory comes 
in. She stated that there are businesses that can't find help now and that transparency 
and involvement from the start would have gone a long way. 
 
Karli Withee of Marengo Township inquired how Ford would help with the infrastructure 

Page 6 of 174



of the area, including schools, police and fire. She inquired how the schools would handle 
the influx of the population and if they would fix damage to the road caused by the excess 
traffic. 
 
Jason Blanchardof 311 N Madison stated that he would like to see the board abstain 
from voting so that more engagement and discussion can happen. He would like to see 
the process slowed down as he believes there are good intentions, but would like to 
understand better. 
 
Josh of Marengo Township stated that he believes politicians are being influenced by 
things other than what is in the best interest of the people and that listening to the people 
would have a huge impact. 
 
Barry Wayne Adams of 622 W Green stated that they don't need the council's permission 
for a referendum as per the city charter they only need 10% of the electorate to force an 
ordinance to be reconsidered. He stated that if this goes through there will be litigation. 
He would like to see the land used to grow hemp for hempcrete or other products instead 
of the destruction of land. 
 
Maggie Emerson Richof 616 Union St stated that this should be gradual growth and not 
full stream ahead. She further questioned what happens in 50 years when the agreement 
expires. 
 
Matt Eggleton of 435 N Linden stated that Marshall has 190 years of farming history and 
that this project is incredibly risky as he believes it will be a brownfield in no time. He 
would like to see this put to a referendum. 
 
Mayor Schwartz closed the public hearing on the proposed PA 425 land transfers of the 
following properties: 16-301-006-00, 16-290-024-00, 16-320-012-00, 16-291-012-00, 16-
290-018-00, 16-282-009-00, 16-272-009-00, and 16-340-078-00. 
 
Member gates stated that he appreciates everyone coming out and their passion. He 
stated that he believes climate change is real and that green investments and change 
are needed, and that we can't say not in my backyard. He further stated that he would 
love to see a state park or something similar, but this is not the location for it, as there 
needs to be more natural features to bring people in. 
 
Mayor Schwartz stated that the number of people for or against this project seems to 
depend on the forum but that everyone's concerns are being listened to. He agreed that 
the need for the natural area between the factory and the river is important and that 
access to that area still needs to be addressed. He stated if everything that was brought 
before council was brought to a vote of the people, nothing would ever get done. He 
further stated that there are other small towns with large manufacturing and that it is 
about setting up the right parameters. He stated that no one is having their land grabbed 
away from them and that this is part of the process of getting the plans to the table for 
everyone to see. 
 
Member Traver stated that he appreciated everyone's passion for the community. He 
further stated that outside of the meetings he had been approached by only 3 people 
opposed to the project, but dozens of people who are supporting it. He further stated that 

Page 7 of 174



there is a lot left to be planned and this is just one step in the process. 
 
Moved Ryan Traver, supported Jacob Gates to approve the Public Act 425 Conditional 
Land Transfer for the following parcels:16-301-006-00, 16-290-024-00, 16-320-012-00, 
16-291-012-00, and authorize the City Manager and City Clerk to execute the associated 
Contract for Conditional Transfer of Property as presented; approve the Public Act 425 
Conditional Land Transfer for the following parcel: 16-290-018-00, and authorize the City 
Manager and City Clerk to execute the associated Contract for Conditional Transfer of 
Property as presented; approve the Public Act 425 Conditional Land Transfer for the 
following parcel: 16-282-009-00, and authorize the City Manager and City Clerk to execute 
the associated Contract for Conditional Transfer of Property as presented; and approve the 
Public Act 425 Conditional Land Transfer for the following parcels: 16-272-009-00, and 16-
340-078-00, and authorize the City Manager and City Clerk to execute the associated 
Contract for Conditional Transfer of Property as presented. On a roll call vote: 
  
Ayes:  Jacob Gates, Ryan Traver, Ryan Underhill, Scott Wolfersberger, Mayor James 
Schwartz, Joe Caron 
Nays: Theresa Chaney-Huggett 
Abstain: None 
 
Motion Carried. 

 B. TOBACCO ORDINANCE UPDATE  
 Mayor Schwartz opened the public hearing on Ordinance 2023-05- Updates to the 

Tobacco Ordinance. 
 
Chief Lankerd stated that the only change was bringing the legal age in line with the 
state and federal law of 21 years of age. 
 
Barry Wayne Adams of 622 W Green stated that there is no constitutional authority that 
tells people what they can and cannot do with their own body. He questions how far the 
council is willing to go and stated that it is not up to the government what people do. 
 
Emily Emerson Rich of 616 Union St stated that if we're going to have a factory, many 
factory workers like to take smoke breaks and they should be allowed. She stated that if 
they are old enough to serve their country, they are old enough to smoke. 
 
Rebecca Glotfelty of Charlevoix stated that the council can't regulate people. 
 
Mayor Schwartz closed the public hearing on Ordinance 2023-05- Updates to the Tobacco 
Ordinance. 
 
Mayor Schwartz stated that this is simply bringing the local ordinance in law with the federal 
and state laws. 
 
Moved Ryan Traver, supported Ryan Underhill to approve Ordinance 2023-05- Updates 
to the Tobacco Ordinance.On a roll call vote: 
  
Ayes: Jacob Gates, Ryan Traver, Ryan Underhill, Scott Wolfersberger, Mayor James 
Schwartz, Joe Caron, Theresa Chaney-Huggett 

Page 8 of 174



Nays: None 
Abstain: None 

 C. GENERAL PENALTY ORDINANCE UPDATE  
 Mayor Schwartz opened the public hearing on Ordinance 2023-06- Updates to the General 

Penalty Ordinance, Chapter 10, Section 10.99.  
 
Chief Lankerd stated that this would bring the penalty ordinance in line with current state 
allowances and with penalties in other portions of the local ordinances. 
 
Barry Wayne Adams stated that policing is a lucrative business and instead of creating 
higher penalties we should be focusing on giving people a life that would not have them 
wanting to drink. He further stated that money should  not be the primary moving force. 
 
Moved Scott Wolfersberger, supported Jacob Gates to approve Ordinance 2023-06- 
Updates to the General Penalty Ordinance, Chapter 10, Section 10.99.On a roll call vote: 
  
Ayes:  Ryan Traver, Ryan Underhill, Scott Wolfersberger, Mayor James Schwartz, Joe 
Caron, Theresa Chaney-Huggett, Jacob Gates 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
 
Motion carried. 

11) OLD BUSINESS   
 

 

12) REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS   
 

 

 A. MARSHALL HIGH SCHOOL BAND FUN RUN SPECIAL EVENT  
 Moved Joe Caron, supported Theresa Chaney-Huggett to approve the Marshall High 

School Band Fun Run Special Event Request for March 11, 2023 contingent on a letter 
of support from the school and proof of insurance.On a voice vote: Motion carried. 

13) APPOINTMENTS / ELECTIONS   
 

 

 A. CALHOUN COUNTY CONSOLIDATED DISPATCH AUTHORITY BOARD 
APPOINTMENT  

 Moved Ryan Traver, supported Scott Wolfersberger to approve the Mayoral appointment 
of Council Member Joe Caron to the Calhoun County Consolidated Dispatch Authority. 
On a voice vote: Motion carried. 

 B. AIRPORT BOARD LIAISON APPOINTMENT  
 Moved Joe Caron, supported Ryan Traver to approve the Mayor's liaison appointment of 

Council Member Theresa Chaney-Huggett to the City of Marshall Airport Board. On a 
voice vote: Motion carried. 

 C. DDA/LDFA APPOINTMENT  
 Moved Jacob Gates, supported Ryan Underhill to appoint Diane Thompson to the 

DDA/LDFA Board of Directors. On a voice vote: Motion carried. 
14) PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS  

Persons addressing Council are required to give their name and address for the record 

Page 9 of 174



when called upon by the Mayor. Members of the public shall be limited to speaking for a 
maximum of five (5) minutes on any item not on the agenda.  

 Rebecca Glotfelty of Charlevoix stated that the carbon footprint that is involved with 
electric vehicles is not a green solution. She further stated that the land would be better 
suited for a park, as the hollow trees provided homes for large birds, burrowing animals 
live in the hedgerows and they won't survive if they are forced into a small portion of 
land. She further stated that this is an instance of corporate welfare and that we are 
losing our democracy. 
 
Emily Emerson Rich of Marshall inquired about the city bills and spending and stated 
that she felt it was high for a city. Manager Perry stated that he would share a copy of 
the spending with her after the meeting. 
 
Conni Wireman of Marshall Township stated that the foundation is already there for a 
state park. She inquired where the electric and water would be coming from and if there 
were any studies to show how things would be provided. Mayor Schwartz stated that 
those items will all be determined during the site plan review process. 
 
Barry Wane Adams of 622 W Green stated that environmentalists shouldn't believe that 
electric vehicles are helping and that the mining of cobalt is being done by child slaves. 
He further stated that he can't fathom giving up farm land for a factory for product that 
most people won't be able to afford. He stated that development ruins lives. 
 
Jeff Wilson of Marengo Township stated that he wanted to recognize all the hardwork 
that went in to the recent production of Newsies. 
 
Glenn Kowalske of Marshall Township stated that while he does believe in global 
warming he doesn't believe it is at a panic state and that the land use is actually capturing 
carbon, so we are adding to the problem by taking away land. He stated that the money 
for a park could come from grants. He stated that he would like to see the site plan and 
studies for the project, but believes the planning commission is the same as council 
where they don't listen to people.  
 
Maggie Emerson Rich of Marshall stated that the footprint of the plant is horrific and that 
there is only a finite amount of water on the planet and we can't create more. She further 
stated that when it comes to big change people want to be involved and questioned what 
is going to be done for already overwhelmed teachers. 
 
Todd Bogarelli of Marshall stated that if the plant does go in, it won't be the end of 
Marshall as all the existing parks will still be here. He stated that while some employees 
will live in Marshall, others will commute and that there is oppertunity. He further stated 
that factories are not soul crushing work and that we wouldn't have what we do without 
them. He stated that he appreciates council listening and that there are people who think 
there is a path forward.  
 
Moved Ryan Underhill, supported Ryan Traver to extend the meeting beyond 10:00 p.m. 
On a voice vote: Motion carried. 

15) COUNCIL AND MANAGER COMMUNICATIONS   
 Members Underhill and Chaney-Huggett stated their appreciation for everyone coming 

out. 

Page 10 of 174



 
Member Traver stated that he had a conversation with Ford about wages and was told 
that there were no wages determined yet, as they were still 3 years away from opening, 
so there is no way to know what the wages would be at that time, so any wages are 
purely speculation at this point. 
 
Member Wolfersberger stated that the people on boards and commissions for the 
township and city, including MAEDA, are all volunteering their time to do what they see 
is best for the future of the area.  
 
Mayor Schwartz stated that he does take notes and listen to the concerns of the people. 
He stated that there would be multiple occasions throughout the process to share any 
thoughts or concerns. He stated that the city is prepared for the ice storm coming in and 
also commended the production of Newsies and encouraged the supporting of the arts. 

16) ADJOURNMENT   
 The meeting was adjourned at 10:20 p.m. 

 

Page 11 of 174



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
February 21, 2023 

Work Session - 6:00 PM 
 

1) CALL TO ORDER   
 IN A REGULAR SESSIONS held on Tuesday, February 21, 2023 at 6:00 PM in the 

Council Chambers of Town Hall, 323 West Michigan Ave, Marshall, MI 49068, the 
Marshall City Council was called to order by Mayor Schwartz. 

2) ROLL CALL   
 Roll was called: 

 
Present: Mayor Schwartz, Council Members Caron, Chaney-Huggett, Gates, Traver, 
Underhill and Wolfersberger 
 
Also Present: Manager Perry and Clerk Eubank 
 
Absent: None 

3) PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS - Persons addressing 
Council are required to give their name and address for the record when called upon by the 
Mayor. Members of the public shall be limited to speaking for a maximum of five (5) minutes 
on any agenda item.  

 
 

4) DISCUSSION ITEMS   
 

 

 A. NORTHEAST NIA PROJECTS  
 Director Zuzga gave background on current projects in both the northeast and south 

NIAs/ 
5) PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS  

Persons addressing Council are required to give their name and address for the record 
when called upon by the Mayor. Members of the public shall be limited to speaking for a 
maximum of five (5) minutes on any item not on the agenda.  

 
 

6) ADJOURNMENT   
 The meeting was adjourned at 6:42 pm. 

 

Page 12 of 174



APPROVAL LIST FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 1/2Page:02/17/2023 07:48 PM
User: KWAGNER
DB: Marshall

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 02/17/2023 - 02/17/2023
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

AMOUNT
PO
NUMBERDESCRIPTION

VENDOR
NAME

INVOICE
NUMBER

24.49 ACCT A1P4GM99HG1EO2 - HOODED SWEATSHIRTAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1MHW-DPMP-64NY
21.98 ACCT A1P4GM99HG1EO2 - BATTERY HOLDERAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1C3K-FRWW-L1FD

1,999.77 ACCT A1P4GM99HG1EO2 - BROCADE SWITCHAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1KVF-T6WX-31CH
119.00 ACCT A1P4GM99HG1EO2 - TOILET FLUSH VALVEAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1MRQ-3WH9-3THJ
88.00 DOT PHYSICAL EXAM - ARNOLD, GEORGEASCENSION MICHIGAN EMPLOYER SOLUTIO496247
88.00 DOT PHYSICAL EXAM - DECKER, RICHARDASCENSION MICHIGAN EMPLOYER SOLUTIO496549
46.69 GARAGE/STREETS - BLACK GLOSSAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-502842
38.99 GARAGE/STREETS - BACK-UP ALARMAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-502873
33.56 GARAGE/STREETS - FLAP DISCSAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-502934
63.55 GARAGE/STREETS - BLACK/GRAY GLOSSAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-502987
92.34 GARAGE/STREETS - CONTOUR BLADESAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-503013
37.38 FIRE - 2010 DODGE RAM LIFT SUPPORTAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-503048
10.18 WATER - 3 HDGM CLAMPSAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-503075
17.49 GARAGE/STREETS - AIR CHUCKAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-503095
119.80 GARAGE/STREETS - GREASEAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-503116
47.92 GARAGE/STREETS - GREASEAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-503112
86.69 GARAGE/STREETS - INFLATOR GAUGEAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-503173
22.19 GARAGE/STREETS - EXHAUST FLUIDAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-503219
291.09 GARAGE/STREETS - DIESEL EXHAUST FLUIDAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-503221
223.70 GARAGE/STREETS - DE-ICER, SILICONE SPRAY, GREEN PAPERAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-503247
24.29 GARAGE/STREETS - PAINT REMOVERAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-503363

21,540.00 2023.133WOOD UTILITY POLES FOR ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTIONBROWN WOOD PRESERVING CO., INC.I0053100
88.50 MARSHALL PD - TOW/HOOK FEEBUD'S TOWING & AUTOMOTIVE73957
937.50 2023 ANNUAL SOFTWARE SUPPORT "BEAST" 50%CALHOUN COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE01242023

10,320.00 2023.14950% DOWN PAYMENT FOR GENERATOR CLEANINGCANYON INDUSTRIES, INC.23-037
4,819.50 2023.167CUST NO. 11848762 RUCKUS EXPANSION MODULE &TRANSCEIVER MODULECDW GOVERNMENTGK24338
4,242.36 2023.167CUST NO. 11848762 RUCKUS EXPANSION MODULE &TRANSCEIVER MODULECDW GOVERNMENTGJ76073

406.00 CLIENT NO. K9950 SERVICES THROUGH 1/31/2023CLARK HILL PLC1281362
125.00 MARSHALL PD BODY CAM REPAIRCOBAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC50451
250.00 MONTHLY RETAINER SERVICE - JANUARY 2023COURTNEY & ASSOCIATES10040
113.80 ACCT NO. CIMA1 JANITORIAL SUPPLIESD & D MAINTENANCE SUPPLY171424
59.16 CUST NO. 1650 - MARSHALL HOUSE (SHOWER HEAD, KITCHEN BRUSH)DARLING ACE HARDWARE612266
50.95 CUST NO. 1650 - MARSHALL HOUSE (LED HILM, STRAINER)DARLING ACE HARDWARE611894
29.98 CUST NO. 1650 - CITY HALL (LED BULBS)DARLING ACE HARDWARE612376
33.98 CUST NO. 1650 - CITY HALL (LED BULBS)DARLING ACE HARDWARE612369
147.47 CUST NO. 1650 - MARSHALL HOUSE (TAPE, PAINT BRUSH, DRAIN STOPPER)DARLING ACE HARDWARE612444
19.18 CUST NO. 1650 - FIBERNET (POWER STRIP)DARLING ACE HARDWARE612495
145.66 CUST NO. 1650 - MARSHALL HOUSE (FAUCET, SUPPLY LINE, CHAIN CONNECTOR)DARLING ACE HARDWARE612492
112.07 CUST NO. 1650 - MARSHALL HOUSE (HEATGUN, POWER GRAB ADHESIVE)DARLING ACE HARDWARE612707
22.90 CUST NO. 1650 - ELECTRIC (NUTS, BOLTS, FASTENERS)DARLING ACE HARDWARE612779
157.97 CUST NO. 1650 - WASTE WATER (SHOVELS)DARLING ACE HARDWARE612871
145.00 CUST NO. 1650 - MARSHALL HOUSE (WINDOW SCREENS)DARLING ACE HARDWARE612947
14.97 CUST NO. 1650 - FIRE (GROUNDING PLUG)DARLING ACE HARDWARE612557
27.98 CUST NO. 1650 - MARSHALL HOUSE (CLIP TENSION BAR, RSTP BRN QT)DARLING ACE HARDWARE612128
650.00 CUST NO. 1508327 S.H.A.R.P. TRAINING - HUG & HYDEDELTA COLLEGE4587126

9,355.29 2023.052ACCT NO. 870824 WASTE WATER POLYMERDUBOIS CHEMICALS INC.IN-30078870
1,950.00 CUST NO. 5277 GATE VALVESETNA SUPPLYS104911591.001

888.67 CUST NO. MIBAT1561 GARAGE SUPPLIESFASTENAL COMPANYMIBAT326341
280.00 CUST NO. 2868 TAP SADDLE FOR HDPEFERGUSON WATERWORKS #33860159323
274.40 2023.171PATCH CABLES - BROCADE 1 METERFS.COM INCIN102301260274
252.72 STREETS DEPT - SAFETY SWEATSHIRTSFULL SOURCE, LLCFS4504578-IN
622.30 ACCT NO. 0000571644 REAL FLEX CABLEGRAYBAR ELECTRIC9330406192
606.64 ACCT NO. 0000571644 REAL FLEX CABLEGRAYBAR ELECTRIC9330425130
57.47 UB refund for account: 800320003GREENMAN, STEPHANIE02/17/2023
42.00 ACCT NO. 197892 SERVICES AT 1201 ARMS STREETGRIFFIN PEST SOLUTIONS2318387
250.00 2004 FORD F-150 WINDSHIELD TINTHARMON GLASS DOCTOR4402-797248

202,993.32 2023.029CUST ID: 2343 CONSTRUCTION OF THE BROOKS SUBSTATION HYDAKER-WHEATLAKE149799
57.87 CLIENT NO. MARSH - SIGNATURE STAMPIMPACT SOLUTIONS174059
231.20 CLIENT NO. MARSH - FIBERNET DOOR HANGERSIMPACT SOLUTIONS174116
163.75 CLIENT NO. MARSH - METER SLIPSIMPACT SOLUTIONS174226

1,089.71 ACCT NO. 181800 BUFF DISCSKIMBALL MIDWEST100667155
344.08 2.53 TONS COLD PATCHLAKELAND ASPHALT CORPORATION41969
250.24 1.84 TONS COLD PATCHLAKELAND ASPHALT CORPORATION41974

1,270.00 AIRPORT ROOF REPAIRS - NOV 2022LAKESHORE CONSTRUCTION01252023
100.00 BILLING ID: 1720997 JANUARY 2023LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA MNGMNT, LLC1720997-20230131
142.29 CUST NO. 59879658 GASLINDE GAS & EQUIPMENT, INC.33737481

5,000.00 CONTRIBUTION TO MAFFAA FOR POWER COTMARSHALL AREA FIRE FIGHTERS AMBULAN02062023
86.00 MARSHALL PD - DEER MANAGEMENTMARSHALL FEED & GRAIN CO.53645
152.72 STREETS - UTILITY KNIFE, GLOVES, BOLTS, ADHESIVEMARSHALL HARDWARE002302
121.83 MOTOR POOL - BLADES, LEVEL, MARKERSMARSHALL HARDWARE002275
10.49 AIRPORT - BATTERIES FOR TERMINAL THERMOSTATSMARSHALL HARDWARE002292
19.99 WATER - FILTERMARSHALL HARDWARE002304
40.83 REIMBURSEMENT FOR CDL - SOS ENDORSEMENTMCDONALD, DANIEL02132023
60.33 ACCT NO. 188371900 PADLOCKSMCMASTER-CARR91480729

9,118.47 MARSHALL HOUSE PAYROLL & HEALTH INSURANCE OCT 2022 - JAN 2023MEDALLION MANAGEMENTM500-130
4,800.00 MARSHALL HOUSE CONSULTING FEES JAN 2023MEDALLION MANAGEMENTM500-131

30.00 2023 FEB WATER SOLUTIONS WEBINAR - AMBLER, AARONMI-AWWA200019570
363.59 FIRE OFFICER TRAINING MATERIALSMICHIGAN STATE FIREMEN'S ASSOC.4821

1,874.99 MARSHALL PD BICYCLE - SIRRUS 2.0 L/ACCESSORIESMIKE'S TEAM ACTIVE BIKES8716
Page 13 of 174



APPROVAL LIST FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 2/2Page:02/17/2023 07:48 PM
User: KWAGNER
DB: Marshall

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 02/17/2023 - 02/17/2023
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

AMOUNT
PO
NUMBERDESCRIPTION

VENDOR
NAME

INVOICE
NUMBER

994.99 MARSHALL PD BICYCLE - SIRRUS 2.0 M/ACCESSORIESMIKE'S TEAM ACTIVE BIKES8717
450.70 CUST NO. 02356117 UTILITY CARTMSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO.66877666
78.47 ACCT NO. 1400 MOTOR POOL - SPRING BRAKENAPA OF MARSHALL611192
52.92 ACCT NO. 1400 MOTOR POOL - GREASENAPA OF MARSHALL614632
129.08 ACCT NO. 1400 MOTOR POOL - FILTERSNAPA OF MARSHALL607623

9.34 ACCT NO. 1400 ELECTRIC - BRAKE FLUIDNAPA OF MARSHALL607861
375.08 2023.015ACCT NO. 27850 WASTE WATER LAB SUPPLIESNORTH CENTRAL LABORATORIES481895
484.87 2023.015ACCT NO. 27850 WASTE WATER LAB SUPPLIESNORTH CENTRAL LABORATORIES481896
690.00 MARSHALL REC. YOUTH BASKETBALL T-SHIRTSPALM TEES23000

4,822.39 2023.096CUST ID: 100402 LIGHT FIXTURES FOR WINSTON PARK - EATON LED FIXTURE/GLOBEPOWER LINE SUPPLY56717502
162.50 CUST ID: 100402 OUTERWEAR - LUIBPOWER LINE SUPPLY56718501

2,526.40 CUST ID: 100402 LED ROADWAY FIXTUREPOWER LINE SUPPLY56718777
493.19 CUST ID: 100402 INSULATOR GUY STRAINPOWER LINE SUPPLY56718778
97.25 CUST ID: 100402 5-AMP FUSE LINKPOWER LINE SUPPLY56718779

3,000.00 ACCT NO. 7900 0440 5582 9307 POSTAGE FEB 2023QUADIENT FINANCE USA, INC.02032023
979.00 MARSHALL HOUSE TONERQUITECH19662
737.25 FIRE DEPT ANNUAL EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCER&R FIRE TRUCK REPAIR, INC.64562
249.99 BOOT ALLOWANCE - BEATTIE, ALEXRICE'S SHOES, INC15616
160.00 BOOT ALLOWANCE - JINKS, DANRICE'S SHOES, INC15719
495.00 CLIENT NO. 120026174 MARSHALL HOUSE SERVICES 1/26/23ROSE PEST SOLUTIONS120613375
132.00 CLIENT NO. 70019775 MARSHALL HOUSE SERVICES 1/26/23ROSE PEST SOLUTIONS70873292

1,465.00 CLIENT NO. 70019775 MARSHALL HOUSE SERVICESROSE PEST SOLUTIONS70867149
66.00 UB refund for account: 2200940002RUSSELL, BRANDON & JENNIFER02/17/2023
170.00 ENERGY OPTIMIZATION - AIR CONDITIONER & THERMOSTATSTADTFELD, JAMES02082023
269.89 CREDIT ACCT NO. 302063 OFFICE SUPPLIESSTAPLES BUSINESS CREDIT1646719012
75.00 MARSHALL REC. WATERCRAFT REGISTRATION FEESSTATE OF MICHIGAN02172023

2,481.38 2023.168CUST NO. 90000652 FILTRATE PUMP PARTSSTS OPERATING, INC.5959608-00
5,280.00 2023.163ELECTRIC LINE CLEARANCE  (3-PERSON $132/HR & 2-PERSON $110/HR)  TOP TO BOTTOM TREE SERVICE, LLC150

325.00 ANNUAL SPRINKLER INSPECTION AT PSBTOTAL FIRE PROTECTION INC.12473152
50.08 UNIFORM SERVICES - MARSHALL HOUSE 1/18/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620053411
53.27 UNIFORM SERVICES - DPW/GARAGE 1/18/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620053408
126.72 UNIFORM SERVICES - ELECTRIC/FIBER 1/18/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620053410
66.68 UNIFORM SERVICES - POWER HOUSE 1/18/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620053409
38.70 UNIFORM SERVICES - WASTE WATER 1/18/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620053406
41.44 UNIFORM SERVICES - WATER 1/18/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620053412
116.00 ACCT NO. 584585 ZBA NOTICE (ZONING)USA TODAY NETWORK0005326487
875.81 CUST NO. 859103 WASTE WATER LAB SUPPLIESUSABLUEBOOK234957

1,703.88 ACCT NO. 987146080-00001 FEB 2023VERIZON WIRELESS9926713118
1,467.98 SERVICE CALL AT CITY GARAGE + PARTS 1/27/23VERSALIFT MIDWEST60320
1,512.31 CUST NO. 69580 XEROX LEASE JAN 2023XEROX FINANCIAL SERVICES3744408

324,163.78 GRAND TOTAL: 

Page 14 of 174



APPROVAL LIST FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 1/3Page:02/24/2023 05:50 PM
User: KWAGNER
DB: Marshall

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 02/24/2023 - 02/24/2023
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

AMOUNT
PO
NUMBERDESCRIPTION

VENDOR
NAME

INVOICE
NUMBER

84.00 AD NO. 8102351 MARSHALL HOUSE ADAD-VISOR & CHRONICLE439089
4,794.19 CUST NO. 100413 WATER PLANT CHEMICALS/SUPPLIESALEXANDER CHEMICAL CORPORATION63589

388.98 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 FR OUTERWEAR - PEHRSONAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1MKV-KTQ1-3GMM
14.99 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 CERTIFICATE FRAMESAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1XDX-NJFY-VKTG
103.46 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 WIRE CONNECTORSAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1XMV-MRVF-V7MY
642.81 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 MARSHALL HOUSE OPERATING SUPPLIESAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.14KK-TP9F-6F4M
100.50 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 SWIFFER MOP, COIN TENDERAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1HC3-TVWJ-3H4P
149.99 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 UNIFORM - PEHRSONAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1N6J-FKRH-7T4C
24.68 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 HDMI ADAPTERAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1P7C-H4CH-GVTQ
69.54 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 1099 TAX FORMSAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1RNN-NYXN-X697
45.98 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 STREET HOCKEY BALLSAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.19YQ-9J6F-6H9M

1,550.96 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 DELL MONITORSAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1D6Q-GFLY-7XM6
28.36 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 KEYBOARD & MOUSEAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1LCY-9Q36-99PP
21.97 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 CLIPBOARDSAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1FQN-L1G4-1Q3V
222.20 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 FLUSH VALVESAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1WH4-T6XX-CTQX
15.96 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 SHARPIESAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1KPM-QTGY-4T7D
35.91 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 PORTABLE DVD WRITERAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.11CN-N791-16NM
465.29 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 ASUS MONITORSAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1N3R-PQMF-3XPL
358.00 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 ASUS MONITORSAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1T73-G9HT-6NP1
14.97 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 VGA ADAPTERAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.13QV-6XQD-7F9P
21.44 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 HOCKEY PUCKSAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1TRK-YY9G-GRCJ
224.08 ACCT NO. 269 789-9011 599 1 MRLEC FEB 2023AT&T 269789901102-2023
253.20 ACCT NO. 269 781-9492 594 7 MARSHALL HOUSE FEB 2023AT&T 269781949202-2023
264.13 ACCT NO. 269 781-8431 746 9 AIRPORT FEB 2023AT&T 269781843102-2023
362.31 GARAGE/STREETS - SWAY BAR FM, SHOCKSAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-503417
10.49 ELECTRIC - 1/4 PLUGAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-503390
41.81 GARAGE/STREETS - AIR/OIL FILTERSAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-503443
21.38 GARAGE/STREETS - SWAY BAR KITAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-503481
4.00 GARAGE/STREETS - LIQUID SNOW SHOVELAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-503442

88.07 GARAGE/STREETS - SEAM SEAL, SEMI-GLOSS, TOP COATAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-503578
16.11 GARAGE/STREETS - MAP PRO CYLINDERAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-503640
47.18 GARAGE/STREETS - VALVE INSERT TOOL, SERVICE GAGEAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-503684
16.52 GARAGE/STREETS - ELECTRICAL TAPEAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-503743
27.32 GARAGE/STREETS - OIL FILTER, ROLL HEAT HOSEAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-503869
109.69 GARAGE/STREETS - CMBN SWITCHAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-503915
16.90 GARAGE/STREETS - SIMPLE GREEN, UPHOLSTERY CLEANERAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-503901
28.18 GARAGE/STREETS - SUPER CLEAN, SANDING DISCAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-504040
769.29 GARAGE/STREETS - DEGREASER 55 GALAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-504041

8.90 GARAGE/STREETS - HALOGEN BULBAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-504122
1.98 FIRE - TOUCH UP BOTTLESAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-503400

12.28 FIRE DEPT - BRAKE CLEANER, GASKETAUTO ZONE, INC.2265455164
27.59 GARAGE - FLOOR MATSAUTO ZONE, INC.2265423845
14.09 GARAGE - SPARK PLUG SOCKETAUTO ZONE, INC.2265426430
811.23 FERRO-MAGNETIC LOCATOR FOR WATER DEPTBATCO, INC.23002

1,286.23 CUST NO. 51086 2020 FORD EXPLORER REPAIRSBOSHEARS FORD SALES, INC.157633
120.00 DOC FILING - PA425 FOR GLOTFELTY, LAPP, BAUER, MUMAW/LIVINGSTONCALHOUN COUNTY CLERK02222023
95.00 2023 CALHOUN COUNTY SENIOR EXPO REGISTRATION FEECALHOUN COUNTY SENIOR SERVICES2023SENIOREXPO

94,003.11 2022 WINTER AD VALOREM DIST #5CALHOUN COUNTY TREASURER02222023
226,776.48 2022 WINTER AD VALOREM DIST #5CALHOUN INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL DIST02222023

5,100.00 2023.098FIBERNET SUPPORT CONTRACT - FEB 2023CHR SOLUTIONS763065
258.88 ACCT NO. 1000 9033 6411 AIRPORT FEB 2023CONSUMERS ENERGY203410566649

1,119.37 ACCT NO. 1000 0916 3435 CITY HALL FEB 2023CONSUMERS ENERGY201274809622
2,332.63 ACCT NO. 1000 0916 3971 DPW FEB 2023CONSUMERS ENERGY201274809624

644.86 ACCT NO. 1000 0759 4680 DPW FEB 2023CONSUMERS ENERGY202965571265
1,207.57 ACCT NO. 1030 1580 0248 FIRE FEB 2023CONSUMERS ENERGY205368320990

325.93 ACCT NO. 1000 8921 1096 KP FIRE PLACE FEB 2023CONSUMERS ENERGY206258111314
5,817.20 ACCT NO. 1000 0033 5602 MARSHALL HOUSE FEB 2023CONSUMERS ENERGY207058434378
4,883.13 ACCT NO. 1030 1852 1130 MRLEC FEB 2023CONSUMERS ENERGY203766499056
1,549.07 ACCT NO. 1030 1852 0884 MRLEC BARN FEB 2023CONSUMERS ENERGY205724272446

674.63 ACCT NO. 1000 0916 3203 WASTE WATER FEB 2023CONSUMERS ENERGY205457297262
595.26 ACCT NO. 1000 0916 3708 WASTE WATER FEB 2023CONSUMERS ENERGY201274809623
24.68 ACCT NO. 1030 1352 1119 WASTE WATER LIFT FEB 2023CONSUMERS ENERGY204211480770
870.60 ACCT NO. 1000 7224 3312 WATER FEB 2023CONSUMERS ENERGY206880697993
17.18 CUST NO. 1650 - WATERDARLING ACE HARDWARE613167
38.98 CUST NO. 1650 - WATERDARLING ACE HARDWARE613138
13.43 CUST NO. 1650 - WATERDARLING ACE HARDWARE613099
107.58 CUST NO. 1650 - MARSHALL HOUSEDARLING ACE HARDWARE613045
22.68 CUST NO. 1650 - MARSHALL HOUSEDARLING ACE HARDWARE613160
284.18 CUST NO. 1650 - MARSHALL HOUSEDARLING ACE HARDWARE613102
14.99 CUST NO. 1650 - FIBERNETDARLING ACE HARDWARE613245
11.99 CUST NO. 1650 - RECREATIONDARLING ACE HARDWARE613168
72.97 CUST NO. 1650 - MARSHALL HOUSEDARLING ACE HARDWARE613284
161.74 CUST NO. 1650 - MARSHALL HOUSEDARLING ACE HARDWARE613235
50.93 CUST NO. 1650 - MARSHALL HOUSEDARLING ACE HARDWARE613248
7.11 CUST NO. 1650 - FIREDARLING ACE HARDWARE613009

92.89 CUST NO. 1650 - FIBERNETDARLING ACE HARDWARE613418
404.70 DPW - TRAFFIC SIGNSDORNBOS SIGN, INC.INV67761
195.00 DPW - TRAFFIC SIGNSDORNBOS SIGN, INC.INV67762
134.30 DPW - TRAFFIC SIGNSDORNBOS SIGN, INC.INV67844

Page 15 of 174



APPROVAL LIST FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 2/3Page:02/24/2023 05:50 PM
User: KWAGNER
DB: Marshall

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 02/24/2023 - 02/24/2023
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

AMOUNT
PO
NUMBERDESCRIPTION

VENDOR
NAME

INVOICE
NUMBER

1,710.00 2023.175WWTP ANNUAL LAB PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE & THERMOMETER CALIBRATIONDR LAB SERVICES, LLC1107
260.94 CUST ID: 92775 COUPLERSEDWARDS INDUSTRIAL SALES, INC.3370198

9,290.00 2023.176CUST NO. 5277 WATER SERVICE MATERIALETNA SUPPLYS104933962.001
1,707.10 GARAGE - 25 MICRON FILTER CARTRIDGEFREDRICKSON SUPPLY, LLC12213

135.00 SERVICE CALL AT DPW FOR GATE REMOTES 1/31/23GARAGE DOORS UNLIMITED23-01416
79.11 ACCT NO. 804945673 WWTP LAB SUPPLIESGRAINGER9582779162

1,493.72 ACCT NO. 2782490 COMMERCIAL/WASTE FEB 2023GRANGER WASTE SERVICES25118168
30,152.48 ACCT NO. 18400290 RESIDENTIAL FEB 2023GRANGER WASTE SERVICES25108388

183.50 ACCT NO. 2890780 875 E. MICHIGAN AVE FEB 2023GRANGER WASTE SERVICES25116864
110.28 ACCT NO. 18422860 CITY BUILDINGS/RECYCLING FEB 2023GRANGER WASTE SERVICES25084981

5,016.12 2022.046ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR BROOKS SUBSTATIONGRP ENGINEERING, INC.20230104
1,000.00 2022.236ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR 5 KV VOLTAGE CONVERSIONGRP ENGINEERING, INC.20230105

835.00 ENGINEERING SERVICES MISC. 1/2/23 - 1/29/23GRP ENGINEERING, INC.20230103
348,253.88 2023.029CUST ID: 2343 CONSTRUCTION OF THE BROOKS SUBSTATIONHYDAKER-WHEATLAKE150419

909.00 CUSTOMER: MUNMARS - INSPECTION & REPORTING JAN 2023HYDROCORP0070718-IN
46.93 ACCT NO. 01-BT508 MARSHALL HOUSE SUBSCRIPTIONILLUSTRATUS, DIVISION OF UHLIG, LLCD366067-IN
30.57 WASTE WATER - PIPE FITTINGSJ AND K PLUMBING SUPPLY29779
304.10 CUSTOMER ID 013120 ALTERNATOR 160 AMPJACKSON TRUCK SERVICE INC.PC001368184:01

8,269.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES OCTOBER - DECEMBER 2022JOHN B SULLIVAN148
240.00 SERVICE CALL AT MRLEC ACCESS ENTRY 1/27/23JUSTICE FENCE CO.0005393

131,451.14 2022 WINTER AD VALOREM DIST #5KELLOGG COMMUNITY COLLEGE02222023
121.08 CUST NO. MAR350 - CUSTOM ADAPTOR CABLEKENNEDY INDUSTRIES, INC.635030
140.08 1.03 TONS COLD PATCHLAKELAND ASPHALT CORPORATION41999
270.64 1.99 TONS COLD PATCHLAKELAND ASPHALT CORPORATION42013
145.52 1.07 TONS COLD PATCHLAKELAND ASPHALT CORPORATION42017
134.89 AIRPORT - LUMBER, STAPLESLEGG LUMBER27281
21.98 DPW - LUMBERLEGG LUMBER27435
342.90 ACCT NO. MARSH033 MSA G1 SPECTACLE KITMACQUEEN EMERGENCY GROUPP11719

50,293.87 2022 WINTER AD VALOREM DIST #5MARSHALL AREA FIRE FIGHTERS AMBULAN02222023
680,468.81 2022 WINTER AD VALOREM DIST #5MARSHALL PUBLIC SCHOOLS02222023

7,500.00 CLIENT NO. 4030.001 SERVICES THROUGH 1/31/23MCGINTY, HITCH, PERSON, ANDERSON & 02102023
162.05 ACCT NO. 188371900 CLEANER FOR ENGINESMCMASTER-CARR92295721
711.85 ACCT NO. MA2391 MARSHALL HOUSE ELEVATOR MAINTENANCE FEB - APR 2023MCNALLY ELEVATOR COMPANY, INC63194
18.25 CUST NO. 979 120W LAMPHOLDERMEDLER ELECTRIC COMPANYS5152415.001

1,579.22 2023.166CUST NO. 979 LED LIGHTS FOR WATER PLANTMEDLER ELECTRIC COMPANYS5153219.001
27.77 CUST NO. 979 250V FUSEMEDLER ELECTRIC COMPANYS5155691.001

2,500.00 2023.105BUSINESS DATA SERVICES - 10 GBPS INTERNET CONNECTIONMETRO WIRELESS20230121724
369.13 EDUCATIONAL BOOKS FOR CHILDRENMICHIGAN MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC ASSOC.3605

5,047.00 ID: 307 MML MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL 4/1/23 - 3/31/24MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE02012023
599.00 2023 BASIC INSTITUTE FULL CONFERENCE - NELSON, TRISHAMICHIGAN MUNICIPAL TREASURERS ASSOC7624
24.00 2022 ANNUAL STORM SEWER EASEMENT PAYMENTMORRIS STULBERG TRUST02242023-A
10.00 2022 ANNUAL WATER MAIN EASEMENT PAYMENTMORRIS STULBERG TRUST02242023-B
5.00 2022 ANNUAL POWER LINE EASEMENT PAYMENTMORRIS STULBERG TRUST02242023-C

95.00 MWEA DUES - HAZEL, CHAD #3433MWEA21797
95.00 MWEA DUES - HOFFMAN, STEFANI #6224MWEA21800
295.00 RECREATION CANDLE MAKING CLASSNATURAL HABITAT CANDLE CO.02162023
96.00 METER OFFICE - JAN & FEB COOLER & WATERO'LEARY WATER CONDITIONING117148
752.30 SERVICE CALL AT PSB FOR STUCK GARAGE DOOR 12/12/22OVERHEAD DOOR CO. OF BATTLE CREEKI2316
924.00 MARSHALL REC. FLOOR HOCKEY T-SHIRTSPALM TEES23003

2,193.78 2022.292WELLHEAD PROTECTION PROGRAM (WHPP) PLAN UPDATESPEERLESS MIDWEST, INC.71138
900.00 CUST ID: 100402 METER SEALSPOWER LINE SUPPLY56720501
50.00 CUST ID: 100402 BOOM CLEANERPOWER LINE SUPPLY56720369
44.49 CUST ID: 100402 WRENCH & SCREWDRIVERPOWER LINE SUPPLY56720900

3,328.50 2023.102CUST ID: 100402 FLOOD LIGHTSPOWER LINE SUPPLY56721090
1,830.00 CUST ID: 100402 #2 AL TRIPLEXPOWER LINE SUPPLY56721151

460.12 CUST ID: 100402 5/8" WASHERSPOWER LINE SUPPLY56721920
236.70 CUST ID: 100402 POWER GRIPPOWER LINE SUPPLY56721986
408.92 CUST ID: 100402 SHORT STRAINPOWER LINE SUPPLY56721987

8,853.31 2023.016WASTE WATER FERRIC CHLORIDEPVS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.326929
340.83 CUST NO. 021063 CUTLERY/COOKIES/WWTP WATERSPARTAN STORES02012023

5,493.95 2023.0732022 CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING - S MARSHALL AVENUE WATERMAIN REPLACEMENTSTANTEC CONSULTING MICHIGAN INC.2037928
160.25 2021.202CUST NO. 65602 CONCEPTUAL DESIGN STUDY WATER TREATMENT PLANTSTANTEC CONSULTING MICHIGAN INC.2037924
181.00 2022.213CUST NO. 65602 ENGINEERING SERVICES - TASK 109 - REGIONAL GROUNDWATER MODELSTANTEC CONSULTING MICHIGAN INC.2037925

8,184.50 2021.263CUST NO. 65602 CITYWORKS IMPLEMENTATIONSTANTEC CONSULTING MICHIGAN INC.2037927
2,007.00 CUSTOMER ID: 548744 EMISSIONS FEESTATE OF MICHIGAN761-11064950

63.13 UB refund for account: 2328SUSAN MACQUAIG02/24/2023
3,073.68 2023.179TRUCK #328 REAR SPRING REPAIRTECHNICAL TRUCK & TRAILER10874
1,288.82 ACCT NO. 8948 FEBRUARY 2023TELNET WORLDWIDE267169

250.00 ACCT NO. MARSHALMTF13 ADMIN FEE 2013 MICHIGAN TRANSPORTATION FUND BONDSTHE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON252-2529427
750.00 ACCT NO. MARSHALLCTY9 AGENT FEE 2009 LTGO BONDSTHE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON252-2529426
270.95 ACCT NO. 6731-5519-8 MARSHALL HOUSE PAINT 5 GALTHE SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO.5790-8

7,601.41 2023.056FINANCE & ACCOUNTING SERVICES FY2023THE WOODHILL GROUP, LLC1901
1,207.20 TRUCK #328 NEW TIRES & REPAIRSTIRE CITY TIRE PROS12528-1
5,280.00 2023.163ELECTRIC LINE CLEARANCE  (3-PERSON $132/HR & 2-PERSON $110/HR)  TOP TO BOTTOM TREE SERVICE, LLC151

50.08 UNIFORM SERVICES - MARSHALL HOUSE 1/25/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620054176
63.50 UNIFORM SERVICES - DPW/GARAGE 1/25/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620054173
167.46 UNIFORM SERVICES - ELECTRIC/FIBER 1/25/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620054175
65.27 UNIFORM SERVICES - POWER HOUSE 1/25/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620054174
38.70 UNIFORM SERVICES - WASTE WATER 1/25/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620054171

Page 16 of 174



APPROVAL LIST FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 3/3Page:02/24/2023 05:50 PM
User: KWAGNER
DB: Marshall

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 02/24/2023 - 02/24/2023
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

AMOUNT
PO
NUMBERDESCRIPTION

VENDOR
NAME

INVOICE
NUMBER

41.44 UNIFORM SERVICES - WATER 1/25/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620054177
50.08 UNIFORM SERVICES - MARSHALL HOUSE 2/1/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620054896
52.40 UNIFORM SERVICES - DPW/GARAGE 2/1/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620054893
122.46 UNIFORM SERVICES - ELECTRIC/FIBER 2/1/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620054895
68.12 UNIFORM SERVICES - POWER HOUSE 2/1/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620054894
38.70 UNIFORM SERVICES - WASTE WATER 2/1/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620054891
41.44 UNIFORM SERVICES - WATER 2/1/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620054897
54.37 UNIFORM SERVICES - MARSHALL HOUSE 2/8/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620055586
56.69 UNIFORM SERVICES - DPW/GARAGE 2/8/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620055583
149.43 UNIFORM SERVICES - ELECTRIC/FIBER 2/8/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620055585
70.63 UNIFORM SERVICES - POWER HOUSE 2/8/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620055584
44.61 UNIFORM SERVICES - WASTE WATER 2/8/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620055581
44.72 UNIFORM SERVICES - WATER 2/8/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620055587
390.19 CUST NO. 859103 WATER PLANT SUPPLIESUSABLUEBOOK253297

7,152.50 ASSESSING SERVICES MARCH 2023 & COST OF ASSESSMENT NOTICESV & V ASSESSING LLC1380
5,940.00 ACCT NO. MAR11 EMAIL MIGRATION LABOR DOWNPAYMENTVC3 INC95886

83.61 UB refund for account: 3004450022WILLIAMS, HEATHER02/24/2023
1,725,119.34 GRAND TOTAL: 

Page 17 of 174



APPROVAL LIST FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 1/1Page:03/02/2023 04:19 PM
User: KWAGNER
DB: Marshall

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 03/07/2023 - 03/07/2023
UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN

AMOUNT
PO
NUMBERDESCRIPTION

VENDOR
NAME

INVOICE
NUMBER

1,223.62 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 NETONIX WISP SWITCHAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1G6J-39KX-D4GC
(1,223.62)ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 CREDIT MEMO (NETONIX WISP SWITCH)AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1RJG-QX4C-7L46

51.98 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 MAILER ENVELOPESAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.16QX-N47X-1LXJ
44.54 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 DUAL MONITOR MOUNTAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1XMV-MRVF-YP1H
68.97 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 KEYBOARD & MOUSE SETSAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1NWT-H733-CQHN
249.63 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 BLUEPRINT RACKAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1GWV-QXJG-7DJT
26.74 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 FOLDER, SHARPIESAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1P6P-C1R1-CYTD
121.64 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 STEAM MOP & PADSAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1MTM-1TKP-77CQ
165.16 GARAGE/STREETS - FIRE EXTINGUISHERSAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-504126
59.90 GARAGE/STREETS - GREASEAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-504195
78.46 GARAGE/STREETS - CLEANER, GLOSSAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-504186
15.78 WATER - CLEANER, PROTECTANTAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-504229
70.18 GARAGE/STREETS - TEST CLIPS, 20 PC PROBE KITAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-504208
25.19 GARAGE/STREETS - FUEL FILTERAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-504278
16.90 GARAGE/STREETS - AIR/OIL FILTERAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-504272
436.10 ACCT NO. CIT123 LS-210 HOT WATER/NITRITE (ENGINE #3)BEAVER RESEARCH COMPANY0353953-IN

1,347.19 MARSHALL HOUSE - WATER TANK REPAIR & PIPING IN BOILER ROOMBT PIPING SERVICES30214125407
46.16 CUST NO. 1650 - MARSHALL HOUSE (PAINT SUPPLIES)DARLING ACE HARDWARE613382
234.97 CUST NO. 1650 - MARSHALL HOUSE (MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES)DARLING ACE HARDWARE613448

4.78 CUST NO. 1650 - ELECTRIC (KEYS)DARLING ACE HARDWARE613632
197.50 CUST NO. 1650 - MARSHALL HOUSE (MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES)DARLING ACE HARDWARE613647
27.58 CUST NO. 1650 - WATER (TRUCK BED COATING)DARLING ACE HARDWARE613716
7.37 CUST NO. 1650 - MARSHALL HOUSE (NUTS & BOLTS)DARLING ACE HARDWARE613781
9.59 CUST NO. 1650 - ELECTRIC (BATTERIES)DARLING ACE HARDWARE613770

37.97 CUST NO. 1650 - MARSHALL HOUSE (BRUSH & CLEANER)DARLING ACE HARDWARE613854
57.98 CUST NO. 1650 - MARSHALL HOUSE (HOSE & NOZZLE)DARLING ACE HARDWARE613860
1.98 CUST NO. 1650 - MARSHALL HOUSE (SEALANT)DARLING ACE HARDWARE613927
4.74 CUST NO. 1650 - MARSHALL HOUSE (SEALANT)DARLING ACE HARDWARE613932
4.59 CUST NO. 1650 - WATER (WIRE CONNECTORS)DARLING ACE HARDWARE614090

54.95 CUST NO. 1650 - MARSHALL HOUSE (CAULK & CEMENT)DARLING ACE HARDWARE614095
56.97 CUST NO. 1650 - MARSHALL HOUSE (TOILET SEATS)DARLING ACE HARDWARE614156

1,472.00 CLIENT NO. 003154 SERVICES THROUGH 1/31/2023DUNCAN & ALLEN LLP45050
708.00 ANNUAL MAINTENANCE CONTRACT ERPP ICP/ICX PMELECTION SOURCE23-437

1,151.00 WATER PLANT SERVICE CALL 2/15/2023ERIC DALE HEATING & AIR CONDI123039
314.00 CUST NO. 5277 FLEX COUPLINGSETNA SUPPLYS104964397.001

1,001.61 GARAGE - WASHDOWN GUN 300PSIFREDRICKSON SUPPLY, LLC12238
35.00 ACCT NO. 3542611 SERVICES AT CITY HALLGRIFFIN PEST SOLUTIONS2317540
909.00 CUSTOMER: MUNMARS - INSPECTION & REPORTING FEB 2023HYDROCORP0071151-IN
846.00 CUST NO. 8216 GENERATOR SERVICEINGERSOLL-RAND INDUSTRIAL U.S., INC31040418
221.65 MARSHALL HOUSE - BUILDING MAINTENANCE SUPPLIESJ AND K PLUMBING SUPPLY29962

18,216.00 2023.185APPRENTICE LINEMAN SCHOOLING - SCHIPPER, ERB, & PEHRSONJOINT APPRENTICESHIP & TRAININGII2300021
8,511.06 2022.110SERVICE BODY FOR F-250 TRUCK  QUOTE # KD00002382KNAPHEIDE TRUCK EQUIPMENTF99517

91.12 0.67 TONS COLD PATCHLAKELAND ASPHALT CORPORATION42024
164.73 MARSHALL HOUSE - PVC TRIM, ADHESIVELEGG LUMBER27780
87.80 AIRPORT - LUMBER & MATERIALSLEGG LUMBER27804
10.99 AIRPORT - STEEL DEMON TOOLLEGG LUMBER27825

4,800.00 2023.188MARSHALL HOUSE CONSULTING FEES FEB 2023MEDALLION MANAGEMENT, INC.M500-133
7,831.37 2023.188MARSHALL HOUSE PAYROLL, TRAINING, & HEALTH INSURANCEMEDALLION MANAGEMENT, INC.M500-132

7.40 ACCT NO. 1400 MARKERSNAPA OF MARSHALL615641
8.63 ACCT NO. 26140 DESK CALENDAROFFICE 3602513617

194.00 CUST ID: 100402 SOCKET WRENCHPOWER LINE SUPPLY56723168
16.82 CUST ID: 100402 SCREWDRIVERPOWER LINE SUPPLY56723620
977.50 CUST ID: 100402 CABLE ROLLERPOWER LINE SUPPLY56724715
770.00 CUST ID: 100402 #2 ACSRPOWER LINE SUPPLY56724513
160.71 CUST ID: 100402 40AMP FUSELINKPOWER LINE SUPPLY56724493
153.75 CUST ID: 100402 25AMP FUSELINKPOWER LINE SUPPLY56724492
143.00 CUST ID: 100402 TRUCK CLEANERPOWER LINE SUPPLY56724731
270.00 RECPRO SSL CERTIFICATE & 1 YEAR DOMAIN NAME RENEWAL THROUGH 2/1/24RC SYSTEMS, INC.19491
794.63 ACCT NO. 1654883 REPAIRS TO TRUCK #324TEREX CORPORATION7293048

3,671.11 2023.061ACCT NO. 2475-6137-6 MARSHALL HOUSE COMPLETE FLOORING PER UNITTHE SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO.1346-2
873.35 2023.061ACCT NO. 2475-6137-6 MARSHALL HOUSE COMPLETE FLOORING PER UNITTHE SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO.1347-0
495.00 POLICE LEADERSHIP TRAINING COURSE - POTTER, MATTHEWTODD HILL OF LEO TRAINING & CONSULT2/21/2023
54.37 UNIFORM SERVICES - MARSHALL HOUSE 2/15/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620056267
56.69 UNIFORM SERVICES - DPW & GARAGE 2/15/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620056264
190.52 UNIFORM SERVICES - ELECTRIC & FIBER 2/15/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620056266
70.63 UNIFORM SERVICES - POWER HOUSE 2/15/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620056265
41.44 UNIFORM SERVICES - WASTE WATER 2/15/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620056262
44.72 UNIFORM SERVICES - WATER 2/15/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620056268
54.37 UNIFORM SERVICES - MARSHALL HOUSE 2/22/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620056973
56.69 UNIFORM SERVICES - DPW & GARAGE 2/22/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620056970
170.92 UNIFORM SERVICES - ELECTRIC & FIBER 2/22/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620056972
70.63 UNIFORM SERVICES - POWER HOUSE 2/22/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620056971
41.81 UNIFORM SERVICES - WASTE WATER 2/22/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620056968
44.72 UNIFORM SERVICES - WATER 2/22/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620056974

59,330.23 GRAND TOTAL: 

Page 18 of 174



 

ITEM 12.A 

 
  
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
FROM: Derek N. Perry, City Manager 

Joshua Lankerd, Chief of Police 
Marguerite Davenport, Director of Public Services 

DATE: March 6, 2023  
SUBJECT: STEPS OF VALHALLA SPECIAL EVENT  
  
 
The Path of the Old Ways non-profit organization has made a request for three events for 
2023.  The first being the Steps Of Valhalla which is a  public event that focuses on Viking 
people and culture.   They are requesting use of Stuart’s Landing May 4th – 7th .  This will be the 
third event held at Stuart's Landing by The Path of the Old Ways. 
  
They are requesting council approval for limited camping, campfires, and alcohol 
sales/consumption, which are permissible subject to City Council approval (Chapter 91: Parks 
and Recreation Ordinance, Chapter 95: Fire Protection).   
  
They will be responsible for obtaining the State of Michigan liquor license and for the completion 
of our liability waiver and for meeting our liability insurance requirements as a prerequisite of the 
event approval. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
If City services are required, the organizers would be responsible for the costs per the Special 
Events Policy.  There is a park rental fee for the use of the park and electric utilities. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Steps of Valhalla Special Event Application subject to completion of the Park Use 
License Agreement, Proof of Liability Insurance and State of Michigan Alcohol required licenses 
and approvals.    
 

Page 19 of 174



I,iid[
----,:es-?==.

49};i;j¥£Czyo;?-~f
Micbigar,

City Of Marshall
323 West Michigan Ave

Marshall, MI  49068
Phrmp.  ?f;0 7R 1   < 1 R?

Fax: 269.781.2878

Special Events Application
7+„,,,„,+„"+,  D1.ir\r-J=11,\i.+  -,,^1,  :+a,,^  ®r  ^^,~„~1-+al"  I,\ tl,,,+ +1,a  ^,+"1;-A+i.^,~  ,` ,,,-  1+ --.-- ``ar-J=J  a--1;^1,1-,.~  ---r`;L1-   t`r..+A,`..+I/..//.in .."...  JL L-t+o~  JLJLi  `Ju.  -I+-L|  |.-|J.1  t+LJ  -uilTJLu.-JL/   o`/  uJLu.  |iJ.-ui/L/|L-.+u`/il  `/ULJ.1/-I:/I.`J--oLJ`+u  .+`>  `iui-J.u/   .+LJ. |Jl/o®|uJL-)   Vy luL`/`-|

iJeeecessary delays. Please retiirT_i_ the Com.pleted, signed application, wit~h. any necessary attachaents, to the C`ity Clerk's
Office, at the address shown above.  Special Events must be approved by the City Council, which typically meets twice

per month. We recommend submitting your application at least 90 days before your organization wishes to receive
approval, to allow time to work through issues with the staff, and to auow for the possibility that the City Council may
still see issues that should be addressed before atinroval.

NameofspecfalEvent   s+e,ps  o€  ffi                                      ........... __
Is the sponsoring organization:  H Non-Profit, please provide status letter*         I For profit

;:a:|s:fa=ep|=8ecAas#h:e£::og3difj-jig
E-utaJriAddit@b(ca).Vi.k;yt)LLJarn./trfahsd@r€ryte.{\-for"

Event Information

*A separate event schedule and/or description may be attached in response to questions  1 through 5.

**For anv question. if there is not room to include a comDlete resDonse. 0lease include the resconse on a seDarate

attachment and note "see attached". When providing information in an attachment please refei to the appropriate question
number(s) to help the City staff review the application.

1.    Requested day(s), date(s), and time(s) of the Special Event: +-\   -rlt_h_._
rTtw  v+\ fcsrluq)                                  u

2.    Is t]ici-c a I-cq-Licstcd altcl-r.ati-,'c da€c(a)?  I   Yes              E}  }`To

If yes, please provide the alternative date(s):

3.   Please describe the event(S):   V ``WQg    +test.th I

4.   W±£tktbererTuestedlocaticE(s)cf+±9eveE«s):   S+U®rl'S     /rend,..l/}5             .-.-.-....---

5.    Does this eventrequire a street closure? I  Yes            H  No   Street Name:

Start and End Locations:

Page 1 of 5

Page 20 of 174



Special Everit Application

Please complete the following check list regarding your event and special needs:  More detailed instructions ai.e
included on the following oases.  Please use additional sheets where aoprooriate foi. more detailed responses.

AUe,,eru,
6.    Is this event expected to oc_c.ur again in a fu

Normal Annual Date? o€be
e calendar year?

7.    Have you included a map indicating the location of your
8.    Is yuill  cvciiL iucaicd wiliiili liic I)uwiiii)wli Dt;vcioplliciii Auliiuiily?,
n         T`,`  _.   ..1.^   ^ .... 1..__ ....,,.. ~i_   +_  .... ^i.;1.:d.  _,^ ....I..~  ,,,.. +1.;._   +1.^   ^..^...  _..^^®7.     JJuiD Lu. aptJiiuau. wiDu iu piuiiluil  vlliuiii5 wiiillll lil. iv.i.1i al.a!

10.  Does the applicant plan to include vending as part of this event?*
11.  Will this event include the use of signs?
12.  Will the event require the hanging of a banner?
i3.  Is Liic applicaril I-cqucslilig spcuitti pal-kills zirrarigeilieiils, suuii ais I-csci-vcd pal-kills?*

I-beb'.i.Se-i-vi.es
14.  Is the applicant requiring utility connections, such as electric or water services?*
15.  Does the applicant require other public services?

a.    Barricades
'L,.     Fc„lcillg

c.     Sti.eec s-wi-eepii-ig

d.    Mowing
Rubbish Containers
Picnic Tables

~        ,     1, .
CcbbaLiuli uf Lawli bprLliiciuigs
A+1_   ..-
ULllC;I

Qua.ritrty..   L| -£

Map including indicating location of these services?*
16.  Do you plan to utilize volunteers to help run the event?
17.  Do you plan to rent a park facility for the event?

Fu.I)i.lcsofeLy

18.  Docs the applicai.it ha-v-c aJii-y-special sccui-ity-oi. safety cdnccms?
19.  Are you requesting assistance from the Policeffire Departments?
20. Will the event include loud or unusual sounds?

a.    Musicians
b.     Sillgcrs

c.     Ail-ipliiri:led AiiiiuLiii.ei-s

d.    Camival Rides
e.    Motor vehicle Noises
f.     Other

2i.  `W7iidL ar-c Liic piaruicd iiuur'b fur loud ui-uniusuai suullds?

yesrfNo
yesriNO
Yes_I`tu  {  --
\,__                     \T`I |,D                ||u
Yes     X`     No
yesTNo

Yes              No
yes=No
I CS                    1\u

Yes              Nu
Yes              No
Yes     K   No
yes_X_    No

22.  `vvill tiic c,-v-ciit include -di-usual 1igziting `crc--y-o-rid 'w'hat is i-Iori-1-ial at that iocatioi-1?

Alcohol Consumption
23.  Are alcoholic beverages proposed to be served as part of the event?
24. Will you be utilizing a LLC regulated boundary?

•            J1         ~          .1   T\.     J    '     '    r                                                                                                 ''          a
25.  AIC; yuu ubulg Lllc Du.till JJlbLIll;L lul  uuLduul  ill.uilui uullbulllpLlull;

26.  IIa-y-a all i-icccssai-y liq.doi.1icerfuses been obtain at tl-i€ tit-I-ie of `dis applicatioi-I?

27.  Does the applicant have any other requests that are not listed in this form?

JC

Not
No¥
NoX

}`'Otr
Yes    ¥     No
Yes     D(      No
i,\T
I CS                     1\U

i,_-                     \T.`JOB                     1|u

yesFNo
28.  The applicant is require to provide $1,000,000 of liability insurance coverage with respect to the event; have you

attached a certificate of Insurance listing the city of Marshall as an additionally insured? Yes              No

Ouestionnaire Ex|)lanations
Page 2 of 5Page 21 of 174



Special Events Application

Armlicant Signature

I heail]y affirm that the information is true to the best of my knowledse and belief, and agree that the applicant will be
1                   1     ..                     r,ii          /-i.,             r`  r          I       11              1,1       ,

1ciequlrai'ulc; fui  iiiaiiilg uc;1 `Lciiu lii4L tile c; vc;lil fulliiwb lilt; ui diucuni;cb, I uic;a, cuiu icguidiiuiib ui  Liic i,lLy  ui lvld[biiaii aiiu Lildl

the event +ckes place in 3cccrdaiiLce `,','ith the appkcatien as apprc>ved by the Marshall City Cc>uncil, incliizding a:i`,'
conditions placed thereon.ehaE..--^  `--`1 : __ ..+  C1 : _.` ^*,.._ .J`rtjii.aiii Lji5iictiui ..

I pr]nted Name ±..i._haj cap+|                 Date _/_,/@S ,`_±ri
The AF'PLicANT does hereby agree (o inciemnify, holci harmiess anci deT-enci (he City-and each oT~ its officers, off-lcials, employees,
agents and a`]thnri7ed vnliinteers fmm any and all loss;  Iiahilitv. fines.  nen®rimailalties, forfeitiires,  costs and damages (whether in
contract, tort or strict liability, including but not limited to persoh;I injuiv, de=tfi at any time and property damage) incurred by CITY,
OWNER,  PERMITTEE (Renter) or any other person, and from any and all claims, demands and actions in  law or equity (including
attorney's fee and litigation expenses), arising or alleged to have arisen directly or indirectly out of the operation and use of CITY
property and public right of way. APPLICANT'S obligations under the preceding sentence shall apply regardless of whether City or any
of its officers, officials, employees, agents or authorized volunteers are negligent, but shall not apply to any loss,  liability, fines,
penalties, torteitures, costs or clamages caused solely by the gross negligence, or caused by the wllltul misconcluct, ot CI I Y or any ot
ite riffirore   ^ffiriale   omnlr``;of}e   anonle  or aLlthnri7aH \/r`liintaore-__    _---_--_,    _---_`_-_,    _-.'r._,  ___,   _`e_``-_    _`    __  _.`_-.__  _    .  _-_--`-_  _-_-

Page 5 of 5

Page 22 of 174



  
Form Revision Date 07/2016 

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION 
For use by DOMESTIC NONPROFIT CORPORATION 

Pursuant to the provisions of Act 162, Public Acts of 1982, the undersigned corporation executes the following Articles: 

ARTICLE I  

The name of the corporation is:

PATH OF THE OLD WAYS  

 

ARTICLE II 

The purpose or purposes for which the corporation is formed are: 

For The furtherment of Scandinavian and Celtic Education, Religion and History. For the Purpose of Charity, to individuals in need and/or 
entities that are in need of assistance to further our Education, historic and Religious teachings.

 

ARTICLE III 

The Corporation is formed upon Non StockNon Stock   basis. 

If formed on a stock basis, the total number of shares the corporation has authority to issue is 
 

 

If formed on a nonstock basis, the description and value of its real property assets are (if none, insert "none"):

none 

The description and value of its personal property assets are (if none, insert "none"):

None 

The corporation is to be financed under the following general plan:

Fundraising and donations. 

The Corporation is formed on a DirectorshipDirectorship   basis. 

ARTICLE IV 
The street address of the registered office of the corporation and the name of the resident agent at the registered office (P.O. 
Boxes are not acceptable):

 

1.  Agent Name: TREASA DAVIDSON  

2. Street Address: 279 E. MICHIGAN AVE  

Apt/Suite/Other:  

City: GALESBURG  

State: MI Zip Code: 49053  

3. Registered Office Mailing Address: 

P.O. Box or Street 
Address: P.O. BOX 243  

Apt/Suite/Other:  

City: GALESBURG  

State: MIMI  Zip Code: 49053  

Filed by Corporations Division Administrator   Filing Number: 221447373380     Date: 07/27/2021

Page 23 of 174



ARTICLE V 

The name(s) and address(es) of the incorporator(s) is (are) as follows:

Name Residence or Business Address

TREASA DAVIDSON 279 E. MICHIGAN AVE, GALESBURG, MI 49053 USA 

LEWIS J. K. DAVIDSON III 279 E. MICHIGAN AVE, GALESBURG, MI 49053 USA 

Signed this 22nd Day of July, 2021 by the incorporator(s). 

Signature Title Title if ''Other'' was selected 

Treasa L. Davidson Incorporator 

   

By selecting ACCEPT, I hereby acknowledge that this electronic document is being signed in accordance with the Act. I further certify 
that to the best of my knowledge the information provided is true, accurate, and in compliance with the Act.

 

nmlkj Decline       nmlkji Accept 

Page 24 of 174



 

 

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS 

 

FILING ENDORSEMENT 

 

 
This is to Certify that the  
 

for 
 
 
 

 
      ID Number: 

 
 
 
 
 

received by electronic transmission on                                     , is hereby endorsed. 

Filed on                                       , by the Administrator.        

  
The document is effective on the date filed, unless a subsequent effective date within 90 days after  

received date is stated in the document. 

 

  

 

  

      

      

     
       In testimony whereof, I have hereunto set my  
       hand and affixed the Seal of the Department,  
     

 
 

PATH OF THE OLD WAYS

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

802708500

July 27, 2021

July 22, 2021

in the City of Lansing, this 27th dayin the City of Lansing, this 27th dayin the City of Lansing, this 27th dayin the City of Lansing, this 27th day
of July, 2021.of July, 2021.of July, 2021.of July, 2021.

Filed by Corporations Division Administrator   Filing Number: 221447373380     Date: 07/27/2021

Linda Clegg, DirectorLinda Clegg, DirectorLinda Clegg, DirectorLinda Clegg, Director
Corporations, Securities & Commercial Licensing BureauCorporations, Securities & Commercial Licensing BureauCorporations, Securities & Commercial Licensing BureauCorporations, Securities & Commercial Licensing Bureau

Page 25 of 174



Page 26 of 174



 

ITEM 12.B 

 
  
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
FROM: Derek N. Perry, City Manager 

Joshua Lankerd, Chief of Police 
Marguerite Davenport, Director of Public Services 

DATE: March 6, 2023  
SUBJECT: ALBAN HEFIN - CELTIC FESTIVAL SPECIAL EVENT REQUEST  
  
 
The Path of the Old Ways non-profit organization has made a request for three events for 
2023.  The second event  Alban Hefin Celtic Festival is a  public event that focuses on Celtic 
people and culture.   They are requesting use of Stuart’s Landing June 15th -18th.  This will be 
the fourth event held at this location by The Path of the Old Ways.  
  
They are requesting council approval for limited camping, campfires, and alcohol 
sales/consumption which are permissible subject to City Council approval (Chapter 91: Parks 
and Recreation Ordinance, Chapter 95: Fire Protection).   
  
They will be responsible for obtaining the State of Michigan liquor license and for the completion 
of our liability waiver and for meeting our liability insurance requirements as a prerequisite of the 
event approval. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
If City services are required, the organizers would be responsible for the costs per the Special 
Events Policy.  There is a park rental fee for the use of the park and for use of utilities. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Alban Hefin- Celtic Festival Special Event Application subject to completion of the Park 
Use License Agreement, Proof of Liability Insurance and State of Michigan Alcohol required 
licenses and approvals.   
 

Page 27 of 174



  
Form Revision Date 07/2016 

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION 
For use by DOMESTIC NONPROFIT CORPORATION 

Pursuant to the provisions of Act 162, Public Acts of 1982, the undersigned corporation executes the following Articles: 

ARTICLE I  

The name of the corporation is:

PATH OF THE OLD WAYS  

 

ARTICLE II 

The purpose or purposes for which the corporation is formed are: 

For The furtherment of Scandinavian and Celtic Education, Religion and History. For the Purpose of Charity, to individuals in need and/or 
entities that are in need of assistance to further our Education, historic and Religious teachings.

 

ARTICLE III 

The Corporation is formed upon Non StockNon Stock   basis. 

If formed on a stock basis, the total number of shares the corporation has authority to issue is 
 

 

If formed on a nonstock basis, the description and value of its real property assets are (if none, insert "none"):

none 

The description and value of its personal property assets are (if none, insert "none"):

None 

The corporation is to be financed under the following general plan:

Fundraising and donations. 

The Corporation is formed on a DirectorshipDirectorship   basis. 

ARTICLE IV 
The street address of the registered office of the corporation and the name of the resident agent at the registered office (P.O. 
Boxes are not acceptable):

 

1.  Agent Name: TREASA DAVIDSON  

2. Street Address: 279 E. MICHIGAN AVE  

Apt/Suite/Other:  

City: GALESBURG  

State: MI Zip Code: 49053  

3. Registered Office Mailing Address: 

P.O. Box or Street 
Address: P.O. BOX 243  

Apt/Suite/Other:  

City: GALESBURG  

State: MIMI  Zip Code: 49053  

Filed by Corporations Division Administrator   Filing Number: 221447373380     Date: 07/27/2021

Page 28 of 174



ARTICLE V 

The name(s) and address(es) of the incorporator(s) is (are) as follows:

Name Residence or Business Address

TREASA DAVIDSON 279 E. MICHIGAN AVE, GALESBURG, MI 49053 USA 

LEWIS J. K. DAVIDSON III 279 E. MICHIGAN AVE, GALESBURG, MI 49053 USA 

Signed this 22nd Day of July, 2021 by the incorporator(s). 

Signature Title Title if ''Other'' was selected 

Treasa L. Davidson Incorporator 

   

By selecting ACCEPT, I hereby acknowledge that this electronic document is being signed in accordance with the Act. I further certify 
that to the best of my knowledge the information provided is true, accurate, and in compliance with the Act.

 

nmlkj Decline       nmlkji Accept 

Page 29 of 174



 

 

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS 

 

FILING ENDORSEMENT 

 

 
This is to Certify that the  
 

for 
 
 
 

 
      ID Number: 

 
 
 
 
 

received by electronic transmission on                                     , is hereby endorsed. 

Filed on                                       , by the Administrator.        

  
The document is effective on the date filed, unless a subsequent effective date within 90 days after  

received date is stated in the document. 

 

  

 

  

      

      

     
       In testimony whereof, I have hereunto set my  
       hand and affixed the Seal of the Department,  
     

 
 

PATH OF THE OLD WAYS

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

802708500

July 27, 2021

July 22, 2021

in the City of Lansing, this 27th dayin the City of Lansing, this 27th dayin the City of Lansing, this 27th dayin the City of Lansing, this 27th day
of July, 2021.of July, 2021.of July, 2021.of July, 2021.

Filed by Corporations Division Administrator   Filing Number: 221447373380     Date: 07/27/2021

Linda Clegg, DirectorLinda Clegg, DirectorLinda Clegg, DirectorLinda Clegg, Director
Corporations, Securities & Commercial Licensing BureauCorporations, Securities & Commercial Licensing BureauCorporations, Securities & Commercial Licensing BureauCorporations, Securities & Commercial Licensing Bureau

Page 30 of 174



r:``Bi

4i,:`i-?;ii=:Zyo%?-€(
Mi¢biga;i,

City Of Marshall
323 West Michigan Ave

Marshall, MI  49068
T}hntip.  ?f:a  7R1   < 1 R?

Fax: 269.781.2878

Special Events Application
r-..I.^..+^..+.1)1a^r`a  f=11  ;`|i+  an+`1-i+a.-`  n-;`.`..m`1-+dlTT  r`.` ul-.`+ +1-a  ."`.-1;^^h.^..  ^-..  t`a .-.- r`^.--c`aJ  .`-^iii./`1rlw  ..-. `^r`f`;1-1a   `Tr;+L^"+I/JyuJ.W ....   JI  L`/u\>u  JLJLu  `/u.  I/.+uJl  l.-lil  `+0  -`JJLIJ.I/J ,-.- I/   0`/  .LL..L.  L`LL-.+[J+/l|-a.|`uJl  `+ULL  I/-I/JLuu`/OO-ul  .+1>  `|`+JL-I.`l/   WL.  +/`/DL)||/I.-)   YY luJ.u`+I/

i.imecessary delays, Please retii!TT_ th,e f,c`mp!eted, signed a.ppfica.tion, with ai±y nec`essary a.tta.chments, tci the C`ity rler_k_'s

Office, at the address shown above.  Special Events must be approved by the City Council, which typically meets twice
per month. We recommend submitting your application at least 90 days before your organization wishes to receive
approval, to allow time to work through issues with the staff, and to allow for the possibility that the City Council may
still see issues that should be addressed before at)nroval.

ADDiicant information

Name of special Event: A\bar`  tle~fi\/`  ~  C£ \ i \C_ fcLqtwc* \

Is the sponsoring organization:   in Non-Profit, please provide status letter*         I For profit

rmc=LtrL+T4TL26Mailingmilling Address:

:u:|Se:st:h=ec_°£e_b£€1aesha_:f@T£'mTTceuqp:o::~3ui_3?q_ifiaa
EindfiAddies(es).R¢le€+\ioldLtkcp@,€rYl±l:l.Cor``

Event Information
*A separate event schedule and/or description may be attached in response to questions 1 through 5.

**For anv ciuestion` if there is not room to include a comDlete resoonse. olease include the resoonse on a seDarate

attachment and note "see attached". When providing infomation in an attachment, please refer to the appropriate question
number(s) to help the City staff review the application.

1.   Requested day(she date(s), and time(s) of the special Event:    `Je©_    rfgra  ~   affgfa
A-  /5~+1 -  1qt=

1       T-+I.^'.^  _  '.__..A-+^J  _,+A -..-., =-.^  i_,A/-\O  rl   |J_-•4.    JLD `l|.l` a..vu.i.L.u all.|]Ia`.v` uat,.\o/.  I-iLia  ,

If yes, please provide the alternative

3.    Please describe the event(s):

4       \171.a+ :c.  +ha pan.loo+ad  lnnofinTi/ci\  nf +I.a o`7ori+/c`..,       ' ' -I-. LL.  `.I ---- `1` ---.. `.`--`,`--'-`,-'\..,  `,1.11`, `` ' I,Ill,\`J,.S+Lrfer\`S     lclvJ"ts               ._ .............

5.    Does this event require a street closure? I  Yes            5Z No   street Name:

Start and End Locations:

Page 1 of 5

Page 31 of 174



Special Event Application

Please complete the following check list regarding your event and special needs:  More detailed instructions are
included on the following oages.  Please use additional sheets where aoorooriate for more detailed responses.

-,uetlerou
6.    Is this event expected to occur again in a future calendar year?

Normal Armual Date?  / ` i^±Q+fe  ~
7.    Have you included a map indicating the location of your event?*
8.    Is your cvcnL iu`;atctl wiinili inc DuwuLowu Dcvciopmciii AULiiuiity?
A         n^._  +1.^   ,` .... 1..^_ ...... :.1.   .``  .... ^1.;1_:..,^..I;` ..,...... +1.;..  .1__   ^.,^..+  _.._^r.]r.    I+u.a uii cltjpu`,IiilL wiDu Lu PiuiuuiL y.miulg wiulm lu. .Y.l|. all4;

10.  Does the applicant plan to include vending as part of this event?*
11.  Will this event include the use of signs?
12. Will the event require the hanging of a banner?
i3.  Is the appiicaril 1-cqueslilig spci;ial parkiiig arrarigcincliis, such as rcscrvcd parking?*

I'ul}li. Se-I--vices

14. Is the applicant requinng utility connections, such as electric or water services?*
15.  Does the applicant require other public services?

Barricades
Fc,Jll,ilJg
cl+..A ^+  C1'.'^ _ ,. : ,-_® u t,.. L> yy .ir;iiig

Mowing
Rubbish Contalners
Picnic Tables

A          ,      11,
Ccbsaliuli uf Liiwli ®piilmilig>

Ctliei-

Quantity: e~  I-8
€   C)-S

Map including indicating location of these services?*
16.  Do you plan to utilize volunteers to help run the event?
17.  Do you plan to rent a park facility for the event?

Publ;c Sofeiy
18.  Docs tic, apphcaii: 1-ia-yTc a-a-y. special sac-di~ity-cli. safcfy. coiicci~riis?

19.  Are you requesting assistance from the Policeffire Departments?
20. Will the event include loud or unusual sounds?

a.    Musicians
io.     singers

c.    Aiiiphfied Aiiiit]iiilcei+s
d.    Camival RIdes
e.    Motor vehicle Noises
f.     Other

2i.  WiiziL ar-c  L-Ilo piariiicd liuur-a fui-iuud ur uniusuai suunids?

yesinNfj
yesrfuNo
Yes               I`tu   Y         _

YesriNo
yes   <    No
Yes              No

\T
I CS                 |\u

Yes              No
1r
I  CS                     IY|'
\,.-.\T.1 CS                  ||u

Yes              No
yes=No
Yes_  ` f   No

22.  `,I,rill dec c-y-ciit iiicl-eec -di-ds`dal ligbtiiig bc,-y-Offid -w.hat is lit,i-1-rial a£ .riat localiofl?
Alcohol Consumption

23. Are alcoholic beverages proposed to be served as part of the event?
24. Will you be utilizing a LLC regulated boundary?

•              ,1          ri           .1   1.` .,.,     r                    .1                    1          1        1                                       ,.           r`
25.  Ale yuu ublllg Lllc  Duuldl JJlbLIluL lul  ullluuul  tlluullul uullbullpLlull/

2€.  IIa-v-c, all iicccssarty' liquoi- 1icci-rfecs bccii Ji3taiii at `d-ic tii-1-ic of diis appiicatiofi?

27. Does the applicant have any other requests that are not listed in this form?

}f i)      a/
NoX
Nor
No

yes_    rf    No
Yes      ch     No
17\T
I  ct>                        1Yu

i,-_                    \T_i::E#:
28.  The applicant is require to provide $ 1,000,000 of liability insurance coverage with respect to the event; have you

attached a Certificate of Insurance listing the City of Marshall as an additionally insured? Yes_No    X

Ouestionnaire Explanations
Page 2 of 5

Page 32 of 174



Special Events Application

APDlicant Siapature

I hearby affirm that the information is true to the best of my knowledge and belief, and agree that the applicant win be
1 qu`jiibrulc fur mdiiiig I;t;1 iditt dra`i thG cvt;lit fufiuwb the ui diuoui;tso, 1 ultfo, anu icgunaiiuiib ui uic i,iLy ui iviaibiiau anu unaLii                 i     ,.                   r,1         zi.,            r`.         1      11             1   ,1       ,

the event takes place in accordance with the application as approved by the Marsk.all City Council, inchrding any
conditions placed thereon.

AppLca;]tsL8riaru-cgQ±eeung±@4±
raitplrjTtiEEFREunE]f EE mrmm RE tl
I ne ArrLIl;AN I  does nereoy agree to indemnify, hold harmiess and cieT-end the C,iT`y. and each oT-its officers, officiais, employees,
agents and a`Ithori7ed vohinteers from any and all loss: liahilitv. fines. nen®r]mailalties. forfeitures. costs anr] damafles /whether in
contract, tort or strict liability, including but not limited to persohal injuiv, de:tfi at any time and proberty damage) inchrred by CITY,
OWNER, PERMITTEE (Renter) or any other person, and from any and all claims, demands and actions in law or equity (including
attorney's fee and litigation expenses), arising or alleged to have arisen directly or indirectly out of the operation and use Of CITY
property and pilblic right of way. APPLICANT'S obligations under the preceding sentence shall apply regardless of whether City or any
of its officers, officials, employees, agents or authorized volunteers are negligent, but shall not apply to any loss,  liability, fines,
penalties, torfeitures, costs or damages caused solely by the gross negllgence, or caused by the willtul misconduct, ot Cl I Y or any ot
ite hffirare   nffiriale   f]mnln`/ape   ariante nr aiithnri7erl `/nluntaf]re--_   _---_--_,   _--` -----,--.-,---,---,-. a ------------------------------  _.

Page 5 of 5

Page 33 of 174



To: The City of Marshall

From: Path of the Old Ways

January 30, 2023

We have not secured our insurance or liquor licenses, as of yet, due to the fact that we do not have 
confirmed dates. Once we have those dates confirmed, we will begin working on them. As soon as liquor 
licenses are granted, we will forward a copy to your office. As for insurance we are unable to purchase 
the actual policy until one week before the event, due to all the issues that came about from covid, our 
insurance company asks us to wait to make sure the event will actually take place, as they cannot change 
dates, places or the policy once it has been paid for. As soon as that has been paid we will send your 
office a copy of the insurance policy just as we have before. 

Our maps are not 100% complete as we are still working out where we wish to place certain things. 
However, we have a general idea which I can provide for you, if you would like. 

We are moving our official correspondences with the state of Michigan and The City of Marshall etc. over 
to our new Email at: PathoftheOldWays@gmail.com Instead of the Vikingwarriorfest – email.

As for further requests, we are asking the city of Marshall to allow us the same as last year. The use of 
Fire,  over-night camping and Alcohol sales during our event. We will need 4-5 garbage cans, (We will 
empty them ourselves. We do not need the city to do this for us.) We will also need 4-5 picnic tables, for 
our guests to use, if you have them available. 

We appreciate all the help you and your office are giving us to host these events. And we look forward to 
meeting with you to discuss these events. 

I have put in our applications for all three events for 2023, so that we can hopefully get them all approved 
at once and begin setting up our entertainment contracts and acquiring our liquor licenses, securing our 
vendors, and seeking volunteers and donations, ticket sales well in advance. We were forced to postpone 
our last event, Oct 2022, due to issues with getting entertainers, and our liquor licenses. This was partly 
my fault, due to the fact that I contracted a sever case of covid in July that lasted through a good part of 
August. We are trying to circumvent such delays, by having things set up in advanced months, just in 
case such a thing should happen again. We understand that that the city wishes to only approve up to 
two events, at a time, however, if we delay, on approving our Oct event it could mean either we need to 
find a different venue, or cancel outright, due to the sheer number of events happening in Oct. The 
number of events happening limits the number of Non-Profit Liquor licenses available to be approved, as 
it works on a first come first serve basis, and the number of events limits the number of available 
entertainers for events. So, we are asking to get all three of our events approved and scheduled, so that 
we can start signing contracts, applying for licenses and setting up insurance, as well as, securing 
vendor, selling tickets, advertising and more. We ask the city of Marshall to work with us to achieve this 
goal as we work toward the future together. 

I look forward to hearing from you soon, you can reach me on my cell phone at 269-344-7922.

Sincerely, 

Treasa L. Davidson 

President - Path of the Old Ways  

    

Page 34 of 174

mailto:PathoftheOldWays@gmail.com


 

ITEM 12.C 

 
  
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
FROM: Derek N. Perry, City Manager 

Joshua Lankerd, Chief of Police 
Marguerite Davenport, Director of Public Services 

DATE: March 6, 2023  
SUBJECT: THE DARK MASQUERADE (MICHIGAN VAMPIRE BALL) AND 

CARNIVAL OF SHADOWS  
  
 
The Path of the Old Ways non-profit organization has made a request for three events for 
2023.  The third event  is The Dark Masquerade (Michigan Vampire Ball) and Carnival of 
Shadows.  This will be a  public event that includes a vampire ball and oddities market.   They 
are requesting use of Stuart’s Landing October 20th – 22nd.  This will be the fifth event held at 
this location by The Path of the Old Ways.  
  
They are requesting council approval for limited camping, campfires, and alcohol 
sales/consumption which are permissible subject to City Council approval (Chapter 91: Parks 
and Recreation Ordinance, Chapter 95: Fire Protection).   
  
They will be responsible for obtaining the State of Michigan liquor license and for the completion 
of our liability waiver and for meeting our liability insurance requirements as a prerequisite of the 
event approval. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
If City services are required, the organizers would be responsible for the costs per the Special 
Events Policy.  There is a park rental fee for the use of the park and for use of utilities if needed. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Dark Masquerade and Carnival of Shadows Special Event Application subject to 
completion of the Park Use License Agreement, Proof of Liability Insurance and State of 
Michigan Alcohol required licenses and approvals.   
 

Page 35 of 174



r`|
'

4,;;(ifji:Zyog?-€f
Michigats

City Of Marshall
323 West Michigan Ave

Marshall, MI  49068
Phntip.  ?f:a  7R I   i 1 R?

Fax:  269.781.2878

Special Events Application
r-~..+w.+~"+.  I)1a^ro f.11  A.`+  ®n;`1-i+a .--..-  j-^.-"-1a+alu  -^ +1...+ +1^a  a-|`1;^^++.^ ..-. w-t`a -i~^^,ar-aJ  .`-~i;^1rlu ..-- ^rl4..1^1a   un.+L^"+J/..//L~ .ce/...   I  i-Liro-uiLi  `/u.  -.+-IL.  ILL,-]LiLi.  .^`>  -`/u-.I+I-.-I/   L.`/  |uu.  uJ.-ui/I/I|-.^iL`+lil  -.+lil  u-I/I. u--L]rty`~`iL  .+0  `i`+|-JLu/   .~`}  I/`/I,L)^|/JL-,   yv JL.LIL/u.

iinnprpQc:arv flplavc:   Plpac:a rptiii.ti t.hp rntTinlfited   citmpri  annliratinn   with  anv tief`ec:car`7 flttflrhttipntc:   tn the rjtv rlprk'q--_-i.i=-i_-_-_--i-:_-_-=j    _-_-_-i_-._-i  -_-i  -_-_-_-:_-i_ ---- i--_-i-_-_--_---_J(  ------,-- CJr ------ J(I  -------- __,        --___   ____1     -__  _  ____._J     -.-__ ---- _--._--_,   __     -_-~      _-_J       __--__    _

Office, at the address shown above.  Special Events must be approved by the City Council, which typically meets twice
per month. We recommend submitting your application at least 90 days before your orgaliization wishes to receive
approval, to allow time to work through issues with the staff, and to allow for the possibility that the City Council may
still see issues that should be addre`ssed before anrtrova].

=aTeofffecaE:e:t`fa*_±¥C.mt=¥:....utriIs the sponsoring organization:  E| Non-Profit, please provide status letter*         I For profit

MaiiingmimngAddressiaTq __ €.   rY\t`chT3an__4CJG             _

_GLfilealou5,   lr:;lr,   ay-?Q5Th3      _        _          __^_
cemphorie..c±Uf?-3L{L|-r+Baa

City/State/ZIP Code :

Business Phone:
`Eto- Saup

Eindii Addit"(ca). i2it Lad  J/ie 6/lbe#  @, 8 rTte} \ ` Gb ~`
Event Information

*A saparate event schedule and/or description may be attached in response to questions 1 through 5.

**For anv question. if there is not room to include a complete resDonse. Please include the response on a separate

attachment and note "see attached". When providing information in an attachment, please refer to the appropriate question
number(s) to help the City staff review the application.

1.   Requested day(s} date(s), and time(s) of the special Event:    Ck=+   tsDdhL     -@a

1        T~  +I.A-.^  ^  --A_.'^-+^J   ^1'+^ -.-. A+€-.^  J^+A,-\`|  11    i,,`^I..    JLe ul.ii a I.vLt.a.-u aiLiiiiat,ivi lLa-i`B/,  tl    1.a

If yes, please provide the altel.native date(s)

3.  pleasedescnbetheevent(s): A Vc}~P`me,  bin  4,  Oddl a(tis    rYhr\ul

4      Who+ ic]  +ho pontloc`+oH  lnno+:nr./.\  nf +Tia o`7oh+/c.\...,,,,-, I.J  .I,'a,  -I,t|IIt .,.,, |,++  A+,tr-~A\,AI\.+J'  ` ,,.---- ' -.-- \`,,.

5.    Does this eventrequire a street closure? I  Yes           a  No   Street Name:

Start and End Locations:

Page 1 of 5

Page 36 of 174



Special Event Appl.Icat.Ion

Please complete the following check fist regarding your event and special needs:  More detailed instructions are
included on the following oages.  Please use additional sheets where aDDrooriate for more detailed responses.

E=uenerui,
6.    Is this event expected to occur again in a future calendar year?

Normal Armual Date?   lAV\`€fl^rl
7.    Have you included a map indicating the location of your event?*
8.    Is your cvt;uL iiicaied within the; Duwuluwn I)cvciupinciiL Authuiily?
n         T`~  _^   +1.A   ^ .... 1..^^..+  ,,,:.1.   +`  ..... `1.;I;+..A..I:.._..,;.1 ...... 1.~   ^..^..+  _..^_r)I.     JJu.a  Lil. atJpii.aiiL  wibu Lu Piuuiijii  vLuuiii5  wiiiiili lil. LVLuL all,a.'

10.  Does the applicant plan to include vending as part of this event?*
11.  Will this event include the use of signs?
12. Will the event require the hanging of a banner?
i3.  Is the appiic:ilil rcquesling spcuial parkirig arrarigcincnis, such as rcsei-vcd parking?*

n__,_,i  .    a  __.-.±  .   _.-1 uu..- L.CI V..a.

14.  Is the applicant requiring utility connections, such as electric or water services?*
15.  Does the applicant require other public services?

a.    Barricades
lu.    Fell.ing

C1+.._ _+   C\'-._ _.-:`-_LJ u .1/1  I. W ..|J11J6

Mowing
Rubbish Containers
Picnic Tables
Cc;t>baLiulL uf Lawll Spiilikiiiigs
A+1_  I. .-
UL1|C|

Quantity, a,  u-8
L1-6-

Map including indicating location of these services?*
16.  Do you plan to utilize volunteers to help run the event?
17.  Do you plan to rent a park facility for the event?

F u.ul-I. Sofeiy
10     T`.,`.  +1_^   ^ ...,. 1;^^..+1._.,^   _ ...,... A.`;^1.._...~.~,   ~..  ~^J?.A.   ^^..^^._..0Ilo.  jjijLD  I.lil appiiicuii iiav. ally  btjLi,iai bl,|.uiiry  uj.  baiiiy  iuiiLiiiibJ

19.  Are you requesting assistance from the Policeffire Departments?
20. Will the event include loud or unusual sounds?     L|`^€t+rc,

a.    Musicians
b.     Siligcrs
_.                  A   -__-_1:r_.I       A   ._-_._..-_.,_..-1+.      J"1lpll11C;u JIJ.ullJlullc;I a

d.    Camival RIdes
e.    Motor vehicle Noises
f.     Other

2i.  WhaL arc Liic pialmc;d iiuurs fi}r loud ur uniusual buunLiis?

Yes    X'    No

YesulNo'I¢s_-I+o  DI
Yes                   }`Tc,      K         __

Yes   X       No
Yes     Y     No
YeskNo
I CS                    1\u

Yes    *     No
Yes     a,     No
Yes      X:      No

•.      117...11   +1.  ^    ^..^..+  ....  ^1.`  I  `  ,..,...,.. `.11;,._1_.:.__  1.  ^..^..I,.,1._ ..... _,.`.___^1   ^+  .1._.1  `  ,`_+..  ^..rl-L4.   W 1111111, .v.lil iiiijiuu.  uLiii.Dital 1161lilu5  ui}uiiu  wiiaL iD iiulliial aL iiic.i iulallull;

Alcohol Consumption
23. Are alcoholic beverages proposed to be served as part of the event?
24.  Will you be utilizing a LLC regulated boundary?

I          ,1       r`        .   1  n .,.,   r                                                                                  ,.        n
25.  Aic; yuu ubiiig Liic Duuifli i;ibLliuL iui  uuLduui  zii.uliul .uiiburlipiiuii!
•f      TT,`,,^   ,`11._  _  _  _,._,`._,1J  ~.. _..1;,. ^._^ ^.1.  A  ^..   _1.L_;~.   ,`.  il_  ,`   +...__  A    ^f L1.:_   _._..1:  A.`...  ^.^r)4u.  ||av. cui lil,.Lbbaiy  iiquui ii.Liib.a uiiii uuiciiii cii uii .iiiil, ul uiiD cippii.aiiuii:

27. Does the applicant have any other requests that are not listed in this form?

yes   <     No
Yes     X     No
Yct'             I`'u     *
ycs    *      }|Tc'
Yes              No

28.  The applicant is require to provide $ 1,000,000 of liability insurance coverage with respect to the event; have you
attached a Certiflcate of Insurance listing the City of Marshall as an additionally insured? Yes_No-

Ouestionnaire Ex|)lanations
Page 2 of 5

Page 37 of 174



Special Events Application

The APPLicANT does hereby agree to inciemnify,  hoici  harmless and deT-end the C,iT`T-ancj each oT-i(s officers,  officials,  employees,
ar]enls and ailthnri7ed vnl[jnteers from anv anrl all lnss.  Iiahilitv. fines.  nen®nmailalties. fnrfeitiires   costs and damanes /whether in
c6ntract, tort or strict liability,  including but'not limited t6 persohal injuiv, de¥tFi at any time and proberty damage) inc-urred by CITy,
OWNER,  PERMITTEE (Renter) or any other person, and from any and all claims, demands and actions in  law or equity (including
attorney's fee and  litigation expenses), arising or alleged to have arisen directly or indirectly out of the operation and use of CITY
property and public right of way. APPLICANT'S obligations under the preceding sentence shall apply regardless of whether City or any
of its officers, officials, employees, agents or authorized volunteers are negligent, but shall not apply to any loss,  liability, fines,
penalties, torreitures, costs or damages caused solely by the gross negligence, or caused by the willtul misconduct, ot Cl I Y or any ot
ite  nffir.ore   nffirialc:   omnln`/aoe   anonte nr 8ilthnri7arl `/nliintoore--_     _--__     _,    _  ------- _,    _--r`_I   -__,   -`e--___    __     --_`  1_'.-_  _     -_ .--.- __  _-_.

Page 5 of 5

Page 38 of 174



To: The City of Marshall

From: Path of the Old Ways

January 30, 2023

We have not secured our insurance or liquor licenses, as of yet, due to the fact that we do not have 
confirmed dates. Once we have those dates confirmed, we will begin working on them. As soon as liquor 
licenses are granted, we will forward a copy to your office. As for insurance we are unable to purchase 
the actual policy until one week before the event, due to all the issues that came about from covid, our 
insurance company asks us to wait to make sure the event will actually take place, as they cannot change 
dates, places or the policy once it has been paid for. As soon as that has been paid we will send your 
office a copy of the insurance policy just as we have before. 

Our maps are not 100% complete as we are still working out where we wish to place certain things. 
However, we have a general idea which I can provide for you, if you would like. 

We are moving our official correspondences with the state of Michigan and The City of Marshall etc. over 
to our new Email at: PathoftheOldWays@gmail.com Instead of the Vikingwarriorfest – email.

As for further requests, we are asking the city of Marshall to allow us the same as last year. The use of 
Fire,  over-night camping and Alcohol sales during our event. We will need 4-5 garbage cans, (We will 
empty them ourselves. We do not need the city to do this for us.) We will also need 4-5 picnic tables, for 
our guests to use, if you have them available. 

We appreciate all the help you and your office are giving us to host these events. And we look forward to 
meeting with you to discuss these events. 

I have put in our applications for all three events for 2023, so that we can hopefully get them all approved 
at once and begin setting up our entertainment contracts and acquiring our liquor licenses, securing our 
vendors, and seeking volunteers and donations, ticket sales well in advance. We were forced to postpone 
our last event, Oct 2022, due to issues with getting entertainers, and our liquor licenses. This was partly 
my fault, due to the fact that I contracted a sever case of covid in July that lasted through a good part of 
August. We are trying to circumvent such delays, by having things set up in advanced months, just in 
case such a thing should happen again. We understand that that the city wishes to only approve up to 
two events, at a time, however, if we delay, on approving our Oct event it could mean either we need to 
find a different venue, or cancel outright, due to the sheer number of events happening in Oct. The 
number of events happening limits the number of Non-Profit Liquor licenses available to be approved, as 
it works on a first come first serve basis, and the number of events limits the number of available 
entertainers for events. So, we are asking to get all three of our events approved and scheduled, so that 
we can start signing contracts, applying for licenses and setting up insurance, as well as, securing 
vendor, selling tickets, advertising and more. We ask the city of Marshall to work with us to achieve this 
goal as we work toward the future together. 

I look forward to hearing from you soon, you can reach me on my cell phone at 269-344-7922.

Sincerely, 

Treasa L. Davidson 

President - Path of the Old Ways  

    

Page 39 of 174

mailto:PathoftheOldWays@gmail.com


  
Form Revision Date 07/2016 

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION 
For use by DOMESTIC NONPROFIT CORPORATION 

Pursuant to the provisions of Act 162, Public Acts of 1982, the undersigned corporation executes the following Articles: 

ARTICLE I  

The name of the corporation is:

PATH OF THE OLD WAYS  

 

ARTICLE II 

The purpose or purposes for which the corporation is formed are: 

For The furtherment of Scandinavian and Celtic Education, Religion and History. For the Purpose of Charity, to individuals in need and/or 
entities that are in need of assistance to further our Education, historic and Religious teachings.

 

ARTICLE III 

The Corporation is formed upon Non StockNon Stock   basis. 

If formed on a stock basis, the total number of shares the corporation has authority to issue is 
 

 

If formed on a nonstock basis, the description and value of its real property assets are (if none, insert "none"):

none 

The description and value of its personal property assets are (if none, insert "none"):

None 

The corporation is to be financed under the following general plan:

Fundraising and donations. 

The Corporation is formed on a DirectorshipDirectorship   basis. 

ARTICLE IV 
The street address of the registered office of the corporation and the name of the resident agent at the registered office (P.O. 
Boxes are not acceptable):

 

1.  Agent Name: TREASA DAVIDSON  

2. Street Address: 279 E. MICHIGAN AVE  

Apt/Suite/Other:  

City: GALESBURG  

State: MI Zip Code: 49053  

3. Registered Office Mailing Address: 

P.O. Box or Street 
Address: P.O. BOX 243  

Apt/Suite/Other:  

City: GALESBURG  

State: MIMI  Zip Code: 49053  

Filed by Corporations Division Administrator   Filing Number: 221447373380     Date: 07/27/2021

Page 40 of 174



ARTICLE V 

The name(s) and address(es) of the incorporator(s) is (are) as follows:

Name Residence or Business Address

TREASA DAVIDSON 279 E. MICHIGAN AVE, GALESBURG, MI 49053 USA 

LEWIS J. K. DAVIDSON III 279 E. MICHIGAN AVE, GALESBURG, MI 49053 USA 

Signed this 22nd Day of July, 2021 by the incorporator(s). 

Signature Title Title if ''Other'' was selected 

Treasa L. Davidson Incorporator 

   

By selecting ACCEPT, I hereby acknowledge that this electronic document is being signed in accordance with the Act. I further certify 
that to the best of my knowledge the information provided is true, accurate, and in compliance with the Act.

 

nmlkj Decline       nmlkji Accept 

Page 41 of 174



 

 

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS 

 

FILING ENDORSEMENT 

 

 
This is to Certify that the  
 

for 
 
 
 

 
      ID Number: 

 
 
 
 
 

received by electronic transmission on                                     , is hereby endorsed. 

Filed on                                       , by the Administrator.        

  
The document is effective on the date filed, unless a subsequent effective date within 90 days after  

received date is stated in the document. 

 

  

 

  

      

      

     
       In testimony whereof, I have hereunto set my  
       hand and affixed the Seal of the Department,  
     

 
 

PATH OF THE OLD WAYS

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

802708500

July 27, 2021

July 22, 2021

in the City of Lansing, this 27th dayin the City of Lansing, this 27th dayin the City of Lansing, this 27th dayin the City of Lansing, this 27th day
of July, 2021.of July, 2021.of July, 2021.of July, 2021.

Filed by Corporations Division Administrator   Filing Number: 221447373380     Date: 07/27/2021

Linda Clegg, DirectorLinda Clegg, DirectorLinda Clegg, DirectorLinda Clegg, Director
Corporations, Securities & Commercial Licensing BureauCorporations, Securities & Commercial Licensing BureauCorporations, Securities & Commercial Licensing BureauCorporations, Securities & Commercial Licensing Bureau

Page 42 of 174



 

ITEM 12.D 

 
  
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
FROM: Derek N. Perry, City Manager 

Joshua Lankerd, Chief of Police 
Marguerite Davenport, Director of Public Services 

DATE: March 6, 2023  
SUBJECT: OAKLAWN COLOR CLASSIC 5K AND FUN RUN SPECIAL EVENT  
  
 
The City received a Special Event Application from Oaklawn Hospital for the Color Classic 5k 
and Fun Run event scheduled for June 10, 2023.  The impacted streets are shown on the 
included map and consist of Michigan Ave, I-94 Trunkline, from Kalamazoo Ave to Gordon 
Street. The event is requesting support from the Police and Fire Departments and the event 
coordinators plan to utilize volunteers. As in years past, the event will include amplified 
announcements from the registration area at N. Kalamazoo and the fountain circle. 
 
The City has received the certificate of insurance from the event sponsor listing the City as 
additionally insured and the permit for closure of BL-94 from the Michigan Department of 
Transportation. The street closure of Michigan Avenue is permitted from 0800 to 1400.  
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
The City has reviewed the cost of the 2022 event with the event coordinators. The 2022 fees 
are estimated at $2,559 including the $500 non-profit waiver. Oaklawn understands that fees 
will be assessed after completion of the event and final services provided by the City. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Oaklawn Color Classic 5k and Fun Special Event Request to be held on June 10, 
2023. 
 

Page 43 of 174



Page 44 of 174



Page 45 of 174



Page 46 of 174



Page 47 of 174



Page 48 of 174



Page 49 of 174



����������	

�	
�� ���
���������������������



���
 ����

������� !"#$%&'$((�#��)*+,-./0)1#234��356��728�9:!36;,*.00-.+<;<=>?����;,*.;+*.0<*;=@�AA?B�28�9:!36CD56E!FB23�G2AAHD!B
I!3�>:�3265!9��J56G59�&626��'54GJ2E�%54G6.!F.K2E�L7�M�7N$(�@>L& %N@ �>L�OP%#� O�3B56�L�BQ�3"PFF�D658��726�"R!9��L�BQ�3�"(52Q5A56E��9��329D��PS:53265!9�726�"6!OG5A�&B56G:�B56GCD56E!FB23�G2AAHD!B&�D!9�23E�@!962D6";,*.00-.+<;)=>?����;,*.</1.10;1=@�AA? '�&�OP%#� ��&�M$(�7�>L(T�I>%� 'P�I>((>K�LU�O%>O>&P7�>OP%$ �>L&"���V����W���X��������YZZ��������X�������������������������[���\�]Y��̂Y�& $ P�%>N P" @� T�>I" @>NL T"W���X��� ���X�Y����Y��VLP$%P& ��L P%&P@ �>L"

%P_N�&� �>L�LN#RP%"@>L %>(�&P@ �>L" &�7P�>I�%>$7"
K>%̀ �>%7P%�LN#RP%"#�(P�O>�L �I%>#" 7�& $L@P� >#�(P�O>�L � >"#7> �a>R�LN#RP%"

=59�F��6?bc]d Wcefgh>%U�a>R�LN#RP%"i �
jbkl�[���m�n���go� h�p�

@56E�!F�#23�G2AA<;<�K�#�@'�U$L�$MP@!962D6" O�3B56� E:�" /<+);.+*/)</.;<.+//;;<
ON%O>&P" LP$%P& ��L P%&P@ �>L" 7�%P@ �>L� >�LP$%P& ��L P%P@ �>L"(>@$ �>L"

O�3B56�I��" �9�585��2A�$::A5D265!9

f̂qrd d̂ ghpsĉ pci �

Page 50 of 174

MDavenport
Text Box
6/10 - 8am -2pm. See email in special event folder



����������	


������������������������������������������������������  �����!"�#�$��
%&'()*'+%(&%*)&*'%%))&�$��������,"��-��.�/������������ ��0����������0 �����1�������23�������"��������������4�  ��0������4 ���.��������25��6�78��9���9��:;�<����78=>�?<�?�<7@��<���A=9=7@B�78���:;�<C>��D78�<=E�F�<�?<�>�;7�7=G�B��<�8�G��>7�7D7�<@��D78�<=7@�7���:�<H�:=78=;�>7�7��8=�8:�@�I=�87J��JK�@L�M�66�;A�6�;7����:�<H�>�7���<78�=;�78��?�<6=7��??9=A�7=�;�A�;>7=7D7�>��AA�?7�;A�����78��?�<6=7��>�=>>D�FL�N�=9D<��7���OP�A7B�QRSTRU�SVU�WXYZ�[\]̂��7��78��?�<6=7��>�=>>D�F�A�;>7=7D7�>��AA�?7�;A�����78��?�<6=7��>�=>>D�FL5��78=>�?�<6=7�=>��AA�?7�F�O@��=78�<����78���O�G��6�78�F>B�5�:=99�A�6?9@�:=78�78��?<�G=>=�;>����78��?�<6=7L�_L�L	L̀L5���<���78�7�aFG�;A��b�7=A����<���<6=77�F�c7=9=7@�d<���d<=66=;���;F�d<���I�6�G�9�aA7=G=7=�>�>8�99�O��>DO6=77�F�%e���-�� �����7��78��A�66�;A�6�;7����78��?<�?�>�F�:�<H���<��;��;;D�9�?�<6=7L5���<���78�7�aFG�;A��b�7=A����<���<6=77�F�aA7=G=7=�>���<�>8�99�O��>DO6=77�F�e���-�� �����7��78��A�66�;A�6�;7����78��?<�?�>�F�:�<HLfLg�������������0����������������������0�-�������������4�� �
��������!h����-�i������� �  ������j���/j��"��-��.�/��������4"�"�������$�.� /���������4" k)l+m�no+*'el'�pq�4���j�rj�����"p/q��4s�����"p/q��4���j�4tq"$�u�"��j$�$��4�/�rvqj�iqu�
��rq���t�r���g��p$4�tqr/$�!

$������.-������$����� ������.����1���,

w=>7�<=A�9��;F�a<A8���9��=A�9�x=>A�G�<=�>�xD<=;��M�;>7<DA7=�;�y?�<�7=�;>�c?F�7�F�z	{���|M�;>7L��aFG=>�<@�w=>7�<=A�9{a<A8��9��=A�}~@>7�6�y?�<�7=�;�aFG=>�<@JN9D�<�>A�;7�~8��7=;��56?9�6�;7�7�;�~�?7L��zB��z_���|~ya�N9D�<�>A�;7�~8��7=;��56?9�6�;7�7=�;�}~?�A=�9�M�;F=7=�;>�N�<�M9�>D<�������~7�7��w=�8:�@��@���A�9���G�<;6�;7�9�a��;A@�|����}_ �b�5Iyb��bda��I��c5I���bd~�NyI��aMd5�5d5�~�K5dw5b��xyd�I5�wdJyNJKa��|�̀��}�	̀ ��;�<�9�M�;F=7=�;>�|��;�<�9�M�;F=7=�;>}f4���j�rj�����"p/q��4,��<>8�99ID;J�	L?F�_ �z�	Lz_L_z�x�7�D<���J�y�H9�:;�M�9�<�M9�>>=AL?F���jj$�$���u�����"p/q��4,�/q�j/q�������"p/q��4,
Page 51 of 174



�����������	
�����	�
	�
��		
����������������������� �!!"
#�$
%&'��()��*+,���*+%�-./�0/12345/64�78�-3269173424:76�;7/9�674<�=>�:99?26@/�78�4.:9�1/35:4<�299?5/�26>�A:2=:A:4>�@A2:59�73�52:64/626@/�@7949�3/9?A4:6B�8375�4./�;/47?3�37?4:6B�26;�9:B6:6B�82@:A:4>�1A2@/;�=>�4.:9�1/35:4C�-./�0/12345/64�3/9/3D/9�4./�3:B.4�47�3/E?:3/�3/57D2A�78�2AA�73�26>�1734:76�78�4.:9�82@:A:4>�29�6//;/;�873�.:B.F2>�52:64/626@/�73�@76943?@4:76�1?3179/9�F:4.7?4�3/1A2@/5/64�73�3/:5=?39/5/64�78�26>�@7949�:6@?33/;�=>�4./�1/35:44/;�73�74./3�1234>C�-./�1/35:44/;�F:AA�;/8/6;<�:6;/56:8>�26;�.7A;�.235A/99�4./�0/12345/64�873�26>�@A2:59�F.2497/D/3�3/9?A4:6B�8375�4./�@76943?@4:76�73�4./�3/57D2A�78�4./�2?4.73:G/;�=>�4.:9�1/35:4CHAA�;:94?3=/;�23/29�F:4.:6�4./�3:B.4�78�F2>�9.2AA�=/�471I97:A/;<�9//;/;�26;�5?A@./;�47�524@.�/J:94:6B�23/29�1/3�@?33/64�K0L-�9426;23;9�26;�91/@:8:@24:769CH;D26@/�674:@/�5?94�=/�9?=5:44/;C-3288:@�@76437A�;/D:@/9�23/�674�47�=/�1A2@/;�:647�71/324:76�573/�4.26�M�.7?39�13:73�47�4./�/D/64<�5?94�=/�;:95264A/;N3/57D/;�8375�71/324:76�F:4.:6�M�.7?39�284/3�4./�/D/64<�26;�3/57D/;�8375�4./�OLP�=>�4./�/6;�78�4./�6/J4�=?9:6/99�;2>C

Page 52 of 174



E Green St

Forest St

E Michigan Ave

Ea
st 

DrHi
gh

 St

N 
Lin

de
n S

t

E Hanover St

Monroe St

N 
Go

rd
on

 St

E Spruce St

N 
Ma

dis
on

 S
t

E Mansion StW Mansion St

Fair St

W Prospect St

N 
Ma

rs
ha

ll A
ve

Warren St

N 
Lib

er
ty 

St
Page St

S M
ars

ha
ll A

ve

S L
ind

en
 St

N Kalamazoo Ave

Br
ew

er
 St

S E
ag

le 
St

Union St

N 
Mu

lbe
rry

 S
t

N 
Ea

gle
 S

t

S K
ala

ma
zo

o A
ve

N 
Di

vis
ion

 S
t

W Green St

Washington St

Mann Rd

N 
Gr

an
d S

t
S G

ra
nd

 S
t

Montgomery St

Ma
ple

 S
t

S J
eff

ers
on

 St

Locust St

Fe
rg

us
on

 R
d

W Hanover St

Birch St

Exchange St

E Prospect StN 
Sy

ca
mo

re
 St

S L
ibe

rty
 St

Hart St

Ha
mi

lto
n S

t

Hill R
d

Al
len

 R
d

W Michigan Ave

W Pearl St

Sib
ley

 Ln

S G
or

do
n S

t

Okeefe RdSchuyler St

Lincoln St

S Madison St

N 
Je

ffe
rs

on

Mi
tch

ell
 S

t

E Prospect St

0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.40.05
Miles .

W20-3 W20-2

M4-8a

M4-8a

W20-2
W20-3

Directional Traffic Arrow
k Construction Barrel

Traffic Sign

M4-8
M3-2
M1-2
M6-1(R) M4-8

M3-4
M1-2
M6-1(L)

M4-8
M3-4
M1-2
M6-1(R)M4-8

M3-2
M1-2
M6-1(L)

M4-8
M3-2
M1-2
M6-3

M4-8
M3-4
M1-2
M6-3

M4-8
M3-2
M1-2
M6-3

M4-8
M3-4
M1-2
M6-3

M4-8
M3-4
M1-2
M6-1(R)

M4-8
M3-2
M1-2
M6-1(L)

M4-8
M3-2
M2-1
M6-1(R)

M4-8
M3-4
M1-2
M6-1(L)

k

k

k
k

k
k

k
k

k
k

k
k

k
k

k
k

k
k

k
k

Detour Route - E

Page 53 of 174



 ProSelect Insurance Company 
3100 West Road, Bldg. 1, Ste 200, East Lansing MI 48823 

Phone: 800.313.5888  Fax: 517.323.6180 

                     This is NOT A BILL. THE BILL WILL FOLLOW SHORTLY.    
                      Date Produced: 11/18/2022 4:05 PM     Page 1 

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE 

The CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE neither affirmatively nor negatively amends, extends or alters the coverage afforded by 

these policies. 

This is to certify that the following policies, subject to the terms, conditions and exclusions have been issued by this company.  
The company will mail to the party to whom this Certificate is issued a record of any material change in or cancellation of said 
policy or policies, but takes no responsibility for failure to do so. 

Certificate Holder: 
City of Marshall 
323 W Michigan Ave 
Marshall, MI 49068 
 

First Named Insured: 
Ella E M Brown Charitable Circle 
DBA Oaklawn Hospital 
200 North Madison Street 
Marshall, MI  49068 
 

Producer: 
Coverys Insurance Services 
3100 West Rd, Bldg. 1, Ste 200 
East Lansing, MI 48823 

 

POLICY PERIOD: 07/01/2022 to 07/01/2023 at 12:01 A. M.  
Standard time at Named Insured address above. 

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS: 
Institution 

 

COMMERCIAL LIABILITY POLICY Policy No:               002MI000006306 
Former Policy No:  002MI000006306 

Coverage Parts Coverage Type /  
Retroactive Date 

Limits 

Healthcare Provider 
Professional Liability 

Claims Made 
Retroactive Date:  08/25/1987 

$1,000,000  
$3,000,000 

Per Claim 
Aggregate 

Commercial General Liability 
 

Claims Made 
Retroactive Date: 08/25/1987 

$1,000,000  
$3,000,000  
$3,000,000  

 
$1,000,000 

$50,000 
 

$5,000 
 

Each Incident $1,000,000 General 
Aggregate  
Products-Completed Operations 
Aggregate 
Personal and Advertising Injury Limit 
Damages to Premises Rented 
(any one premises) 
Medical Expense Limit 
(any one person) 

Sexual Misconduct Legal 
Expense Reimbursement 

 $100,000  
$100,000 

Per Proceeding 
Aggregate 

Professional Conduct Review  $25,000  
$25,000 

Per Proceeding 
Aggregate 

Excess/Umbrella Claims Made 
Retroactive Date: 08/25/2010 

$2,000,000 
$2,000,000 

Each incident 
Aggregate 

Special Conditions:  Event: Oaklawn Color Classic on June 10, 2023 

 

  
 
       Joseph G. Murphy          Erin B. Bagley 
       President & CEO                  Secretary 
 

Page 54 of 174



 

ITEM 12.E 

 
  
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
FROM: Derek N. Perry, City Manager 

Joshua Lankerd, Chief of Police 
Marguerite Davenport, Director of Public Services 

DATE: March 6, 2023  
SUBJECT: OAKLAWN PET, BIKE, AND WAGON PARADE  
  
 
The City has received a Special Event Application request from Oaklawn Hospital for the Pet, 
Bike, and Wagon parade scheduled for July 4, 2023 at the fountain circle. The impacted streets 
are shown on the included map and consist of Michigan Ave, I-94 Trunkline, around the fountain 
circle. The event requested barricades for the road closure, will utilize volunteers, and police/fire will 
be at the event for community engagement (pending any emergency calls).  As in years past, the 
event will include amplified announcements from the southwest corner of the fountain for the parade 
portion and music by the rotary band.  
 
The City will receive the certificate of insurance from the event sponsor listing the City as additionally 
insured after July 1, 2023 (due to the policy cycle). The permit for closure of BL-94 from the 
Michigan Department of Transportation has been approved with a street closure of Michigan Avenue 
from 0900 to 1300.  
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
The City estimates the total cost of the event, based on the planning information, to be $665. 
The estimated cost to Oaklawn, including the non-profit waiver, is currently $165. Final costs will 
be assessed at the completion of the event.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Oaklawn Pet, Bike, and Wagon Parade Special Event Request to be held on July 
4, 2023. 
 

Page 55 of 174



Page 56 of 174



�����������	
����
�
��

�
���������

����� ����� ��������� �
��

�������� !"#$%&#''�"��()*+,-./(0"123��245��617�89 25:+)-//,-*;:;<=>����:+)-:*)-/;):<?�@@>A�17�89 25BC45D EA12�F1@@GC A
H 2�=9�2154 8��I45F48�%515��&43FI1D�$43F5- E-J1D�K6�L�6M#'�?=K%�$M?��=K�NO$"��N�2A45�K�AP�2!OEE�C547��615�!Q 8��K�AP�2�!'41P4@45D��8��218C��OR942154 8�615�!5 NF4@�%A45F9�A45FBC45D EA12�F1@@GC A%�C 8�12D�? 851C5!:+)-//,-*;:(<=>����:+)-;.0-0/:0<?�@@>�&�%�NO$"����%�L#'�6�=K'S�H=$��&O�H=''=J�KT�N$=N=%O6�=NO$#��=K%!UV��W��X����Y
��V
ZZ�����[\\�������V��
[
Z�]
�Z
̂ ����_�����_�
��	
����
�
�����̀[ZX��_���������a��b������������UV���c�����d[������V��eZ��[�������V��f�[�
��W��eZ��
���V��������e�������g�h
Z
a
i���jc��
��Y�eV��
�jc��k�lmb�n�%�#�O�$=M�O! ?��S�=H! ?=MK�S!Y
��V
ZZ W
ZV�[�W�[�XKO#$O%���K�O$%O?��=K!

$OoM�%���=K�KM"QO$!?=K�$='�%O?��=K! %�6O�=H�$=#6!
J=$p�=$6O$�KM"QO$!"�'O�N=�K��H$="! 6�%�#K?O��="�'O�N=�K���=!"6=��q=Q�KM"QO$!

<48�E��5>l�fU Y�rsjg=$T�q=Q�KM"QO$!t �
�lmb�h
Z
a
i���jc� ��	�g�u�

?45D� E�"12�F1@@;:;�J�"�?&�T#K�#LO? 851C5! N�2A45��D9�! .;*(:-*).,+:-:;-*.;.:;
NM$N=%O! KO#$O%���K�O$%O?��=K! 6�$O?��=K��=�KO#$O%���K�O$O?��=K!'=?#��=K!

N�2A45�H��! �8�474��1@�#99@4C154 8

vswxU Uvjguy�vu�t �
Page 57 of 174



����������	


������������������������������������������������������  �����!"�#�$��
%&'()*'+%,-)*)&*'%&%)&�$��������."��/��0�1������������ ��2����������2 �����3�������45�������"��������������6�  ��2������6 ���0��������47��8�9:��;���;��<=�>����9:?@�A>�A�>9B��>���C?;?9BD�9:���<=�>E@��F9:�>?G�H�>�A>�@�=9�9?I�D��>�:�I��@9�9F9�>B��F9:�>?9B�9���<�>J�<?9:?=�@9�9��:?�:<�B�K?�:9L��LM�BN�O�88�=C�8�=9����<�>J�@�9���>9:�?=�9:��A�>8?9��AA;?C�9?�=�C�=@9?9F9�@��CC�A9�=C�����9:��A�>8?9��@�?@@F�HN�P�?;F>��9���QR�C9D�STUVTW�UXW�YZ[\�]̂_̀��9��9:��A�>8?9��@�?@@F�H�C�=@9?9F9�@��CC�A9�=C�����9:��A�>8?9��@�?@@F�HN7��9:?@�A�>8?9�?@��CC�A9�H�QB��?9:�>����9:���Q�I��8�9:�H@D�7�<?;;�C�8A;B�<?9:�9:��A>�I?@?�=@����9:��A�>8?9N�aN�N	NbN7���>���9:�9�cHI�=C��d�9?C����>���>8?99�H�e9?;?9B�f>���f>?88?=���=H�f>���K�8�I�;�cC9?I?9?�@�@:�;;�Q��@FQ8?99�H�%g���/�� �����9��9:��C�88�=C�8�=9����9:��A>�A�@�H�<�>J���>��=��==F�;�A�>8?9N7���>���9:�9�cHI�=C��d�9?C����>���>8?99�H�cC9?I?9?�@���>�@:�;;�Q��@FQ8?99�H�g���/�� �����9��9:��C�88�=C�8�=9����9:��A>�A�@�H�<�>JNhNi�������������2����������������������2�/�������������6�� �
��������!j������������� �  ������j���1j��"��/��0�1��������6"�"�������$�0� 1���������6" k)-+l�m,+*'g-'�no�6���j�pj�����"n1o��6q�����"n1o��6���j�6ro"$�s�"��j$�$��6�1�ptoj�uos�
��po���r�p���i��n$6�rop1$�!

$������0/������$����� ������0����3���.

v?@9�>?C�;��=H�c>C:���;��?C�;�w?@C�I�>?�@�wF>?=��O�=@9>FC9?�=�xA�>�9?�=@�eAH�9�H�y	z���{O�=@9N��cHI?@�>B�v?@9�>?C�;zc>C:��;��?C�|}B@9�8�xA�>�9?�=�cHI?@�>BLP;F�>�@C�=9�}:��9?=��78A;�8�=9�9�=�}�A9N��yD��ya~��{}xc�P;F�>�@C�=9�}:��9?=��78A;�8�=9�9?�=�|}A�C?�;�O�=H?9?�=@�P�>�O;�@F>�������}9�9��v?�:<�B��B���C�;���I�>=8�=9�;�c��=CB�{����|a �d�7Kxd��dfc��K��e7K���df}�PxK��cOf7�7f7�}�M7fv7d��wxf�K7�vfLxPLMc��{�b�~|�	b ��=�>�;�O�=H?9?�=@�{��=�>�;�O�=H?9?�=@|h6���j�pj�����"n1o��6.��>@:�;;��LbL�	NAH�a w�9�F>�L��y�	���9��?J��M���=���>�H�NAH���jj$�$���s�����"n1o��6.�1o�j1o�������"n1o��6.
Page 58 of 174



�����������	
�����	���
��	
	
�������������������� !�" ##$
%�&
'()��*+��,-.���,-'�/01�2134567186�9:�/548;395646<98�=91;�896>�?@�<;;A48B1�9:�60<;�3157<6>�4;;A71�48@�C<4?<C<6@�BC4<7;�95�74<861848B1�B9;6;�51;AC6<8D�:597�601�3454=1E=169A5�:4B<C<6@�3C4B1=�?@�60<;�3157<6F�/01�2134567186�51;15G1;�601�5<D06�69�51HA<51�5179G4C�9:�4CC�95�48@�3956<98�9:�60<;�:4B<C<6@�4;�811=1=�:95�0<D0I4@�74<861848B1�95�B98;65AB6<98�3A539;1;�I<609A6�513C4B17186�95�51<7?A5;17186�9:�48@�B9;6;�<8BA551=�?@�601�3157<661=�95�96015�3456@F�/01�3157<661=�I<CC�=1:18=>�<8=178<:@�48=�09C=�0457C1;;�601�2134567186�:95�48@�BC4<7;�I046;91G15�51;AC6<8D�:597�601�B98;65AB6<98�95�601�5179G4C�9:�601�4A6095<J1=�?@�60<;�3157<6FKCC�=<;6A5?1=�4514;�I<60<8�601�5<D06�9:�I4@�;04CC�?1�693L;9<C1=>�;11=1=�48=�7ACB01=�69�746B0�1M<;6<8D�4514;�315�BA55186�N2O/�;648=45=;�48=�;31B<:<B46<98;FK=G48B1�896<B1�7A;6�?1�;A?7<661=F/54::<B�B98659C�=1G<B1;�451�896�69�?1�3C4B1=�<869�931546<98�7951�6048�P�09A5;�35<95�69�601�1G186>�7A;6�?1�=<;7486C1=E5179G1=�:597�931546<98�I<60<8�P�09A5;�4:615�601�1G186>�48=�5179G1=�:597�601�QOR�?@�601�18=�9:�601�81M6�?A;<81;;�=4@F

Page 59 of 174



Page 60 of 174



Page 61 of 174



Page 62 of 174



Page 63 of 174



Page 64 of 174



Page 65 of 174



Page 66 of 174



 

ITEM 12.F 

 
  
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
FROM: Derek N. Perry, City Manager 

Joshua Lankerd, Chief of Police 
Marguerite Davenport, Director of Public Services 

DATE: March 6, 2023  
SUBJECT: RUEBEN RACE SPECIAL EVENT  
  
 
The City received a Special Event Application request from the Fountain Clinic for the Rueben 
Race event scheduled for April 22, 2023.  The impacted streets are shown on the included map 
and consist of Jefferson Street, Mansion St, East Drive, North Drive, Madison, and Mansion 
Streets. The event is requesting support from the Police and Fire Departments and the event 
coordinators plan to utilize volunteers. As in years past, the event will include amplified 
announcements from the registration area at N. Jefferson Street between Michigan Ave and 
Mansion Street. 
 
The City has received the certificate of insurance from the event sponsor listing the City as 
additionally insured. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
The estimated event costs are currently $345 which is less than the $500 non-profit waiver for 
Special Events. Final costs will be assessed after the event. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Rueban Race 10k, 5k, and fun run Special Event Application to be held on April 22, 
2023. 
 

Page 67 of 174



Page 68 of 174

MDavenport_1
Text Box
8:30 - 10k9:30 - 5k run/walk10:30- fun run



Page 69 of 174



Page 70 of 174



Page 71 of 174



Page 72 of 174



Page 73 of 174



Page 74 of 174



Page 75 of 174



 

ITEM 12.G 

 
  
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
FROM: Derek N. Perry, City Manager 

Marguerite Davenport, Director of Public Services 
Aaron Ambler, Water Superintendent 

DATE: March 6, 2023  
SUBJECT: INDUSTRIAL ROAD CONSTRUCTION UPDATE AND ENGINEERING  
  
 
The City presented construction bids to City Council on April 18, 2022 for 3,450 linear feet of 
watermain replacement along Industrial Road and S Kalamazoo Avenue. The project was 
awarded to Quality Excavators Inc of Marshall. The project scope is outlined in the image below: 

 
In June of 2022, the City issued an RFP for design services for the project. The selected 
vendor, VK Civil, has completed the engineering design and has worked through the bidding, 
final design, and permitting efficiently. To complete the construction portion of the project, we 
requested that The VK Civil submit a proposal for construction engineering services. Per our 
request, they have submitted a proposal in the amount of $71,000 and, after review, are 
recommending approval. 
 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
The construction engineering for this project will be funded through the 2022 Water Revenue 
Bond proceeds and will require a budget amendment and transfer in the amount of $79,000. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the construction engineering contract with VK Civil in the amount of $71,000 with a 

Page 76 of 174



contingency of $8,000 for a total funded amount of $79,000 and authorize a budget amendment 
and transfer in the amount of $79,000 from the 2022 Water Revenue Bonds to the Water 
Capital Line 591-900-970. 
 

Page 77 of 174



 
 

4664 Campus Drive, Suite 111, Kalamazoo, MI 49008    269-697-7120    www.VKcivil.com 

 

 
 
 

 
February 2, 2023 
0938 - M106 
 

Via Email:  MDavenport@cityofmarshall.com 

 
Marguerite Davenport  
City of Marshall 
323 W. Michigan Avenue 
Marshall, MI 49068 
 
RE:  Proposal for Professional Construction Engineering Services 

Industrial Road Watermain Replacement Project 
 City of Marshall, Michigan 
 
Dear Marguerite: 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide a proposal for the construction engineering services for the 
Industrial Road Watermain Replacement Project. We have broken out the scope items below: 
 
Construction Observation - $36,000 

We have assumed a 10 week construction duration. Our construction observer rate for 2023 is $81/hr and 
current mileage rate is $0.655/mile. 
 
Construction Staking - $6,000 

We have assumed 4 site visits for staking needs. Staking is planned to be provided by our subconsultant 
Crane Land Surveying from Battle Creek, Michigan. 
 
Construction Administration - $24,500 

We have assumed 15 hours per week for project manager/engineer assistance including contract 
paperwork and one site visit per week by the project manager/engineer. 
 
Record Plan Preparation - $4,500 

We will prepare a final record plan set of the as built location of the watermain and provide information 
on other utilities encountered for future use on project’s in this corridor.  
 
 
Fee 
We propose to complete the above construction observation on a time and materials basis estimated at 
$36,000 and all other items above on a lump sum basis of $35,000. Invoicing is completed monthly based 
on the percentage of project completion. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 78 of 174



Marguerite Davenport 
February 2, 2023 
Page 2 
 

4664 Campus Drive, Suite 111, Kalamazoo, MI 49008    269-697-7120    www.VKcivil.com 

 

Terms and Conditions 
Terms and Conditions are listed at the end of this proposal. 
 
Sincerely, 

VK Civil   

 

 

 

    

 

Dan Lewis, P.E.      Nathan Vriesman, P.E. 
DGL/nmv 
 
ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO: 
The undersigned agrees to the above and to the Additional Terms and Conditions.  
CLIENT   

Signature:        
Print Name:        
Title:         
Date:         

Page 79 of 174



Marguerite Davenport 
February 2, 2023 
Page 3 
 

4664 Campus Drive, Suite 111, Kalamazoo, MI 49008    269-697-7120    www.VKcivil.com 

 

ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
These additional Terms and Conditions are made a part of this Contract for Professional Services: 

 

1. SERVICES EXCLUSIVE.   The services provided by Vriesman & Korhorn Civil Engineers (VK Civil) shall be only those services described in this Contract and 

Addendum, if any.  No additional or other services shall be provided or expected unless described in writing signed by the Client and VK Civil. 

2. TIMELINESS AND SCHEDULE.  VK Civil agrees to furnish and perform the professional services described in this Contract in accordance with accepted 

professional standards.  VK Civil agrees to perform said services in a timely manner, which is defined as the date of completion set forth in this Contract 

or, if no date is set forth, in a reasonable time under the circumstances. VK Civil shall not be responsible for any delay in completing the services that 

cannot reasonably be foreseen on the date of signing this Contract, or for delays which are caused by factors beyond its control, or for delays resulting 

from the action or inaction of any governmental agency or for delays caused by action or inaction of the Client. 

3. NO WARRANTY OR FIDUCIARY RESPONSIBILITY.  VK Civil makes no warranty, express or implied, as to its findings, recommendations, plans and 

specifications except that they were made or prepared in accordance with generally accepted standards and practices within the profession or industry.  

Client acknowledges that neither VK Civil, nor any of VK Civil’s subcontractors has offered any fiduciary service to the Client, and no fiduciary relationship 

has been created between VK Civil and the Client, and no fiduciary responsibility shall be owed to the Client by VK Civil or any of VK Civil’s subcontractors. 

4. PAYMENT; SUSPENSION OF SERVICES.  Invoices for work performed will be sent monthly and upon completion of services unless otherwise stated in 

this Contract.  Client agrees to pay each invoice immediately upon Client receiving such invoice.  Client agrees not to assert any legal setoff or to make 

any reduction in payment of any invoice.  Any amount not paid within thirty (30) days of receipt of an invoice shall incur a Service Charge of one and 

one-half percent (1 ½%) per month, which shall become part of the amount due.  VK Civil shall not be required to perform service during any time that 

the client is delinquent in payment to VK Civil.  VK Civil shall be not required to give notice to client that it has suspended performance for such 

delinquency.  In the event of suspension of services, VK Civil shall have no liability to the Client for delay or damage caused the Client because of 

such suspension of services. Before resuming services, VK Civil shall be paid all sums due prior to suspension and any expenses included in the 

interruption and resumption of VK Civil's services. VK Civil's fees for the remaining services and the time schedules shall be equitably adjusted. 

5. LIENS.  A lien will be recorded within 45 days of the last day of work or as allowed by law, whichever is earlier, unless the account is paid in full or other 

prior arrangements have been made.  A $250.00 charge will be made for the filing of a mechanics lien and another $250.00 charge will be made for the 

filing of a lien release, all in addition to any other charges made. 

6. LIABILTY FOR COSTS AND EXPENSES.  The Client shall be responsible for payment of all costs and expenses incurred by VK Civil for its account, including 

any such monies that VK Civil may advance for Client’s account for any purpose whatsoever (plus 10% overhead charge). 

7. SUBCONTRACTORS.  VK Civil reserves the right to subcontract to duly licensed or appropriately qualified persons, firms or corporations any or all of the 

work herein provided for.  

8. TIME LIMITATION OF CONTRACT.  VK Civil reserves the right to withdraw this Contract without notice to Client if not accepted within 30 days. 

9. LIABILITY FOR COLLECTION EXPENSES.  In the event of suit to effect collection for services rendered, Client will pay all reasonable attorney’s fees and 

court costs. 

10. OWNERSHIP OF WORK PRODUCT.  Original documents, drawings and survey notes represent the product of training, experience and professional skill.  

They belong to and remain the property of VK Civil.  At such time as full compensation is made, copies of said original drawing shall become the property 

of the work.   

11. PERMITS AND GOVERNMENT APPROVAL.  Unless otherwise specifically stated in the Contract, services performed by VK Civil shall not include 

preparation or submission of applications for, or receipt of, permits, applications, or reviews required by any governmental unit or agency.  VK Civil 

makes no representation, express or implied, that any governmental permits, applications, or approvals applied for as a part of services requested and/or 

performed will be obtained or paid for by VK Civil, or that such permits or approvals will be obtained or paid for without delay by the governmental unit 

or agency.  Payment of any permit application, review or any other fees which may be imposed as requirements for obtaining governmental permits or 

approvals are the sole responsibility of the Client. 

12. CONSTRUCTION PHASE.  VK Civil shall not have control over, charge of, or responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques, 

sequences or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the construction work on any project, nor shall VK Civil be 

responsible for the contractor's failure to perform the construction work in accordance with the requirements of the plans and specifications 

prepared by VK Civil. VK Civil shall not have control over or charge of, and shall not be responsible for, acts or omissions of the contractor or of 

any other persons or entities performing portions of the construction work. 

13. PROJECT INFORMATION. VK Civil shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of services and information furnished by the Client, 

including services and information provided by other design professionals or consultants directly to the Client. These services and information 

include, but are not limited to, surveys, tests, reports, diagrams, drawings and legal information. 

14. CONTRACTOR SUBMITTALS. VK Civil shall review the contractor's submittals such as shop drawings, product data and samples, but only for the 

limited purpose of checking for conformance with information given and the design concept expressed in the plan and specifications issued by VK 

Civil. Review of such submittals is not for the purpose of determining the accuracy and completeness of other information such as dimensions, 

quantities, and installation or performance of equipment or systems, which are the contractor's responsibility. VK Civil's review shall not constitute 

approval of safety precautions or, unless otherwise specifically stated by VK Civil, of any construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or 

procedures. VK Civil's approval of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an assembly of which the item is a component. 

15. WAIVER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES.  VK Civil and Client waive consequential damages for claims, disputes or other matters in question 

arising out of or relating to this Agreement. This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential damages due to either party's 

termination of this Agreement. 

16. WAIVER OF SUBROGATION.  VK Civil and Client waive all rights against each other and any of their contractors, subcontractors, consultants, 

agents and employees, each of the other, for damages caused by fire or other causes of loss to the extent covered by property insurance obtained 

pursuant to a written contract or other property insurance applicable to the construction work. VK Civil and Client, as appropriate, shall require 

of their contractors, subcontractors, consultants, agents and employees, by appropriate agreements, written where legally required for validity, 

similar waivers each in favor of other parties enumerated herein. The policy shall provide such waivers of subrogation by endorsement or 

Page 80 of 174



Marguerite Davenport 
February 2, 2023 
Page 4 
 

4664 Campus Drive, Suite 111, Kalamazoo, MI 49008    269-697-7120    www.VKcivil.com 

 

otherwise. A waiver of subrogation shall be effective as to a person or entity even though that person or entity would otherwise have a duty of 

indemnification, contractual or otherwise, did not pay the insurance premium directly or indirectly, and whether or not the person or entity had 

an insurable interest in the property damaged. 

17. CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION.  If part of the scope of services, VK Civil shall visit the project construction site to generally observe the 

construction work and answer any questions that the Client may have. However, VK Civil shall not be required to make exhaustive or continuous 

on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the construction work, or to determine whether the construction work is being constructed 

in accordance with the Contract Documents. If the Client desires VK Civil to perform more frequent or comprehensive observations of the 

construction work, this Agreement shall be amended to specifically state the additional scope of service, along with the additional compensation 

to be paid to VK Civil for performing such service. 

18. JOBSITE SAFETY.  Neither the performance of the services by VK Civil, nor the presence of VK Civil at a project construction site, shall impose any 

duty on VK Civil, nor relieve the construction contractor of its obligations, duties and responsibilities including, but not limited to, construction 

means, methods, sequence, techniques or procedures necessary for performing, superintending and coordinating the construction work in 

accordance with the plans and specifications and any health or safety precautions required by any regulatory agencies or applicable law. VK Civil 

and its personnel have no authority to exercise any control over any construction contractor or its employees in connection with their work or 

any health or safety programs or procedures. The Client agrees that the construction contractor shall be solely responsible for jobsite and worker 

safety. 

19. RESPONSIBILITY FOR CONSTRUCTION.  Evaluations of the Client's project budget, the preliminary estimate of construction cost and detailed 

estimates of construction cost, if any, prepared by VK Civil, represent VK Civil's judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction 

industry. It is recognized, however, that neither VK Civil nor the Client has control over the cost of labor, materials or equipment, over the 

contractor's methods of determining bid prices, or over competitive bidding, market or negotiating conditions. Accordingly, VK Civil cannot and 

does not warrant or represent that bids or negotiated prices will not vary from the Client's project budget or from any estimate of construction 

cost or evaluation prepared or agreed to by VK Civil. 

20. DISPUTE RESOLUTION.  Any claims or disputes made during design, construction or post- construction between the Client and VK Civil shall be 

submitted to non-binding mediation. The mediation shall be governed by the then current Construction Industry Mediation Rules of the American 

Arbitration Association ("AAA"). Mediation shall be a condition precedent to the initiation of any other dispute resolution process, including court 

actions. 

21. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.  In recognition of the relative risks and benefits of the Project to both the Client and VK Civil, the risks have been 

allocated such that the Client agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to limit the liability of VK Civil and VK Civil's officers, directors, partners, 

employees, shareholders , clients and subconsultants for any and all claims, losses, costs, damages of any nature whatsoever or claims expenses 

from any cause or causes, including attorneys' fees and costs and expert-witness fees and costs, so that the total aggregate liability of VK Civil and 

VK Civil’s officers, directors, partners, employees, shareholders, clients and subconsultants shall not  exceed VK Civil’s insurance limits.  It is 

intended that this limitation apply to any and all liability or cause of action however alleged or arising, unless otherwise prohibited by law. 

22. CERTIFICATIONS.  If the Client requests VK Civil to execute certificates, the proposed language of such certificates shall be submitted to VK Civil 

for review at least 14 days prior to the requested dates of execution. VK Civil shall not be required to execute certificates that would require 

knowledge, services or responsibilities beyond the scope of the Agreement, nor shall any certificates be construed as a warranty or guarantee by 

VK Civil. 

23. PROPERTY DESCRIPTIONS; ZONING.  Unless otherwise stated in “Description of Services” here in, it shall be the Client’s responsibility to provide an 

accurate description of the property to VK Civil.  VK Civil will accept no liability arising from an incorrect description furnished by the Client.  

Presentation of a “Certificate of Survey” by VK Civil shall not be construed as any guarantee or assurance to the Client or any other party that the Client 

holds marketable title to the property surveyed.  Unless stated otherwise in “Scope of Services”, VK Civil will not attempt to determine zoning 

requirements, building restrictions, or other governmental regulations which might affect land use or legal occupancy of the property. 

24. NO LEGAL SERVICES INCLUDED.  No legal services, representation, consultation, or advice are covered or offered under this agreement, nor is any 

compensation for legal services contained herein. 

25. NO DUES, BONDS, OR RETAINING.  No dues, bonds or retainage shall be withheld on professional services performed by VK Civil. 

26. ACCESS TO WORK SITE.  In a timely manner the Client will provide the lands or legal access to the lands upon which the Work is to be performed, rights 

of way for access thereto, and all additional necessary lands designated for temporary use during performance of the services described in the Contract. 

Easements, if required for permanent structures or permanent changes in existing facilities, will be provided by the Client.  VK Civil will allocate the land 

provided by the Client for temporary use among project Subcontractors during performance of the services described in this Contract. 

27. COMPLETE AGREEMENT (INTERGRATION CLAUSE).  This Contract, including the Additional Terms and Conditions and the Addendum, if any, is the 

complete agreement between the Client and VK Civil.  All prior oral or written discussions, correspondence, and representations, if any, are not valid or 

binding unless specifically repeated, referenced, incorporated, or contained in this Contract.  No subsequent change, addendum, agreement, 

representation, or amendment shall be valid or binding unless in writing dated and signed by the authorized representative of the Client and VK Civil. 

28. SEVERABILITY.  Should any part of this Contract be found by a court of law to be unenforceable, it shall be severed from the Contract, and the remaining 

parts shall be given full force and effect. 

29. LAW AND VENUE GOVERNING.  This Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of Michigan.  Venue of any action against VK Civil shall be in 

the 17th Circuit Court or the 63rd Judicial District Court for the County of Kent. Venue of any action against Client shall be in the 17th Circuit Court or the 

63rd Judicial District Court for the County of Kent or in the circuit or district court in which the Client resides or has its principal place of business, in the 

sole discretion of VK Civil. 

30. COUNTERPARTS AND FACSIMILES.  This Contract may be executed in counterparts, each of which when taken together shall constitute an agreement.  

Photocopied, impression copied, and electronic signatures shall be deemed originals. 

31. NON-ASSIGNABLE.  This contract is not assignable unless consent is given in writing signed and dated by the Client and VK Civil subject to the provisions 

of paragraph 7 (“Subcontractors”) above. 

 

Page 81 of 174



 

ITEM 12.H 

 
  
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
FROM: Derek N. Perry, City Manager 

Eric Zuzga, Director of Community Services 
DATE: March 6, 2023  
SUBJECT: NORTHEAST NIA- GREEN DEVELOPMENT VENTURES 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  
  
 
The City has been working with Allen Edwin Homes (Green Development Ventures) and Matt 
Miller from Exp Realty on a potential development at the dormant Briarwood Lane Condominium 
site on Forest Street.  Allen Edwin has a purchase agreement with Jerry Clifton on the purchase 
of the property and will close the deal on March 8, 2023.   
The proposed development covers 17 lots in two phases.  6 lots are already served by 
infrastructure and can be completed with little cost to the City/NIA.  The second phase of 11 lots 
would result in the extension of Forest Street to O'Keefe, which would require investment in 
roads, storm sewer, sanitary sewer, and FiberNet infrastructure.  We estimate that it will be 
approximately $600,000 for phase 2 infrastructure.  Electric and water already have 
infrastructure in the ground within the right-of-way and will just see services added.   
 
The extension of the road and utility infrastructure will take place in 2024 if the development 
agreement is approved. Allen Edwin has agreed to a schedule that will see the homes 
completed in the next 3-4 years, with the expectation that they will complete the homes sooner 
than the identified schedule in the development agreement.   
 
The Northeast NIA Board reviewed and approved the proposed agreement at its February 21, 
2023 meeting. Council approval is the final requirement to move the project forward.  With the 
approved agreement, we expect Allen Edwin to start construction late this summer. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
The cost of the infrastructure to serve the property is expected to be approximately $600,000. A 
debt instrument (bond or loan) will be required to fund the infrastructure. Staff analysis shows 
that the NE NIA should be able to cover the debt service necessary for this development. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Northeast NIA/Green Development Ventures Development Agreement in 
substantial form to assist in the addition of 17 homes on Forest Street and authorize the City 
Clerk to sign on behalf of the City. 
 
 

Page 82 of 174



3/1/2023, 2:10 PM EST 1/1

Green 
Development 

Ventures 
Layout

100m

400ft

Red Lots- Phase 1
Yellow Lots- Phase 2

Page 83 of 174



DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT- FOREST STREET 

GREEN DEVELOPMENT VENTURES

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into as of the date 

appearing below, by and between the City of Marshall whose addresses is 323 W. Michigan 

Avenue, Marshall, Michigan 49068 (“City”), the City of Marshall Northeast Neighborhood 

Improvement Authority, a Michigan governmental authority, whose address is 323 W. Michigan 

Avenue, Marshall, Michigan 49068 (“Authority”), and Green Development Ventures, LLC, a 

Michigan limited liability company, whose address is 2186 Centre Drive, Portage, MI 49024, 

(“Developer”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the City of Marshall did through the process set forth in Public Act 57 of 

2018, to create the Authority which has the powers as set forth in Public Act 57 of 2018; and

WHEREAS, the Developer is a limited liability company organized under the Michigan 

Limited Liability Company Act, 1993 PA 23, as amended (codified at MCL 450.4101, et seq.), 

and exercising all of the powers provided for therein; and

WHEREAS, the City of Marshall has recognized the need for the development of new 

residential housing in the City and through its City Council determined that the formation of a 

Neighborhood Improvement Authority (“NIA”), as authorized Public Act 57 of 2018, is the most 

appropriate way to encourage the construction of residential housing in order to promote economic 

growth in the City of Marshall; and

WHEREAS, the use of a NIA will allow the following:

• Use of tax increment financing to complete improvement projects;
• Create a clear plan to improve the designated plan area;
• Encourage home ownership by bringing more people into the area to live, work, and 

play;

Page 84 of 174



Marshall City, Northeast NIA, Green Development Ventures 
Development Agreement- Forest Street 

2

• Encourage property improvements and development, thus increasing the City’s tax 
base; and

• Create an enhanced neighborhood that retains residents;

and

WHEREAS the City of Marshall did adopt the Authority Development and Tax Increment 

Finance Plan on April 15, 2019 (“Development Plan”); and

WHEREAS the adopted Development Plan includes within its designated area the property 

known as Briarwood Lane Condominium which is described as follows:

Property located in the City of Marshall, Calhoun County, Michigan, and legally 
described as:

Description of Phase I:

Part of the Southwest ¼ of Section 19, Town 2 South, Range 5 West, City of 
Marshall, Calhoun County, Michigan, described as: commencing at the Southwest 
comer of said Section 19; thence North 00° 09' 00" East 1672.18 feet along the 
West line of said Section to the Southwest comer of Lot 198 of East Drive No. 7 
according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 18 of plats on Pages 23 and 23- 
A in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Calhoun County, Michigan, which is 
the true point of beginning of this description; thence South 89° 48' 38" East
150.08 feet to the Southeast comer of said Lot 198; thence South 00° 05' 39"
West, 320.01 feet; thence South 89° 51' 18" East, 175.83 feet; thence South 42°
39' 15" East, 94.71 feet; thence South 80° 30' 20" East, 149.62 feet to the West line 
of Lot 225 of the plat of East Drive No. 8 according to the plat thereof as recorded 
in Liber 18 of Plats, on Page 35; thence 576.44 feet along the Westerly and 
Northerly line of said East Drive No. 8 and the arc of a curve to the right whose 
radius is 518.98 feet and whose chord bears South 39° 10' 41" West
547.26 feet; thence South 71° 09' 51" West 102.02 feet along said line of East
Drive No. 8; thence North 20° 52' 40" West 124.58 feet; thence South 64° 16' 33" 
West 58.20 feet to Point "K" of the Plat of East Drive No. 5 according to the Plat 
thereof as recorded in Liber 16 of Plats on Page 02 in the Office of the Register of 
Deeds for Calhoun County; thence North 00° 1O' 35" East 73.45 feet to Point "J" 
of said East Drive No. 5; thence North 64° 11' 55" East 100.02 feet; thence North 
25° 01' 21" West 209.98 feet to the East line of East Drive No. 4 according to the 
plat thereof as recorded in Liber 12 of Plats on Page 53 in the Office of the Register 
of Deeds for Calhoun County, Michigan; thence North 00° 03' 52" East
474.06 feet along said East line to the point of beginning. Containing 5.85 acres, 
more or less

Subject to any easements, restrictions, or conditions of record.

Page 85 of 174



Marshall City, Northeast NIA, Green Development Ventures 
Development Agreement- Forest Street 

3

Description of Phase II:

Part of the Southwest ¼ of Section 19, Town 2 South, Range 5 West, City of 
Marshall, Calhoun County, Michigan, described as: commencing at the Southwest 
comer of said Section 19; thence North 00° 09' 00" East 1672.18 feet along the 
West line of said Section to the Southwest comer of Lot 198 of East Drive No. 7 
according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 18 of plats on Pages 23 and 23- 
A in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Calhoun County, Michigan; thence 
South 89° 48' 38" East 150.08 feet to the Southeast comer of said Lot 198, which 
is the true point of beginning of this description; thence North 40° 39' 04" East
341.58 feet to the Southwest comer of Lot 194 of said East Drive No. 7; thence 
South 89° 57' 14" East 210.33 feet to the Southeast comer of Lot 193 of said East 
Drive No. 7; thence South 00° 00' 15" East 170.14 feet; thence South 89° 49' 30" 
East 119.61 feet to the West line of O'Keefe Road of said East Drive No. 7; thence 
South 00° 04' 57'' West 70.24 feet along said West line of O'Keefe Road to the 
Northwest comer of O'Keefe Road of East Drive No. 8 according to the plat thereof 
as recorded in Liber 18 of plats on Page 35 in the Office of the Register of Deeds 
for Calhoun County, Michigan; thence North 89° 48' 53" West 160.18 feet; thence 
South 00° 08' 12" West 368.86 feet along the Westerly line of said East Drive No. 
8; thence 64.88 feet along the Westerly and Northerly line of said East Drive No. 8 
and the arc of a curve to the right whose radius is 518.98 feet and whose chord 
bears South 03° 46' 37" West 64.84 feet; thence North 80°30' 20" West 149.62 feet; 
thence North 42° 39' 15" West, 94.71 feet; thence North 89° 51' 18" West, 175.83 
feet; thence North 00° 05' 39" East, 320.01 feet to the point of beginning. 
Containing 5.31 acres, more or less.

Subject to any easements, restrictions, or conditions of record.

Commonly known as:   Briarwood Lane Condominium, Forest Street, Marshall, 
Michigan 49068
Property Tax Identification: 

Development Property
Project Area A- the following lots in Phase 1: Lots 1-5 and 10
Project Area B- the following lots in Phase 2: Lots 11-21

(the “Development Property – Forest Street” – a sketch of the Development 
Property is attached hereto as Exhibit A);

and

WHEREAS, the Development Property – Forest Street, also referred to as the Briarwood 

Lane Condominium, has been subdivided in accordance with Michigan law and correctly zoned 

Page 86 of 174



Marshall City, Northeast NIA, Green Development Ventures 
Development Agreement- Forest Street 

4

under the City of Marshall zoning ordinance to allow for the immediate construction of residential 

structures; and

WHEREAS, the Development Plan recognizes that the following public infrastructure 

improvements are necessary in order to construct residential structures on the Development 

Property:

• Forest Street extended to O’Keefe Street;
• Sanitary Sewer system and Service Leads as needed for Forest Street;
• Stormwater infrastructure and management within the public right-of-way;
• Water service lines- to the curb stop; 
• Streetlights;
• Road and other signage;
• Earthwork;
• City owned Ultra High-Speed fiber (Fibernet);
• Sidewalks, if desired, along the frontage of properties outside of the site condominium 

boundary (i.e. east of units 17 and 18, and west of units 6 and 7); and
• Any normal and customary expenses in regard to any of the items listed above for the 

Development Property.

(Collectively “public infrastructure improvements”.)

WHEREAS, the following are excluded from “public infrastructure improvements” and 
shall be the responsibility of the Developer: 

• Any expenses incurred by Developer prior to the date the bid is awarded by the City 
for public infrastructure improvements are excluded and will be the responsibility 
of the Developer;

• Developer shall install sidewalks in front of the residential structures constructed 
by Developer on both sides of Forest Street, excluding frontages associated with 
properties outside of the site condominium boundary.

• Electric Services 
• Natural Gas 
• Cable TV
• Master grading for the development

WHEREAS, the Developer agrees to construct residential structures on the lots within the 

Development Property as set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, the Authority agrees to finance and construct, or cause to be constructed, the 

public infrastructure improvements subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein; and

Page 87 of 174



Marshall City, Northeast NIA, Green Development Ventures 
Development Agreement- Forest Street 

5

WHEREAS, the Developer agrees to comply with, including but not limited to, all 

ordinances, resolutions, policies, procedures, building code, International Property Maintenance 

Codes, fire codes, and other conditions of the City of Marshall relative to the construction of 

residential homes.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals, the parties agree as follows:

1. RECITALS.  The foregoing recitals are incorporated in and form a part of this 

Agreement.

2. SCOPE OF PROJECT.  The Project is more accurately described in Exhibit A - 

The Site Plan, but includes undeveloped parcels in the Briarwood Lane Condominium 

development.  Developer agrees to and will construct at its sole cost seventeen residential 

structures on the Development Property.  The structures shall be constructed in compliance with 

the requirements of the Briarwood Lane Condominium Master Deed, as amended, applicable state 

law, and codes, and City ordinances, including the City of Marshall Zoning Ordinance.  Developer 

will submit proposed plans to the City of Marshall for review, but the parties agree that so long as 

Developer complies with City ordinances and the existing City of Marshall Zoning Ordinance, no 

additional administrative approvals, except standard building permits, are necessary relative to the 

construction of the structures as set forth herein. 

Permits and Fees.  Developer acknowledges and agrees that City shall charge and receive 

from the Developer all building permit fees and inspection fees for all construction activities 

conducted by the Developer in effect at the time this Agreement is executed. Developer agrees to 

pay for all water connection fees and sewer capacity charges incurred in connection with the 

development of the Project, pro rata, at the time of construction of each structure.

Staging Areas.   The Developer will place all dumpsters and materials on property owned 

by Developer and not in the road right of way.  Developer will not park or allow to be parked 

Page 88 of 174



Marshall City, Northeast NIA, Green Development Ventures 
Development Agreement- Forest Street 

6

vehicles and construction vehicles within the road right-of-way except for as necessary for 

deliveries and temporary construction and installation of improvements.  

3. COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION BY DEVELOPER.  Developer will 

commence construction of the first structure to be located in Project Area A of the Development 

Property on or before August 1, 2023.  Construction on homes in Project Area B of the 

Development shall occur prior to or within three (3) months of the completion of the identified 

public infrastructure improvements and permit approval.  Construction on the structures shall 

continue diligently without work stoppages, until completion.  Construction will be considered to 

have begun at the issuance of building permits by the City of Marshall.

4. SCHEDULE FOR DEVELOPER.  

a. Project Area A- In addition to the first model structure in Project Area A, as set forth 

in Paragraph 3, Developer will commence construction of an additional two (2) 

structures in project Area A on or before December 31, 2023.  Developer will complete 

construction of three (3) additional structures by December 31, 2024, completing 

development of Project Area A:

b. Project Area B- Developer will commence construction on four (4) residential 

structures in Project Area B within 3 months of completion of the identified public 

infrastructure improvements.  Developer will commence construction of additional 

residential structures as follows, measured cumulatively:

(1) 15 months following completion of public infrastructure investment and the ability 

to obtain building permits: four (4) structures;

(2) 27 months following completion of public infrastructure investment and the ability 

to obtain building permits: three (3) structures

Page 89 of 174



Marshall City, Northeast NIA, Green Development Ventures 
Development Agreement- Forest Street 

7

5. PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS.  Authority will, at its sole cost and 

discretion, provide such of the public infrastructure improvements as determined 

necessary for the construction of the structures as set forth in this Agreement.  The 

parties agree that for the purposes of this Phase 1 Agreement, the Developer will bear 

the costs for expenses incurred related to public infrastructure improvements that 

occurred prior to the date of the Authority’s bid award for said public infrastructure 

improvements. Authority anticipates that the infrastructure improvements will cost 

approximately Six Hundred Thousand Dollars ($600,000.00).  Construction of the 

public infrastructure improvements shall begin as soon as can be reasonably scheduled 

after the approval of this Agreement and shall be timed such that they will be complete 

on or before September 1, 2024, or as reasonably practicable.  

6. BONDING.  To the extent that the Authority issues bonds to pay for some or all of 

the public infrastructure improvements, Developer agrees to reasonably cooperate in providing 

information to support the issuance of the bonds.  

7. TERM OF AGREEMENT.  The term of this Agreement shall be from the date of 

execution through the term of the bonds.  The term of the Agreement may be extended by the 

mutual written consent of both parties.

8. DEFAULT BY DEVELOPER.  Developer shall be deemed to be in default of this 

Agreement if the Developer fails to comply with any covenants, clauses, provisions, or agreements 

contained herein and Authority has provided Developer with thirty (30) days written notice of 

default and the opportunity to cure such default, which shall not exceed (60) days, provided 

however, that if the Developer can provide evidence that it is actively, diligently, and expeditiously 

working on curing the default but cannot achieve full cure of the default within the sixty (60) day 

period, Authority shall grant a mutually agreeable extension of time to cure to Developer.  

Page 90 of 174



Marshall City, Northeast NIA, Green Development Ventures 
Development Agreement- Forest Street 

8

Provided that Developer has been properly served with notice of default to the addresses provided 

herein, Developer must pay to Authority, within thirty (30) days of the passing of the applicable 

deadline, liquidated damages in the amount of Two Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($200.00) per 

day for each day that Developer is in default of this Agreement, not to exceed each annual 

Developer’s debt participation payment as set forth in Paragraph 13.

9. UTILITY LIENS AND ASSESSMENTS.  In the event that, for any reason 

whatsoever, the Developer fails to substantially complete the Project, and apply for permits and 

pay all water and sewer charges required herein, the Developer consents that the equitable portion 

of any charges and the remaining bond balance at the time of default may be assessed against all 

property benefiting from such improvements, including the property contained in this Project, by 

the City Council as a special assessment for public infrastructure improvements. 

10. FORCE MAJEURE.  Neither City, Authority, nor Developer shall be considered 

in default of this Agreement to the extent that strict compliance or performance of any obligation, 

duty, or deadline is prevented by an act of God, fire, or vandalism.

11. CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP INTEREST.  Except for mortgages, security 

interests, or other liens to secure debt granted to Developer in connection with the Development, 

neither the managing member of the Developer, nor any successor in interest to the managing 

member of the Developer, may transfer or otherwise change the ownership of the Development 

Property or transfer, assign or convey its rights, duties, or obligations under this Agreement, 

without the prior written approval of the Authority.  Any such transfer or other change will not 

release, in any manner, the Developer or Developer's successors in interest, from any obligation 

under this Agreement, unless the Authority releases the Developer or its successors in interest in 

writing.

Page 91 of 174



Marshall City, Northeast NIA, Green Development Ventures 
Development Agreement- Forest Street 

9

12. ANNUAL UPDATE.  Developer agrees that on at least an annual basis, it will 

provide a presentation to the Marshall City Council and the Authority regarding the status of the 

construction of the homes pursuant to this Agreement.

13. TAX CAPTURE AND DEVELOPER PARTICIPATION IN DEBT PAYMENT. 

The Northeast Neighborhood Improvement Authority shall reserve and dedicate captured tax 

dollars in a given fiscal year towards the annual principal and interest amount requirement on any 

debt that may be outstanding as of June 30, of each succeeding year.  In case that the amount 

reserved and dedicated is not sufficient to meet the principal and interest payment requirements on 

the debt, the Developer will be notified on or before August 1st of the amount of payment required, 

and the Developer shall pay to the Authority the difference between the tax capture and debt 

payment due in the year at issue to make principal and interest payments as required.  A separate 

accounting shall be maintained of said payments by Developer.  In future years when the total tax 

dollars captured in a given fiscal year are sufficient to cover the annual principal and interest 

payment on any outstanding bond debt payment that may be due, the difference between the 

amount captured and the actual annual bond debt payment shall be reimbursed to the Developer 

as calculated on an annual basis until any amounts paid by the Developer to cover the bond costs 

in prior years have been reimbursed to the Developer.  This Agreement binds the parties, and their 

respective successors, representatives, and assigns. 

14. LIMITATIONS ON TAX INCREMENT REVENUE. Nothing contained in this 

Agreement shall be construed to establish any liability on the part of the City or the Authority to 

reimburse the Developer for any costs or expenses, except to the extent that such costs and 

expenses are eligible expenses under one or more tax increment financing plans approved by the 

City and the Authority, and sufficient taxes are actually captured by the City or Authority to pay 

for such costs and expenses.  

Page 92 of 174



Marshall City, Northeast NIA, Green Development Ventures 
Development Agreement- Forest Street 

10

15. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES. The Parties acknowledge and agree that 

this Agreement is made and entered into for the sole benefit of the Parties hereto and their 

successors and assigns including any lender participating in the financing of the Project, and in no 

event shall any other person, entity or agency be considered a party to this Agreement or a 

beneficiary under this Agreement.  Accordingly, there are no third-party beneficiaries under this 

Agreement. 

16. DEVELOPER’S INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION.  

a) Developer’s Insurance. Prior to commencing construction on all or any portion of the 

development site, Developer shall and Developer shall cause its agents, contractors and 

subcontractors, (the “Developer Parties”) to procure and maintain in full force and effect, at 

Developer’s sole expense, Builders Risk, Commercial General Liability Insurance, Commercial 

Automobile Liability Insurance, (including coverage for owned automobiles and for non-owned 

and hired automobiles), Umbrella or Excess Liability Insurance for the Commercial General 

Liability Insurance and Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance, Professional Liability as 

specified herein and any other insurance as may be required from time to time.  With the exception 

of Worker’s Compensation and Professional Liability Insurance, each policy must (i) identify the 

Authority and the City and their respective successors and assigns (collectively, “Developer’s 

Designees”) as additional insureds and (ii) include an endorsement providing that coverage in 

favor of Developer’s Designees will not be impaired in any way by any act, omission, or default 

of Developer, its contractors, employees, agents, representatives, or any other person. All 

insurance policies required hereunder shall be written as primary policies, not contributing with or 

in excess of any coverage maintained by the Authority or the City of Marshall.  Developer shall 

provide the Authority and City with a Certificate of Insurance and a copy of the additional insured 

endorsement at any time upon request. Commercial General Liability Insurance, Commercial 

Page 93 of 174



Marshall City, Northeast NIA, Green Development Ventures 
Development Agreement- Forest Street 

11

Automobile Liability Insurance, Umbrella or Excess Coverage and Worker’s Compensation 

Insurance shall be written with limits of liability not less than those shown below.  Builders Risk 

policies for each portion of the Project will be for the completed value of the structures and the 

Infrastructure Improvements, either in whole or as component parts of the Project based upon the 

construction cost.

Builders Risk  As stated above

Commercial General Liability

i. Each Occurrence $1,000,000; 

ii. General Aggregate $2,000,000 and;

iii. Products/Completed Operations (Aggregate) $2,000,000;

Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000

Commercial Automobile  $1,000,000 combined single limit

Umbrella  $5,000,000 each occurrence

Worker’s Compensation Statutory limits 

Employer’s Liability $1,000,000

Limited Pollution $1,000,000 

Professional Liability  $1,000,000 

Developer shall, and shall cause all Developer Parties to, maintain in effect all insurance 

coverages required hereunder, at the Developer’s sole expense or such Developer Party’s sole 

expense.  All insurance is to be issued by companies having a "General Policyholders Rating" of 

at least "A" and a financial rating of not less than Class XII.  All insurance policies shall provide 

that the coverage afforded shall not be canceled or non-renewed or restrictive modifications added, 

until at least ten (10) days' prior written notice has been given to each of the Developer’s 

Page 94 of 174



Marshall City, Northeast NIA, Green Development Ventures 
Development Agreement- Forest Street 

12

Designees.  Developer shall, at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of such policies, furnish 

Authority with renewals thereof.  In the event the Developer or Developer Parties fail to obtain or 

maintain any insurance coverage required under the Agreement, Authority may purchase such 

coverage and charge the cost thereof to Developer at 125% of the actual costs in order to 

compensate the Authority for the administrative time involved. 

b) General Indemnification.  To the extent, and only to the extent, not covered by the 

proceeds from the insurance policies required to be carried hereunder or under any other 

agreements between the parties hereto, the Developer agrees that it shall indemnify and hold 

harmless the Authority and the City from against and from any loss, damage, claim of damage, 

liability or expense to or for any person or property, whether based on contract, tort, negligence or 

otherwise, arising directly or indirectly out of or in connection with its acts or omissions in 

conjunction with the performance of this Agreement so indemnifying, its agents, servants, 

employees or contractors; provided, however, that nothing herein shall be construed to require a 

party to indemnify the other against such party’s own acts, omissions, or neglect.  

17. NOTICES.  Except as otherwise specified herein, all notices, consents, approvals, 

requests, and other communications (collectively called "Notices") required or permitted under 

this Agreement must be given in writing and are effective on delivery.  Delivery may be effectuated 

by personal service with receipt obtained; certified mail or first-class mail with delivery proof; or 

nationally recognized overnight courier delivery service with next business day delivery.  Notices 

must be addressed as follows:

If to the Authority: City Manager
323 W. Michigan Avenue
Marshall, Michigan 49068

With a copy to: City Attorney

Page 95 of 174



Marshall City, Northeast NIA, Green Development Ventures 
Development Agreement- Forest Street 

13

323 W. Michigan Avenue
Marshall, Michigan 49068

If to the Developer:  Green Development Ventures, LLC
2186 Centre Drive
Portage, MI 49024

With a copy to: Developer’s Attorney
Eric Guerin
2186 East Centre Avenue
Portage, MI 49002

18. SEVERABILITY.  If any part, term, or provision of this Agreement is found by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or unenforceable, the validity of the remaining portions 

and provisions will not be affected and the rights and obligations of the parties will be construed 

and enforced as if this Agreement did not contain the particular part, term, or provision held to be 

invalid unless it is a material term or provision of the agreement that would significantly alter the 

nature of the Agreement. All terms, conditions, responsibilities, duties, promises and obligations 

of the parties are binding upon the parties, their successors and assigns. 

19. LIMITATION OF REMEDIES FOR DEVELOPER, WAIVER. Developer agrees 

that its sole and exclusive remedy against the Authority or the City of Marshall for any claim 

arising out of this development, including but not limited to claims arising out of this Agreement 

shall be to seek and obtain specific performance of the terms of this Agreement including 

temporary and permanent injunctive relief.  All other claims arising out of this Project and this 

Agreement, whether for breach of contract, tort, or otherwise are waived by Developer. In the 

event that this Agreement is collaterally assigned to any other party, said party and lender and its 

successors and assigns shall have as its sole and exclusive remedy specific performance of the 

terms of this Agreement including temporary and permanent injunctive relief, and shall be deemed 

to have waived any other claims as specified in this provision.  Each party shall be responsible for 

Page 96 of 174



Marshall City, Northeast NIA, Green Development Ventures 
Development Agreement- Forest Street 

14

its individual attorney fees, costs, and expenses, including expert witness fees and expenses, in 

any proceeding or court action to enforce the terms of this agreement.  The award of any monetary 

relief shall be limited to the amounts owed in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, and 

the agreements and financing incorporated by reference in the terms of this Agreement in an action 

for specific performance, including temporary and permanent injunctive relief.

20. ASSIGNABILITY, TRANSFERABILITY, MODIFICATION.  This Agreement is 

not assignable, transferable, or modifiable without the express written agreement of the parties 

which shall not be unreasonably conditioned, delayed, or denied.  The Authority agrees to take 

reasonable steps necessary to promptly approve any assignment, transfer, or modification provided 

that any proposed new party to the Agreement agrees to be bound by the terms and conditions 

herein.  Nothing in this Agreement beyond that stated herein shall be construed to hinder, delay, 

or prohibit the assignment, transferability or modification of this Agreement or prohibit the 

Authority’s use of reasonable criteria to ensure that the Authority or City of Marshall are not 

subjected to additional material risk related to the Development as a result of any such assignment, 

transfer, or modification. If an assignment of this Agreement, including any and all ancillary 

agreements (to a party other than a state or federally regulated lender or financial services firm 

with assets in excess of $1,000,000,000 is requested by Developer prior to the issuance of all 

Certificates of Occupancy for the Project, reasonable criteria shall be considered by the Authority 

in order to insure that the proposed assignee has adequate financial strength and capabilities, 

reputation, experience and expertise and the proposed assignment does not subject the Authority 

to additional material risk related to the Development.  Authority agrees to perform such review 

within 30 business days of receiving that information reasonably necessary for such review. If an 

assignment of this Agreement (including any and all ancillary agreements) is requested by 

Developer after the issuance of all Certificates of Occupancy for the Development, reasonable 

Page 97 of 174



Marshall City, Northeast NIA, Green Development Ventures 
Development Agreement- Forest Street 

15

criteria shall be defined as that criteria necessary to insure that the proposed assignee agrees to be 

legally bound by the terms and conditions herein. If the Authority properly declines to approve an 

assignment in accord with the provisions of this section, Developer shall remain obligated to 

complete its obligations under the Agreement.  

21. COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of 

which is deemed an original document, but together constitute one instrument.

22. GOVERNING LAW AND INTERPRETATION.  The laws of the State of 

Michigan govern this Agreement and the venue for all proceedings in connection with this 

Agreement shall be Calhoun County, Michigan.  The pronouns and relative words used are written 

in the masculine and singular only.  If more than one joins in the execution hereof as Developer or 

is of the feminine sex or a corporation or limited liability company, such words are read as if 

written in plural, feminine, or neuter, respectively.  

23. HEADINGS.  The sections and paragraph headings contained in this Agreement 

are for reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way the interpretation of the Agreement

24. LEGAL REPRESENTATION.  It is acknowledged that each party to this 

Agreement had the opportunity to be represented by counsel in the preparation of this Agreement 

and, accordingly, the rule that a contract shall be interpreted strictly against the party preparing 

same shall not apply due to the joint contribution of both parties.

25. WAIVER.  The failure of either Party to exercise any right given hereunder or to 

insist upon strict compliance with regard to any provision of this Agreement, at any time, shall not 

constitute a waiver of such provision or the right by such at any time to avail itself of such remedies 

as it may have for any breach or breaches of such provision.

26. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES.  The relationship of the Authority and the 

Developer shall be defined solely by the expressed terms of this Agreement, including the 

Page 98 of 174



Marshall City, Northeast NIA, Green Development Ventures 
Development Agreement- Forest Street 

16

implementing documents described or contemplated herein, and neither the cooperation of the 

parties hereunder nor anything expressly or implicitly contained herein shall be deemed or 

construed to create a partnership, limited or general, or joint venture between the Authority and 

the Developer, nor shall any party or their agent be deemed to be the agent or employee of any 

party to this Agreement. Under no circumstances shall an agent, employee, or contractor of the 

Developer, be, nor considered to be, an employee of the Authority or of the City of Marshall. 

27. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  The parties agree that this Development Agreement 

contains the entire terms and conditions between the Authority and Developer and that there are 

no other agreements, representations, statements, or understandings, which have been relied on by 

the parties.

28. DRAFTING AND CONSTRUCTION.  All parties to this Agreement have 

participated fully and equally in the negotiation and preparation hereof; therefore, this Agreement 

shall not be more strictly construed or any ambiguities within this Agreement resolved against any 

party hereto. 

29. DUE AUTHORIZATION.  The Authority and the Developer each warrant and 

represent to the other that this Agreement and the terms and condition thereof have been duly 

authorized and approved by, in the case of the Authority, its Board and all other governmental 

agencies whose approval may be required as a precaution to the effectiveness hereof, and as to the 

Developer, by the members thereof, and that the persons who have executed this Agreement below 

have been duly authorized to do so.  The parties hereto agree to provide such opinions of counsel 

as to the due authorization and binding effect of this Agreement and the collateral documents 

contemplated hereby as the other party shall reasonably request. 

Page 99 of 174



Marshall City, Northeast NIA, Green Development Ventures 
Development Agreement- Forest Street 

17

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

Page 100 of 174



Marshall City, Northeast NIA, Green Development Ventures 
Development Agreement- Forest Street 

18

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date 

first set forth above. 

WITNESSES:     CITY OF MARSHALL 
  
_______________________________ By_______________________________ 
       Jim Schwartz, Mayor 
 
 
_______________________________ By_______________________________ 
       Michelle Eubank, City Clerk 

      
 
 

CITY OF MARSHALL NORTH EAST 
NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT 
AUTHORITY

_______________________________ By_______________________________ 
      
 
 

 Scott Wolfersberger, Chairperson 

      
 
_______________________________ By_______________________________ 
       Tom Larabel, Vice President

Green Development Ventures, LLC 
       
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
By_______________________________ 
 David M. Revore, City Attorney 

Page 101 of 174



Marshall City, Northeast NIA, Green Development Ventures 
Development Agreement- Forest Street 

19

EXHIBIT A – Proposed Plan for Phase 1

Page 102 of 174



 

ITEM 12.I 

 
  
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
FROM: Derek N. Perry, City Manager 

Eric Zuzga, Director of Community Services 
Justin Miller, Parks and Recreation Superintendent 

DATE: March 6, 2023  
SUBJECT: SENIOR MILLAGE GRANT REQUEST  
  
 
After the donation of the former Eaton parking lot at Hanover and Fountain Streets, a committee 
was formed to work on the development of the property.  The development process was 
separated in two phases, with the pickleball courts and parking lot encompassing the first 
phase.  The next step in the development process involved the committee members and city 
staff developing a funding plan for the completion of phase 1.   
  
Staff has been successful in receiving $670,000 in grant funding to date.  The next funding 
opportunity that has been identified is the Calhoun County Senior Millage Strategic Projects 
grant opportunity.  Staff are currently finalizing an application for $150,000 from Senior Services 
to help towards phase 1 construction, specifically the pickleball courts.   
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
This grant will assist in the creation of Eaton Park.  As no City funding match is required, there 
is no impact on the budget at this time.  Future budget amendments will be necessary for 
construction. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the submission of a $150,000 grant to the Senior Millage Strategic Projects program. 
 

Page 103 of 174



 

ITEM 12.J 

 
  
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
FROM: Derek N. Perry, City Manager 

Eric Zuzga, Director of Community Services 
Justin Miller, Parks and Recreation Superintendent 

DATE: March 6, 2023  
SUBJECT: MLB - SCOTTS FIELD REFURBISHMENT GRANT  
  
 
The Marshall Athletic Fields are a staple of our youth and adult baseball, softball and t-ball 
programs. The fields have been used for by house leagues, travel leagues and tournaments 
over the years. With this much activity at the fields the wear and tear has begun to take its toll. 
We are asking to write a grant for up to $50,000 through the MLB - Scotts Field Refurbishment 
grant. This grant would allow us to repair our batters boxes and pitching areas that would last 
for years. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
As the grant does not require a local city match, there is no budget impact on the city. The 
submitted grant proposal would cover the cost of the equipment and installation. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the submission of a $50,000 to the MLB-Scotts Field Refurbishment Grant program. 
 

Page 104 of 174



 

ITEM 12.K 

 
  
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
FROM: Derek N. Perry, City Manager 

William Dopp, Finance Director/ City Treasurer 
DATE: March 6, 2023  
SUBJECT: SECOND QUARTER FY2023 FINANCIAL REPORT  
  
 
In accordance with Section 9.07 of the City Charter, the following financial statements are 
submitted to the Council for the 2nd quarter ending December 31, 2022.  The statements 
cover the period beginning July 1, 2022 and ending December 31, 2022. Highlights of the 
financial statements follow. 
  
Note: References to funds being over or below budget are based upon two quarters of the 
fiscal year being completed; hence an assumption is made that 50% of the line item should 
be realized.  This assumption does not apply in all cases, as revenues and expenditures may 
be seasonal.  A 10% variance is considered acceptable. 
  
The Revenue and Expenditure Report is designed to show the status of the current year's 
sources and uses of revenue, including a comparison to the annual budget. The difference 
between the revenues and expenditures is reflected as the net effect; a positive would reflect 
a net income/surplus for the year, and a negative would reflect an over budget for the year.  
  
General Fund 
  

• As of December 31, 2022, the City had collected approximately 74% of its anticipated 
General Fund revenue.  This amount reflects the collection of summer tax revenue.  
  

• As of December 31, 2022, overall General Fund expenditures are at 54%.        Specific 
General Fund expenditure highlights are below: 
  

• The Clerk Department is at 65% spent. This is expected as elections are 
complete.  
  

• The City Hall Department is at 71% spent. This is primarily due to the 
replacement of a generator for $13,655. A budget amendment, increasing the 
expenditure budget for maintenance of the building is included in your agenda.  

  

• The Police Department is at 52% of budgeted expenditures.  

Page 105 of 174



  

• The Crossing Guards Department is at 103% of budgeted expenditures. A 
budget amendment for $2,700 to increase the part-time salaries expenditure 
budget is included in your agenda. 

  

• The Fire Department is at 56% of budgeted expenditures due to the timing of 
debt service payments.  

  

• The Cemetery Department is at 62% of budgeted expenditures, primarily due to 
contracted services and payroll being overspent year to date. Director Davenport 
is looking into wage allocations and if a budget amendment is necessary, it will 
be brought forward after the 3rd quarter financial review.  
  
  

Non-General Funds 
  
MVH Local Fund: 43% of revenue has been collected but 119% of the expenditure budget 
has been spent. Capital outlay has a budget of $37,000 but $238,096 has been expended 
year to date. A budget amendment to cover the cost of this street project is included as an 
agenda item.  
  
Municipal Street Fund: Expenditures are at 92% due to the majority of work being performed 
during the July – December construction project season. A budget amendment is included as 
an agenda item. 
  
Farmer’s Market:  Expenditures are at 25%, low due to the seasonality of the operation.  
  
American Rescue Plan Act:  Revenue in the amount of $603,543 has been received, more 
than the budgeted amount of $364,456. No expenditures have occurred fiscal year to date, 
as a plan for the funds is still being developed. ARPA funds must be committed by December 
31, 2024 and expended by December 31, 2026. 
  
Airport:  Revenues are at 40% of the budget. Expenditures are at 65% of budget, primarily 
due to higher fuel costs.  These costs will be tracked and if another budget amendment is 
required for fuel, it will be brought forward after the 3rd quarter review.  
  
Special Projects Fund: Revenue and expenditure budgets need to be set up for this fund 
for miscellaneous projects and a budget amendment will be done later in the fiscal year.  
  
Marshall House Fund: Revenue is at 46% of budget and expenditures are at 69% of budget. 
Certain expenses, such as contracted services and building maintenance are running high 
and will be tracked. A budget amendment in the amount of $293,000 for environmental 
activities performed by Triterra in support of the sale of the Marshall House is included in your 
agenda.    
  

Page 106 of 174



Electric: Revenues are at 51% of budget and expenditures are at 44%. This is normal for 
this time of year.  Because this fund is operating under a Deficit Elimination Plan, Finance 
wanted to highlight that this fund is currently on track.  
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
Staff has prepared the necessary budget amendments in order to be compliant with State 
law.  This is a separate item for Council consideration. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Accept the Second Quarter FY 2023 Financial Report as presented and place it on file. 
 

Page 107 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 1/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - General Fund
Revenues
Dept 000

96.98 3,859,681.80 0.00 3,980,021.00 3,980,021.00 Current Property Taxes101-000-402.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 Delinquent Personal Prop Taxes101-000-412.00

15.43 3,856.92 0.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 Penalties & Int. on Taxes101-000-445.00
86.28 120,797.66 0.00 140,000.00 140,000.00 Tax Collection Fees101-000-447.00
10.50 210.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 Licenses and Permits101-000-476.00
84.35 168,692.00 0.00 200,000.00 200,000.00 Permits101-000-476.01
10.00 20,000.00 0.00 200,000.00 200,000.00 APPLICATIONS - MMFP101-000-476.02
35.17 14,068.39 0.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 Cable Commissions101-000-477.00
120.82 10,269.60 0.00 8,500.00 8,500.00 Liquor License Refund101-000-541.00
30.93 48,870.98 0.00 158,000.00 158,000.00 LOCAL COMM STAB SHARE TAX101-000-573.00
66.99 438,703.00 0.00 654,846.00 654,846.00 State Shared Rev-Constitutiona101-000-574.00
17.74 21,819.00 0.00 123,000.00 123,000.00 State Shared Rev-StatutoryEVIP101-000-574.01
50.00 63,794.00 0.00 127,583.00 127,583.00 Contributions from Local Units101-000-588.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 19,996.00 19,996.00 CONTRIBUTIONS - COUNTY PARK MILLAGE 101-000-588.14

50.00 49,480.50 0.00 98,961.00 0.00 Contributions from School101-000-589.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 40.00 40.00 NSF Revenue101-000-602.00

29.25 1,170.00 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 Charges for Services - Fees101-000-607.00
100.00 58.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 Charges for Services - FOIA101-000-607.01
95.00 950.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Charges for Ser.-Plan & Zone101-000-607.02
0.00 0.00 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 FIRE INSPECTION FEES101-000-607.03

28.30 2,830.00 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 Charges for Services101-000-626.00
43.11 29,312.60 0.00 68,000.00 68,000.00 Charges for Services - Sales101-000-642.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 Charges for Serv-Columbarium101-000-642.01

47.40 474.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Parking Violations101-000-658.00
41.54 4,985.05 0.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 District Court - Ord. Fines101-000-659.00
100.00 20.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Civil Infractions101-000-659.01
559.44 16,783.32 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 Interest101-000-665.00
23.46 11,732.00 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 Rents101-000-667.00
50.00 256,441.98 0.00 512,884.00 512,884.00 RENTS-ROW101-000-667.02
100.00 20,650.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Sales of Fixed Assets101-000-673.00
45.07 83,376.00 0.00 185,000.00 185,000.00 Contrib. from Other Sources101-000-675.00
100.00 (10.00)0.00 0.00 0.00 CASH - OVER & SHORT101-000-677.00
23.46 30,496.99 0.00 130,000.00 130,000.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE101-000-679.00
25.00 113,092.75 0.00 452,371.00 452,371.00 COST ALLOCATION REIMBURSEMENT101-000-680.00
21.43 6,428.75 0.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 Transfers From Other Funds101-000-699.00

74.06 5,399,035.84 0.00 7,289,702.00 7,190,741.00 Total Dept 000

74.06 5,399,035.84 0.00 7,289,702.00 7,190,741.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 101 - City Council

50.00 1,150.00 0.00 2,300.00 2,300.00 Part-time Salaries101-101-703.00
4.63 2.96 0.00 64.00 64.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION101-101-712.00

49.97 87.94 0.00 176.00 176.00 Social Security101-101-715.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 132.00 132.00 Operating Supplies101-101-740.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 285.00 285.00 Dues & Memberships101-101-810.00

41.96 1,240.90 0.00 2,957.00 2,957.00 Total Dept 101 - City Council

Dept 172 - City Manager
41.24 69,453.10 0.00 168,405.00 168,405.00 Payroll101-172-702.00
100.00 3,049.99 0.00 0.00 0.00 Other Fringe Benefits-taxable101-172-702.01

Page 108 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 2/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - General Fund
Expenditures

81.22 519.00 0.00 639.00 639.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION101-172-712.00
23.15 2,982.37 0.00 12,883.00 12,883.00 Social Security101-172-715.00
42.19 10,901.00 0.00 25,835.00 25,835.00 Hospitalization101-172-716.00
40.38 182.12 0.00 451.00 451.00 Life Insurance101-172-717.00
7.54 2,547.97 0.00 33,804.00 33,804.00 RETIREMENT - D/B101-172-718.00

155.92 8,672.44 0.00 5,562.00 5,562.00 RETIREMENT - D/C101-172-718.10
558.10 279.05 0.00 50.00 50.00 Office Supplies101-172-727.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 283.00 283.00 Fuels & Lubricants101-172-757.00
67.96 1,359.25 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 Dues & Memberships101-172-810.00
100.00 277.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 Communications101-172-850.00
100.00 955.35 0.00 0.00 0.00 Transportation & Travel101-172-860.00
50.00 2,943.48 0.00 5,887.00 5,887.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE101-172-941.01
26.43 185.00 0.00 700.00 700.00 Education & Training101-172-958.00

40.67 104,307.60 0.00 256,499.00 256,499.00 Total Dept 172 - City Manager

Dept 215 - Clerk
58.32 16,094.61 0.00 27,596.00 27,596.00 Payroll101-215-702.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 750.00 750.00 Other Fringe Benefits-taxable101-215-702.01

100.29 5,014.50 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 Part-time Salaries101-215-703.00
100.00 308.16 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime Salaries101-215-704.00
134.81 130.77 0.00 97.00 97.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION101-215-712.00
46.03 1,174.16 0.00 2,551.00 2,551.00 Social Security101-215-715.00
51.30 6,349.46 0.00 12,378.00 12,378.00 Hospitalization101-215-716.00
47.82 31.56 0.00 66.00 66.00 Life Insurance101-215-717.00
57.07 4,082.17 0.00 7,153.00 7,153.00 RETIREMENT - D/B101-215-718.00
152.43 228.64 0.00 150.00 150.00 Office Supplies101-215-727.00
100.00 27.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 Postage and Shipping101-215-727.02
100.00 3.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 Equipment & Supplies101-215-728.00
100.00 90.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Professional Services101-215-801.00
67.76 166.00 0.00 245.00 245.00 Dues & Memberships101-215-810.00
34.58 511.50 0.00 1,479.00 1,479.00 Contracted Services101-215-820.00
141.11 9,877.62 0.00 7,000.00 7,000.00 Elections101-215-830.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 150.00 150.00 Transportation & Travel101-215-860.00
37.29 2,237.68 0.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 Advertising101-215-901.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 192.00 192.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL101-215-941.00

50.00 993.48 0.00 1,987.00 1,987.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE101-215-941.01
0.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 300.00 Education & Training101-215-958.00

64.74 47,322.13 0.00 73,094.00 73,094.00 Total Dept 215 - Clerk

Dept 242 - Chapel
100.00 285.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Building Maintenance Supplies101-242-776.00
107.20 230.48 0.00 215.00 215.00 Insurance101-242-825.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 Maintenance of Building101-242-931.00

30.06 515.48 0.00 1,715.00 1,715.00 Total Dept 242 - Chapel

Dept 253 - Treasurer
43.55 126,838.38 0.00 291,236.00 291,236.00 Payroll101-253-702.00
803.57 2,249.99 0.00 280.00 280.00 Other Fringe Benefits-taxable101-253-702.01
100.00 280.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime Salaries101-253-704.00
113.50 1,232.65 0.00 1,086.00 1,086.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION101-253-712.00

Page 109 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 3/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - General Fund
Expenditures

41.24 9,197.08 0.00 22,301.00 22,301.00 Social Security101-253-715.00
32.89 35,685.07 0.00 108,506.00 108,506.00 Hospitalization101-253-716.00
32.21 162.04 0.00 503.00 503.00 Life Insurance101-253-717.00
7.54 825.10 0.00 10,947.00 10,947.00 RETIREMENT - D/B101-253-718.00

62.58 11,616.93 0.00 18,563.00 18,563.00 RETIREMENT - D/C101-253-718.10
112.93 4,517.32 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 Office Supplies101-253-727.00
56.67 6,800.67 0.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 Postage and Shipping101-253-727.02
97.58 42,088.82 66,836.18 111,625.00 111,625.00 Professional Services101-253-801.00
39.80 199.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 Dues & Memberships101-253-810.00
100.00 2,805.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Contracted Services101-253-820.00
32.63 1,631.55 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 Communications101-253-850.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 Transportation & Travel101-253-860.00

146.76 293.52 0.00 200.00 200.00 Advertising101-253-901.00
92.93 139.39 0.00 150.00 150.00 Equipment Maintenance101-253-930.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 192.00 192.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL101-253-941.00

50.00 13,392.00 0.00 26,784.00 26,784.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE101-253-941.01
7.50 75.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Education & Training101-253-958.00

53.12 260,030.25 66,836.18 615,373.00 615,373.00 Total Dept 253 - Treasurer

Dept 257 - City Assessor
46.54 558.43 0.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 Part-time Salaries101-257-703.00
73.25 2.93 0.00 4.00 4.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION101-257-712.00
46.43 42.72 0.00 92.00 92.00 Social Security101-257-715.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 Office Supplies101-257-727.00

47.86 28,670.00 0.00 59,900.00 59,900.00 Contracted Services101-257-820.00
44.46 240.06 0.00 540.00 540.00 Communications101-257-850.00
50.00 4,698.48 0.00 9,397.00 9,397.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE101-257-941.01

47.76 34,212.62 0.00 71,633.00 71,633.00 Total Dept 257 - City Assessor

Dept 261 - Non-departmental
55.47 175,654.70 0.00 316,666.00 316,666.00 RETIREMENT - D/B101-261-718.00
63.25 273,519.97 0.00 432,430.00 322,430.00 Retiree Health Insurance101-261-718.01
58.19 610.97 0.00 1,050.00 1,050.00 Miscellaneous Supplies101-261-755.00
199.84 11,690.80 0.00 5,850.00 5,850.00 Professional Services101-261-801.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 Service Fee101-261-803.00
37.00 2,590.02 0.00 7,000.00 7,000.00 BANK FEES101-261-804.00
79.56 1,591.22 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 Administrative Costs101-261-805.00
10.58 550.00 0.00 5,200.00 5,200.00 Dues & Memberships101-261-810.00
89.79 43,997.50 0.00 48,998.00 10,000.00 Contracted Services101-261-820.00
125.70 10,055.98 0.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 Insurance101-261-825.00
33.32 999.50 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 Communications101-261-850.00
109.35 1,603.00 0.00 1,466.00 1,466.00 Rentals101-261-940.00

6.35 95.31 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 Refund or Rebates101-261-964.00
31.63 26,664.00 0.00 84,288.00 57,624.00 Transfers to Other Funds101-261-995.00

59.90 549,622.97 0.00 917,548.00 741,886.00 Total Dept 261 - Non-departmental

Dept 265 - City Hall
46.52 2,236.86 0.00 4,808.00 4,808.00 Payroll101-265-702.00
54.19 9,673.20 0.00 17,850.00 17,850.00 Part-time Salaries101-265-703.00
58.80 421.02 0.00 716.00 716.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION101-265-712.00

Page 110 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 4/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - General Fund
Expenditures

52.22 905.52 0.00 1,734.00 1,734.00 Social Security101-265-715.00
46.00 371.19 0.00 807.00 807.00 Hospitalization101-265-716.00
46.00 1.84 0.00 4.00 4.00 Life Insurance101-265-717.00
43.84 210.88 0.00 481.00 481.00 RETIREMENT - D/C101-265-718.10
137.11 5,484.28 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 Building Maintenance Supplies101-265-776.00
19.29 1,205.37 0.00 6,250.00 6,250.00 Contracted Services101-265-820.00
108.34 4,023.70 0.00 3,714.00 3,714.00 Insurance101-265-825.00
44.53 1,781.20 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 Utilities - Gas101-265-921.00
45.06 8,907.16 0.00 19,768.00 19,768.00 Utilities-Elec, Water, Sewer101-265-922.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 Equipment Maintenance101-265-930.00

161.87 20,823.04 10.00 12,870.00 12,870.00 Maintenance of Building101-265-931.00
50.00 163.50 0.00 327.00 327.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE101-265-941.01

71.32 56,208.76 10.00 78,829.00 78,829.00 Total Dept 265 - City Hall

Dept 266 - CITY ATTORNEY
27.03 27,034.00 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 Professional Services101-266-801.00

27.03 27,034.00 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 Total Dept 266 - CITY ATTORNEY

Dept 268 - Other City Property
99.05 61,411.68 0.00 62,000.00 62,000.00 Taxes101-268-811.00

99.05 61,411.68 0.00 62,000.00 62,000.00 Total Dept 268 - Other City Property

Dept 270 - Human Resources
40.60 21,682.06 0.00 53,410.00 53,410.00 Payroll101-270-702.00
50.00 750.01 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 Other Fringe Benefits-taxable101-270-702.01
100.00 33.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime Salaries101-270-704.00
69.38 123.50 0.00 178.00 178.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION101-270-712.00
38.07 1,599.21 0.00 4,201.00 4,201.00 Social Security101-270-715.00
33.19 8,216.04 0.00 24,757.00 24,757.00 Hospitalization101-270-716.00
38.64 51.00 0.00 132.00 132.00 Life Insurance101-270-717.00
49.53 6,857.41 0.00 13,844.00 13,844.00 RETIREMENT - D/B101-270-718.00
27.31 81.93 0.00 300.00 300.00 Office Supplies101-270-727.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 50.00 Operating Supplies101-270-740.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 Professional Services101-270-801.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 Dues & Memberships101-270-810.00
5.80 58.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Advertising101-270-901.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 192.00 192.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL101-270-941.00

50.00 1,987.02 0.00 3,974.00 3,974.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE101-270-941.01
0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 200.00 Education & Training101-270-958.00

39.72 41,439.84 0.00 104,338.00 104,338.00 Total Dept 270 - Human Resources

Dept 301 - Police
45.20 451,283.68 0.00 998,472.00 998,472.00 Payroll101-301-702.00
74.40 28,416.33 0.00 38,192.00 38,192.00 Other Fringe Benefits-taxable101-301-702.01
100.00 283.11 0.00 0.00 0.00 PAYROLL - S/T TRAINING101-301-702.75
42.73 10,233.59 0.00 23,949.00 23,949.00 Part-time Salaries101-301-703.00
12.80 11,262.56 0.00 88,010.00 88,010.00 Overtime Salaries101-301-704.00
100.00 3,506.16 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime - Worked Over/Late Complaint101-301-704.70

Page 111 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 5/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - General Fund
Expenditures

100.00 5,981.12 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime - Cover for Sick Time101-301-704.71
100.00 28,551.41 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime - Posted Patrol 101-301-704.72
100.00 896.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime - Court/Informal Hearing101-301-704.74
100.00 8,908.83 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime - Training101-301-704.75
100.00 3,039.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime - Special Event Coverage101-301-704.76
100.00 58.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime - Called in for Major Crime101-301-704.77
80.07 19,333.53 0.00 24,145.00 24,145.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION101-301-712.00
46.07 8,409.03 0.00 18,254.00 18,254.00 Social Security101-301-715.00
35.15 92,337.04 0.00 262,704.00 262,704.00 Hospitalization101-301-716.00
48.09 918.00 0.00 1,909.00 1,909.00 Life Insurance101-301-717.00
53.44 153,318.45 0.00 286,908.00 286,908.00 RETIREMENT - D/B101-301-718.00
26.08 521.67 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 Office Supplies101-301-727.00
103.42 51.71 0.00 50.00 50.00 Postage and Shipping101-301-727.02

6.04 666.49 0.00 11,034.00 11,034.00 Operating Supplies101-301-740.00
73.33 5,133.07 0.00 7,000.00 7,000.00 Uniforms101-301-741.00
63.03 2,205.90 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 Laundry101-301-742.00
28.75 11,921.93 0.00 41,467.00 41,467.00 Fuels & Lubricants101-301-757.00
59.96 2,158.67 0.00 3,600.00 3,600.00 Professional Services101-301-801.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 MEDICAL SERVICES101-301-806.00

70.14 775.00 0.00 1,105.00 1,105.00 Dues & Memberships101-301-810.00
58.76 19,981.26 0.00 34,006.00 34,006.00 Contracted Services101-301-820.00
120.75 16,253.50 0.00 13,461.00 13,461.00 Insurance101-301-825.00
32.08 6,631.81 0.00 20,675.00 20,675.00 Communications101-301-850.00
6.62 198.52 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 Transportation & Travel101-301-860.00

39.46 236.74 0.00 600.00 600.00 Advertising101-301-901.00
23.68 1,976.78 225.00 9,300.00 9,300.00 Equipment Maintenance101-301-930.00
9.28 44.54 0.00 480.00 480.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL101-301-941.00

50.00 20,628.48 0.00 41,257.00 41,257.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE101-301-941.01
50.00 19,478.52 0.00 38,957.00 38,957.00 MOTOR POOL REPLACEMENT CHARGE101-301-941.02
59.85 36,631.00 0.00 61,206.00 61,206.00 MOTOR POOL OPERATING CHARGE101-301-941.03
29.87 3,163.21 0.00 10,590.00 10,590.00 Education & Training101-301-958.00
100.00 7,637.69 0.00 0.00 0.00 SHARE OF CAPITAL PURCHASED BY OTHER FUND101-301-972.00
77.49 212,076.30 0.00 273,691.00 110,374.00 Transfers to Other Funds101-301-995.00

51.50 1,195,109.43 225.00 2,321,022.00 2,157,705.00 Total Dept 301 - Police

Dept 315 - Crossing Guards
96.72 2,418.00 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 Part-time Salaries101-315-703.00
93.16 164.89 0.00 177.00 177.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION101-315-712.00
100.00 184.98 0.00 0.00 0.00 Social Security101-315-715.00

103.39 2,767.87 0.00 2,677.00 2,677.00 Total Dept 315 - Crossing Guards

Dept 325 - Dispatch Operations
48.73 92,578.36 0.00 190,000.00 190,000.00 Contracted Services101-325-820.00

48.73 92,578.36 0.00 190,000.00 190,000.00 Total Dept 325 - Dispatch Operations

Dept 336 - Fire
50.66 242,371.15 0.00 478,446.00 478,446.00 Payroll101-336-702.00
30.80 15,874.98 0.00 51,547.00 51,547.00 Other Fringe Benefits-taxable101-336-702.01
100.00 952.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 PAYROLL - S/T TRAINING101-336-702.75

5.72 3,538.00 0.00 61,800.00 61,800.00 Part-time Salaries101-336-703.00

Page 112 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 6/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - General Fund
Expenditures

8.41 4,766.19 0.00 56,650.00 56,650.00 Overtime Salaries101-336-704.00
100.00 558.47 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime - Cover for Sick Time101-336-704.71
100.00 1,686.57 0.00 0.00 0.00 OVERTIME - POSTED STATION CVRG 101-336-704.72
100.00 2,027.65 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime - Training101-336-704.75
100.00 1,192.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime - Special Event Coverage101-336-704.76
100.00 1,615.63 0.00 0.00 0.00 OVERTIME FIRE TONE RESPONSE ACTUAL101-336-704.78
100.00 986.54 0.00 0.00 0.00 OVERTIME FIRE TONE RESPONSE FALSE101-336-704.79
69.28 15,886.92 0.00 22,931.00 22,931.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION101-336-712.00
68.51 3,600.00 0.00 5,255.00 5,255.00 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS-NON TAX101-336-713.00
30.98 4,100.49 0.00 13,234.00 13,234.00 Social Security101-336-715.00
46.15 42,747.68 0.00 92,632.00 92,632.00 Hospitalization101-336-716.00
40.37 189.72 0.00 470.00 470.00 Life Insurance101-336-717.00
70.23 188,027.52 0.00 267,744.00 267,744.00 RETIREMENT - D/B101-336-718.00
44.86 3,592.60 0.00 8,008.00 8,008.00 RETIREMENT - D/C101-336-718.10
13.82 82.89 0.00 600.00 600.00 Office Supplies101-336-727.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 50.00 Postage and Shipping101-336-727.02

17.88 893.84 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 Operating Supplies101-336-740.00
66.60 998.93 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 MEDICAL AND RESCUE SUPPLIES101-336-740.10
17.69 1,680.62 0.00 9,500.00 9,500.00 Uniforms101-336-741.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 200.00 Laundry101-336-742.00

55.45 665.41 0.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 Miscellaneous Supplies101-336-755.00
102.34 8,187.15 0.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 Fuels & Lubricants101-336-757.00
29.86 447.95 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 Repair & Maintenance Supplies101-336-775.00
143.86 2,301.82 0.00 1,600.00 1,600.00 Building Maintenance Supplies101-336-776.00
185.68 3,713.51 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 MINOR TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT101-336-777.00
57.10 1,713.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 MEDICAL SERVICES101-336-806.00
22.50 135.00 0.00 600.00 600.00 Dues & Memberships101-336-810.00
189.13 19,858.82 0.00 10,500.00 10,500.00 Contracted Services101-336-820.00
132.19 7,508.38 0.00 5,680.00 5,680.00 Insurance101-336-825.00
11.43 2,513.68 0.00 22,000.00 22,000.00 Communications101-336-850.00
14.29 214.29 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 Transportation & Travel101-336-860.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 Advertising101-336-901.00

48.95 2,007.10 0.00 4,100.00 4,100.00 Utilities - Gas101-336-921.00
43.62 9,595.80 0.00 22,000.00 22,000.00 Utilities-Elec, Water, Sewer101-336-922.00
54.79 21,917.89 0.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 Equipment Maintenance101-336-930.00
63.35 2,850.90 0.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 Maintenance of Building101-336-931.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 192.00 192.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL101-336-941.00

50.00 11,534.52 0.00 23,069.00 23,069.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE101-336-941.01
50.00 974.52 0.00 1,949.00 1,949.00 MOTOR POOL REPLACEMENT CHARGE101-336-941.02
59.86 4,105.48 0.00 6,859.00 6,859.00 MOTOR POOL OPERATING CHARGE101-336-941.03
20.85 2,084.71 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 Education & Training101-336-958.00
49.76 20,772.39 0.00 41,744.00 0.00 Debt Service101-336-990.00
52.98 1,763.76 0.00 3,329.00 0.00 Bond Interest Paid101-336-994.00
100.00 143,319.00 0.00 143,319.00 0.00 Transfers to Other Funds101-336-995.00

56.16 805,556.73 0.00 1,434,308.00 1,245,916.00 Total Dept 336 - Fire

Dept 371 - Inspection
43.26 38,289.80 0.00 88,511.00 88,511.00 Payroll101-371-702.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 224.00 224.00 Other Fringe Benefits-taxable101-371-702.01

100.00 31.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime Salaries101-371-704.00
72.87 291.47 0.00 400.00 400.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION101-371-712.00
41.89 2,843.28 0.00 6,788.00 6,788.00 Social Security101-371-715.00
33.18 4,348.95 0.00 13,108.00 13,108.00 Hospitalization101-371-716.00
37.50 36.00 0.00 96.00 96.00 Life Insurance101-371-717.00

Page 113 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 7/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - General Fund
Expenditures

44.08 3,696.63 0.00 8,387.00 8,387.00 RETIREMENT - D/C101-371-718.10
15.09 38.47 0.00 255.00 255.00 Office Supplies101-371-727.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 765.00 765.00 Operating Supplies101-371-740.00

59.80 487.98 0.00 816.00 816.00 Fuels & Lubricants101-371-757.00
100.00 18.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 Professional Services101-371-801.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 375.00 375.00 Dues & Memberships101-371-810.00
52.45 10,490.00 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 Contracted Services101-371-820.00
79.04 592.80 0.00 750.00 750.00 Transportation & Travel101-371-860.00
50.00 1,757.50 0.00 3,515.00 3,515.00 Rentals101-371-940.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 192.00 192.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL101-371-941.00

50.00 2,548.98 0.00 5,098.00 5,098.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE101-371-941.01
59.85 1,263.52 0.00 2,111.00 2,111.00 MOTOR POOL OPERATING CHARGE101-371-941.03
45.98 459.77 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Education & Training101-371-958.00

44.09 67,194.50 0.00 152,391.00 152,391.00 Total Dept 371 - Inspection

Dept 441 - Street
42.65 81,968.38 0.00 192,184.00 192,184.00 Payroll101-441-702.00
154.66 3,323.64 0.00 2,149.00 2,149.00 Other Fringe Benefits-taxable101-441-702.01
82.42 29,669.68 0.00 36,000.00 36,000.00 Payroll - Forestry Tree Removal&Trimming101-441-702.60
46.56 2,327.84 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 Payroll - Events Barricades/Banners101-441-702.61
12.10 532.40 0.00 4,400.00 4,400.00 Payroll - Parking Lot Maint101-441-702.62
35.34 2,014.13 0.00 5,700.00 5,700.00 Payroll - Christmas Decorations101-441-702.63
100.00 1,113.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 Payroll - Sign Replacement101-441-702.66
100.00 260.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 Payroll - Sidewalk101-441-702.67
100.00 104.94 0.00 0.00 0.00 KETCHUM PARK RESTROOM101-441-702.68
68.67 7,141.74 0.00 10,400.00 10,400.00 Part-time Salaries101-441-703.00
100.00 51.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 PART-TIME - EVENTS BARRICADES/BANNERS101-441-703.61
67.69 3,249.02 0.00 4,800.00 4,800.00 Overtime Salaries101-441-704.00
108.34 5,200.37 0.00 4,800.00 4,800.00 Overtime - Forestry Removal&Trimming101-441-704.60
122.99 1,453.71 0.00 1,182.00 1,182.00 Overtime - Events Barricades/Banners101-441-704.61

4.70 112.80 0.00 2,400.00 2,400.00 Overtime - Parking Lot Maint101-441-704.62
67.77 15,219.09 0.00 22,457.00 22,457.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION101-441-712.00
35.30 10,542.16 0.00 29,867.00 29,867.00 Social Security101-441-715.00
38.77 40,145.83 0.00 103,544.00 103,544.00 Hospitalization101-441-716.00
37.83 255.76 0.00 676.00 676.00 Life Insurance101-441-717.00
49.54 14,391.44 0.00 29,053.00 29,053.00 RETIREMENT - D/B101-441-718.00
58.84 19,002.12 0.00 32,297.00 32,297.00 RETIREMENT - D/C101-441-718.10
13.43 55.88 0.00 416.00 416.00 Office Supplies101-441-727.00
57.10 4,158.94 0.00 7,283.00 7,283.00 Operating Supplies101-441-740.00
265.47 11,043.66 0.00 4,160.00 4,160.00 Uniforms101-441-741.00
54.51 16,523.79 0.00 30,316.00 30,316.00 Fuels & Lubricants101-441-757.00
100.87 1,070.24 0.00 1,061.00 1,061.00 Safety Supplies101-441-761.00
(8.79)(131.80)0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 Repair & Maintenance Supplies101-441-775.00
27.70 775.69 0.00 2,800.00 2,800.00 MINOR TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT101-441-777.00
22.76 355.35 0.00 1,561.00 1,561.00 Professional Services101-441-801.00
75.80 758.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 MEDICAL SERVICES101-441-806.00
14.20 75.00 0.00 528.00 528.00 Dues & Memberships101-441-810.00
20.91 8,802.91 0.00 42,100.00 42,100.00 Contracted Services101-441-820.00
107.97 518.24 0.00 480.00 480.00 Communications101-441-850.00
59.56 506.25 0.00 850.00 850.00 Transportation & Travel101-441-860.00
134.01 268.02 0.00 200.00 200.00 Advertising101-441-901.00
49.26 40,389.58 0.00 82,000.00 82,000.00 Utilities-Elec, Water, Sewer101-441-922.00
18.83 1,152.16 0.00 6,120.00 6,120.00 Contracted Maintenance101-441-939.00
48.90 12,423.50 0.00 25,407.00 25,407.00 Rentals101-441-940.00

Page 114 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 8/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - General Fund
Expenditures

(0.80)(279.39)0.00 35,000.00 35,000.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL101-441-941.00
50.00 8,916.48 0.00 17,833.00 17,833.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE101-441-941.01
50.00 96,817.02 0.00 193,634.00 193,634.00 MOTOR POOL REPLACEMENT CHARGE101-441-941.02
59.85 110,209.00 0.00 184,146.00 184,146.00 MOTOR POOL OPERATING CHARGE101-441-941.03
9.22 (18,365.43)0.00 (199,234.00)(199,234.00)VEHICLE RENTAL CREDIT101-441-941.05

108.31 14,405.20 0.00 13,300.00 13,300.00 Education & Training101-441-958.00

58.39 548,528.01 0.00 939,370.00 939,370.00 Total Dept 441 - Street

Dept 447 - Engineering
24.60 7,247.83 0.00 29,467.00 29,467.00 Payroll101-447-702.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 5,400.00 5,400.00 Part-time Salaries101-447-703.00

509.88 1,019.76 0.00 200.00 200.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION101-447-712.00
18.22 485.94 0.00 2,667.00 2,667.00 Social Security101-447-715.00
45.68 2,756.53 0.00 6,034.00 6,034.00 Hospitalization101-447-716.00
48.35 22.24 0.00 46.00 46.00 Life Insurance101-447-717.00
44.89 1,322.99 0.00 2,947.00 2,947.00 RETIREMENT - D/C101-447-718.10
100.00 42.39 0.00 0.00 0.00 Office Supplies101-447-727.00
100.00 250.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Operating Supplies101-447-740.00
100.00 352.07 0.00 0.00 0.00 Uniforms101-447-741.00
62.37 408.55 0.00 655.00 655.00 Fuels & Lubricants101-447-757.00
100.00 675.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Professional Services101-447-801.00
100.00 480.12 0.00 0.00 0.00 Communications101-447-850.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 480.00 480.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL101-447-941.00
50.00 3,141.00 0.00 6,282.00 6,282.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE101-447-941.01
50.00 1,978.50 0.00 3,957.00 3,957.00 MOTOR POOL REPLACEMENT CHARGE101-447-941.02
59.86 2,526.50 0.00 4,221.00 4,221.00 MOTOR POOL OPERATING CHARGE101-447-941.03
0.00 0.00 0.00 (3,456.00)(3,456.00)VEHICLE RENTAL CREDIT101-447-941.05

38.56 22,709.42 0.00 58,900.00 58,900.00 Total Dept 447 - Engineering

Dept 523 - COMPOST
61.45 6,758.98 0.00 11,000.00 11,000.00 PAYROLL101-523-702.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 14.00 14.00 Other Fringe Benefits-taxable101-523-702.01

67.94 3,974.55 0.00 5,850.00 5,850.00 Part-time Salaries101-523-703.00
100.00 1,469.40 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime Salaries101-523-704.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 29.00 29.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION101-523-712.00
130.91 916.39 0.00 700.00 700.00 Social Security101-523-715.00
57.65 28.25 0.00 49.00 49.00 Hospitalization101-523-716.00
42.86 3.00 0.00 7.00 7.00 Life Insurance101-523-717.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 328.00 328.00 RETIREMENT - D/B101-523-718.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 68.00 68.00 Operating Supplies101-523-740.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 612.00 612.00 Repair & Maintenance Supplies101-523-775.00

100.00 600.00 0.00 600.00 600.00 Dues & Memberships101-523-810.00
0.00 3,833.89 (3,833.89)5,000.00 5,000.00 Contracted Services101-523-820.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 300.00 Advertising101-523-901.00
0.00 8,556.20 (8,556.20)4,000.00 4,000.00 Equipment Maintenance101-523-930.00

100.00 8,968.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL101-523-941.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 8,200.00 8,200.00 Capital Outlay101-523-970.00

61.81 35,109.14 (12,390.09)36,757.00 36,757.00 Total Dept 523 - COMPOST

Dept 567 - Cemetery

Page 115 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 9/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - General Fund
Expenditures

62.76 11,412.79 0.00 18,186.00 18,186.00 Payroll101-567-702.00
455.47 318.83 0.00 70.00 70.00 Other Fringe Benefits-taxable101-567-702.01
100.00 133.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 Payroll - Mowing/Trimming101-567-702.41
100.00 3,542.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 Payroll - Open/Close Grave101-567-702.51
100.00 248.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 Payroll - Decorations101-567-702.52
100.00 3,807.21 0.00 0.00 0.00 Payroll - Foundations101-567-702.53
57.24 41,176.13 0.00 71,940.00 71,940.00 Part-time Salaries101-567-703.00
2.90 80.20 0.00 2,770.00 2,770.00 Overtime Salaries101-567-704.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 75.00 75.00 Overtime - Mowing/Trimming101-567-704.41

36.95 1,502.05 0.00 4,065.00 4,065.00 Overtime - Open/Close Grave101-567-704.51
109.96 1,894.55 0.00 1,723.00 1,723.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION101-567-712.00
63.65 4,728.20 0.00 7,429.00 7,429.00 Social Security101-567-715.00
24.27 332.55 0.00 1,370.00 1,370.00 Hospitalization101-567-716.00
44.74 15.66 0.00 35.00 35.00 Life Insurance101-567-717.00
44.80 814.86 0.00 1,819.00 1,819.00 RETIREMENT - D/C101-567-718.10
58.53 4,120.91 0.00 7,041.00 7,041.00 Operating Supplies101-567-740.00
57.74 173.21 0.00 300.00 300.00 Uniforms101-567-741.00
58.19 581.93 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Repair & Maintenance Supplies101-567-775.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 800.00 800.00 MINOR TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT101-567-777.00

216.42 5,629.18 0.00 2,601.00 2,601.00 Contracted Services101-567-820.00
122.18 678.08 0.00 555.00 555.00 Insurance101-567-825.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 200.00 Advertising101-567-901.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 250.00 250.00 Utilities-Elec, Water, Sewer101-567-922.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 300.00 Equipment Maintenance101-567-930.00

100.00 726.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 Rentals101-567-940.00
14.30 1,132.71 0.00 7,920.00 7,920.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL101-567-941.00
50.00 408.48 0.00 817.00 817.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE101-567-941.01
50.00 3,951.00 0.00 7,902.00 7,902.00 MOTOR POOL REPLACEMENT CHARGE101-567-941.02
59.85 8,842.02 0.00 14,774.00 14,774.00 MOTOR POOL OPERATING CHARGE101-567-941.03

62.52 96,250.76 0.00 153,942.00 153,942.00 Total Dept 567 - Cemetery

Dept 573 - PSB Operations
49.03 5,893.19 0.00 12,019.00 12,019.00 Payroll101-573-702.00
30.06 2,682.82 0.00 8,925.00 8,925.00 Part-time Salaries101-573-703.00
4.17 28.13 0.00 675.00 675.00 Overtime Salaries101-573-704.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 347.00 347.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION101-573-712.00

38.85 642.27 0.00 1,653.00 1,653.00 Social Security101-573-715.00
50.37 1,016.44 0.00 2,018.00 2,018.00 Hospitalization101-573-716.00
45.70 4.57 0.00 10.00 10.00 Life Insurance101-573-717.00
45.02 540.66 0.00 1,201.00 1,201.00 RETIREMENT - D/C101-573-718.10
62.78 627.78 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Office Supplies101-573-727.00
45.03 505.25 0.00 1,122.00 1,122.00 Operating Supplies101-573-740.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 Safety Supplies101-573-761.00

53.60 1,640.21 0.00 3,060.00 3,060.00 Building Maintenance Supplies101-573-776.00
75.49 11,015.68 0.00 14,592.00 14,592.00 Contracted Services101-573-820.00
107.62 6,995.16 0.00 6,500.00 6,500.00 Insurance101-573-825.00
75.86 1,517.19 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 Communications101-573-850.00
108.07 7,024.37 0.00 6,500.00 6,500.00 Utilities - Gas101-573-921.00
45.86 20,638.22 0.00 45,000.00 45,000.00 Utilities-Elec, Water, Sewer101-573-922.00
477.79 1,949.40 0.00 408.00 408.00 Equipment Maintenance101-573-930.00
42.98 7,676.47 0.00 17,860.00 17,860.00 Maintenance of Building101-573-931.00
100.00 12.81 0.00 0.00 0.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL101-573-941.00
50.00 385.98 0.00 772.00 772.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE101-573-941.01
100.00 2,553.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 Capital Outlay101-573-970.00

Page 116 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 10/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - General Fund
Expenditures

58.32 73,350.11 0.00 125,762.00 125,762.00 Total Dept 573 - PSB Operations

Dept 701 - Planning & Zoning
16.20 4,756.64 0.00 29,364.00 29,364.00 Payroll101-701-702.00
136.00 1,019.98 0.00 750.00 750.00 Other Fringe Benefits-taxable101-701-702.01

4.45 4.45 0.00 100.00 100.00 Overtime Salaries101-701-704.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 95.00 95.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION101-701-712.00

18.05 417.30 0.00 2,312.00 2,312.00 Social Security101-701-715.00
15.10 2,039.19 0.00 13,502.00 13,502.00 Hospitalization101-701-716.00
19.06 12.96 0.00 68.00 68.00 Life Insurance101-701-717.00
40.26 2,879.93 0.00 7,153.00 7,153.00 RETIREMENT - D/B101-701-718.00
52.77 93.41 0.00 177.00 177.00 RETIREMENT - D/C101-701-718.10
40.68 81.36 0.00 200.00 200.00 Office Supplies101-701-727.00
12.00 24.00 0.00 200.00 200.00 Operating Supplies101-701-740.00
860.10 8,601.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Professional Services101-701-801.00
100.00 65.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Dues & Memberships101-701-810.00
100.00 636.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Communications101-701-850.00
97.00 242.50 0.00 250.00 250.00 Transportation & Travel101-701-860.00
93.33 559.95 0.00 600.00 600.00 Advertising101-701-901.00
50.00 751.50 0.00 1,503.00 1,503.00 Rentals101-701-940.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 480.00 480.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL101-701-941.00

50.00 1,095.00 0.00 2,190.00 2,190.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE101-701-941.01
0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 Education & Training101-701-958.00

38.52 23,280.17 0.00 60,444.00 60,444.00 Total Dept 701 - Planning & Zoning

Dept 753 - Parks
55.29 9,583.19 0.00 17,333.00 17,333.00 Payroll101-753-702.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 375.00 375.00 Other Fringe Benefits-taxable101-753-702.01

100.00 96.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 Payroll - Rubbish/Garbage101-753-702.40
100.00 143.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 Payroll - Trees/Forestry101-753-702.55
47.06 10,169.55 0.00 21,610.00 21,610.00 Part-time Salaries101-753-703.00
100.00 36.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 PART-TIME - RUBBISH/GARBAGE101-753-703.40
100.00 2,340.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 PART-TIME - TREES/FORESTRY101-753-703.55
100.00 130.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime Salaries101-753-704.00
100.00 191.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime - Trees/Forestry101-753-704.55

0.00 0.00 0.00 360.00 360.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION101-753-712.00
56.66 1,704.35 0.00 3,008.00 3,008.00 Social Security101-753-715.00
45.37 2,991.30 0.00 6,593.00 6,593.00 Hospitalization101-753-716.00
50.91 17.82 0.00 35.00 35.00 Life Insurance101-753-717.00
49.53 766.69 0.00 1,548.00 1,548.00 RETIREMENT - D/B101-753-718.00
43.94 105.46 0.00 240.00 240.00 RETIREMENT - D/C101-753-718.10
19.80 1,009.63 0.00 5,100.00 5,100.00 Operating Supplies101-753-740.00
100.00 211.61 0.00 0.00 0.00 Miscellaneous Supplies101-753-755.00
182.04 6,895.75 0.00 3,788.00 3,788.00 Repair & Maintenance Supplies101-753-775.00
29.27 117.07 0.00 400.00 400.00 MINOR TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT101-753-777.00
125.00 375.00 0.00 300.00 300.00 Dues & Memberships101-753-810.00
100.00 1,920.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Contracted Services101-753-820.00
114.18 3,128.57 0.00 2,740.00 2,740.00 Insurance101-753-825.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 400.00 400.00 Transportation & Travel101-753-860.00
35.44 1,771.91 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 Utilities - Gas101-753-921.00
65.40 7,521.23 0.00 11,500.00 11,500.00 Utilities-Elec, Water, Sewer101-753-922.00
50.00 785.00 0.00 1,570.00 1,570.00 Rentals101-753-940.00

Page 117 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 11/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - General Fund
Expenditures

0.05 6.41 0.00 13,920.00 13,920.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL101-753-941.00
50.00 412.50 0.00 825.00 825.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE101-753-941.01
50.00 514.98 0.00 1,030.00 1,030.00 MOTOR POOL REPLACEMENT CHARGE101-753-941.02
59.85 1,263.52 0.00 2,111.00 2,111.00 MOTOR POOL OPERATING CHARGE101-753-941.03
0.00 0.00 0.00 400.00 400.00 Education & Training101-753-958.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 28,000.00 28,000.00 Capital Outlay101-753-970.00

42.29 54,209.78 0.00 128,186.00 128,186.00 Total Dept 753 - Parks

Dept 900 - Capital Outlay Control
92.79 90,571.04 0.00 97,606.00 0.00 Capital Outlay101-900-970.00

92.79 90,571.04 0.00 97,606.00 0.00 Total Dept 900 - Capital Outlay Control

54.42 4,290,561.55 54,681.09 7,985,351.00 7,360,374.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

151.48 1,108,474.29 (54,681.09)(695,649.00)(169,633.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

54.42 4,290,561.55 54,681.09 7,985,351.00 7,360,374.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
74.06 5,399,035.84 0.00 7,289,702.00 7,190,741.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 101 - General Fund:

Fund 151 - CEMETERY TRUST FUND
Revenues
Dept 000

100.00 3,825.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Charges for Services - Sales151-000-642.00
100.00 242.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 Interest151-000-665.00

100.00 4,067.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 000

100.00 4,067.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 900 - Capital Outlay Control

0.00 0.00 24,000.00 0.00 0.00 Capital Outlay151-900-970.00

0.00 0.00 24,000.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 900 - Capital Outlay Control

0.00 0.00 24,000.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 4,067.13 (24,000.00)0.00 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

100.00 0.00 24,000.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 4,067.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 151 - CEMETERY TRUST FUND:

Fund 202 - MVH Major & Trunkline Fund

Page 118 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 12/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 202 - MVH Major & Trunkline Fund
Revenues
Dept 000

0.00 0.00 0.00 42,000.00 42,000.00 State - Trunkline202-000-548.00
32.98 238,037.62 0.00 721,744.00 721,744.00 State - MVH Major202-000-550.00
41.46 4,145.54 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 STATE GRANT - OTHER202-000-569.00
100.00 6,792.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 Interest202-000-665.00

32.18 248,976.09 0.00 773,744.00 773,744.00 Total Dept 000

32.18 248,976.09 0.00 773,744.00 773,744.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 463 - Street Maintenance

53.08 8,492.28 0.00 16,000.00 16,000.00 Payroll202-463-702.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 3,250.00 3,250.00 Overtime Salaries202-463-704.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 180.00 180.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION202-463-712.00

60.51 629.31 0.00 1,040.00 1,040.00 Social Security202-463-715.00
50.00 1,499.52 0.00 2,999.00 2,999.00 Hospitalization202-463-716.00
9.14 913.53 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 Repair & Maintenance Supplies202-463-775.00

44.77 18,572.88 678.41 43,000.00 43,000.00 Contracted Maintenance202-463-939.00
0.23 27.15 0.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL202-463-941.00

34.83 30,134.67 678.41 88,469.00 88,469.00 Total Dept 463 - Street Maintenance

Dept 464 - Surface Maintenance
1.37 4.77 0.00 347.00 347.00 PAYROLL - TRUNKLINE 227202-464-702.93
1.81 53.35 0.00 2,944.00 2,944.00 PAYROLL - TRUNKLINE I94202-464-702.94
0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 200.00 PART-TIME - TRUNKLINE 227202-464-703.93
0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 200.00 PART-TIME - TRUNKLINE I94202-464-703.94
1.68 4.24 0.00 252.00 252.00 Social Security202-464-715.00

100.00 7.40 0.00 0.00 0.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL202-464-941.00

1.77 69.76 0.00 3,943.00 3,943.00 Total Dept 464 - Surface Maintenance

Dept 466 - Trees
0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 PAYROLL - TRUNKLINE I94202-466-702.94

100.00 79.86 0.00 0.00 0.00 OVERTIME - TRUNKLINE I94202-466-704.94
100.00 5.65 0.00 0.00 0.00 Social Security202-466-715.00

17.10 85.51 0.00 500.00 500.00 Total Dept 466 - Trees

Dept 467 - Drainage
59.16 159.72 0.00 270.00 270.00 PAYROLL - TRUNKLINE I94202-467-702.94
100.00 1,846.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 Part-time Salaries202-467-703.00
100.00 399.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 OVERTIME - TRUNKLINE 227202-467-704.93
100.00 393.53 0.00 0.00 0.00 OVERTIME - TRUNKLINE I94202-467-704.94
100.00 67.69 0.00 0.00 0.00 Social Security202-467-715.00
100.00 1,059.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL202-467-941.00

1,454.01 3,925.83 0.00 270.00 270.00 Total Dept 467 - Drainage

Page 119 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 13/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 202 - MVH Major & Trunkline Fund
Expenditures
Dept 468 - Grass & Weeds

0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 200.00 PAYROLL - TRUNKLINE I94202-468-702.94

0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 200.00 Total Dept 468 - Grass & Weeds

Dept 469 - Sweeping & Flushing
6.52 110.84 0.00 1,700.00 1,700.00 Payroll202-469-702.00

148.24 385.43 0.00 260.00 260.00 PAYROLL - TRUNKLINE 227202-469-702.93
33.67 50.50 0.00 150.00 150.00 PAYROLL - TRUNKLINE I94202-469-702.94
28.63 229.05 0.00 800.00 800.00 Overtime Salaries202-469-704.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 694.00 694.00 OVERTIME - TRUNKLINE 227202-469-704.93

68.00 943.17 0.00 1,387.00 1,387.00 OVERTIME - TRUNKLINE I94202-469-704.94
0.00 0.00 0.00 118.00 118.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION202-469-712.00

100.00 125.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 Social Security202-469-715.00
3.99 462.99 0.00 11,595.00 11,595.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL202-469-941.00

13.81 2,307.58 0.00 16,704.00 16,704.00 Total Dept 469 - Sweeping & Flushing

Dept 470 - Bridge Maintenance
0.00 0.00 0.00 2,900.00 2,900.00 Professional Services202-470-801.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 2,900.00 2,900.00 Total Dept 470 - Bridge Maintenance

Dept 474 - Traffic Services
0.00 0.00 0.00 120.00 120.00 Payroll202-474-702.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 135.00 135.00 Social Security202-474-715.00

50.00 256.02 0.00 512.00 512.00 Hospitalization202-474-716.00
100.00 155.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 Repair & Maintenance Supplies202-474-775.00
12.63 378.90 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 Paint & Signs202-474-778.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 7,803.00 7,803.00 Contracted Maintenance202-474-939.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL202-474-941.00

6.05 790.22 0.00 13,070.00 13,070.00 Total Dept 474 - Traffic Services

Dept 475 - Traffic Signs
0.00 0.00 0.00 150.00 150.00 PAYROLL - TRUNKLINE 227202-475-702.93

16.83 25.25 0.00 150.00 150.00 PAYROLL - TRUNKLINE I94202-475-702.94
0.00 0.00 0.00 347.00 347.00 OVERTIME - TRUNKLINE 227202-475-704.93
0.00 0.00 0.00 347.00 347.00 OVERTIME - TRUNKLINE I94202-475-704.94
0.00 0.00 0.00 39.00 39.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION202-475-712.00
0.80 1.79 0.00 225.00 225.00 Social Security202-475-715.00

2.15 27.04 0.00 1,258.00 1,258.00 Total Dept 475 - Traffic Signs

Dept 476 - Traffic Signals
31.89 345.00 0.00 1,082.00 1,082.00 Utilities-Elec, Water, Sewer202-476-922.00
34.62 987.93 0.00 2,854.00 2,854.00 Contracted Maintenance202-476-939.00

33.87 1,332.93 0.00 3,936.00 3,936.00 Total Dept 476 - Traffic Signals

Page 120 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 14/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 202 - MVH Major & Trunkline Fund
Expenditures
Dept 478 - Winter Maintenance

17.94 104.94 0.00 585.00 585.00 PAYROLL - TRUNKLINE 227202-478-702.93
16.68 216.81 0.00 1,300.00 1,300.00 PAYROLL - TRUNKLINE I94202-478-702.94
50.05 867.83 0.00 1,734.00 1,734.00 OVERTIME - TRUNKLINE 227202-478-704.93
51.03 1,769.69 0.00 3,468.00 3,468.00 OVERTIME - TRUNKLINE I94202-478-704.94
0.00 0.00 0.00 295.00 295.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION202-478-712.00

40.43 219.11 0.00 542.00 542.00 Social Security202-478-715.00

40.11 3,178.38 0.00 7,924.00 7,924.00 Total Dept 478 - Winter Maintenance

Dept 479 - Snow Hauling
0.00 0.00 0.00 150.00 150.00 PAYROLL - TRUNKLINE I94202-479-702.94

11.10 538.73 0.00 4,855.00 4,855.00 OVERTIME - TRUNKLINE I94202-479-704.94
0.00 0.00 0.00 274.00 274.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION202-479-712.00

10.32 39.73 0.00 385.00 385.00 Social Security202-479-715.00

10.21 578.46 0.00 5,664.00 5,664.00 Total Dept 479 - Snow Hauling

Dept 480 - Winter Maintenance
7.37 258.03 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 Payroll202-480-702.00

84.13 2,042.72 0.00 2,428.00 2,428.00 Overtime Salaries202-480-704.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 137.00 137.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION202-480-712.00

37.18 172.14 0.00 463.00 463.00 Social Security202-480-715.00
50.00 526.02 0.00 1,052.00 1,052.00 Hospitalization202-480-716.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 1,165.00 1,165.00 RETIREMENT - D/B202-480-718.00
9.44 1,160.28 0.00 12,293.00 12,293.00 Repair & Maintenance Supplies202-480-775.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 14,314.00 14,314.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL202-480-941.00

11.77 4,159.19 0.00 35,352.00 35,352.00 Total Dept 480 - Winter Maintenance

Dept 486 - Trunkline
50.00 1,102.02 0.00 2,204.00 2,204.00 Hospitalization202-486-716.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 3,940.00 3,940.00 RETIREMENT - D/B202-486-718.00

16.62 2,320.57 0.00 13,965.00 13,965.00 Repair & Maintenance Supplies202-486-775.00
100.00 6,161.70 0.00 0.00 0.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL202-486-941.00

47.66 9,584.29 0.00 20,109.00 20,109.00 Total Dept 486 - Trunkline

Dept 572 - Administration
0.00 0.00 0.00 250.00 250.00 Administrative Costs202-572-805.00

100.00 110,000.00 0.00 110,000.00 110,000.00 Debt Service202-572-990.00
52.67 10,856.25 0.00 20,613.00 20,613.00 Bond Interest Paid202-572-994.00

92.35 120,856.25 0.00 130,863.00 130,863.00 Total Dept 572 - Administration

Dept 900 - Capital Outlay Control
(171.55)1,623.42 (44,510.37)25,000.00 25,000.00 Capital Outlay202-900-970.00

(171.55)1,623.42 (44,510.37)25,000.00 25,000.00 Total Dept 900 - Capital Outlay Control

Page 121 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 15/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 202 - MVH Major & Trunkline Fund
Expenditures

37.85 178,653.53 (43,831.96)356,162.00 356,162.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

27.34 70,322.56 43,831.96 417,582.00 417,582.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

37.85 178,653.53 (43,831.96)356,162.00 356,162.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
32.18 248,976.09 0.00 773,744.00 773,744.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 202 - MVH Major & Trunkline Fund:

Fund 203 - MVH Local Fund
Revenues
Dept 000

42.35 81,917.98 0.00 193,435.00 193,435.00 State - MVH Local203-000-549.00
39.51 1,426.64 0.00 3,611.00 3,611.00 STATE GRANT - OTHER203-000-569.00
139.27 2,108.58 0.00 1,514.00 1,514.00 Interest203-000-665.00

43.04 85,453.20 0.00 198,560.00 198,560.00 Total Dept 000

43.04 85,453.20 0.00 198,560.00 198,560.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 463 - Street Maintenance

64.49 7,094.00 0.00 11,000.00 11,000.00 Payroll203-463-702.00
9.33 112.00 0.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 Part-time Salaries203-463-703.00
0.36 18.80 0.00 5,202.00 5,202.00 Overtime Salaries203-463-704.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 300.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION203-463-712.00

35.30 521.33 0.00 1,477.00 1,477.00 Social Security203-463-715.00
50.00 2,031.54 0.00 4,063.00 4,063.00 Hospitalization203-463-716.00
5.96 607.79 0.00 10,200.00 10,200.00 Repair & Maintenance Supplies203-463-775.00

19.01 10,837.00 0.00 57,000.00 57,000.00 Contracted Maintenance203-463-939.00
6.62 992.74 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL203-463-941.00

21.07 22,215.20 0.00 105,442.00 105,442.00 Total Dept 463 - Street Maintenance

Dept 467 - Drainage
100.00 4,307.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 Part-time Salaries203-467-703.00
100.00 6,037.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL203-467-941.00

100.00 10,345.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 467 - Drainage

Dept 469 - Sweeping & Flushing
32.80 1,967.98 0.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 Payroll203-469-702.00
4.89 203.63 0.00 4,162.00 4,162.00 Overtime Salaries203-469-704.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 235.00 235.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION203-469-712.00

27.61 155.19 0.00 562.00 562.00 Social Security203-469-715.00
2.46 664.29 0.00 27,055.00 27,055.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL203-469-941.00

7.87 2,991.09 0.00 38,014.00 38,014.00 Total Dept 469 - Sweeping & Flushing

Dept 474 - Traffic Services
21.98 109.90 0.00 500.00 500.00 Payroll203-474-702.00

Page 122 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 16/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 203 - MVH Local Fund
Expenditures

0.00 0.00 0.00 1,734.00 1,734.00 Overtime Salaries203-474-704.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 98.00 98.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION203-474-712.00
2.70 7.95 0.00 294.00 294.00 Social Security203-474-715.00

50.00 767.52 0.00 1,535.00 1,535.00 Hospitalization203-474-716.00
14.18 378.45 0.00 2,668.00 2,668.00 Paint & Signs203-474-778.00
0.41 6.17 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL203-474-941.00

15.25 1,269.99 0.00 8,329.00 8,329.00 Total Dept 474 - Traffic Services

Dept 480 - Winter Maintenance
28.84 807.55 0.00 2,800.00 2,800.00 Payroll203-480-702.00
25.12 1,254.43 0.00 4,994.00 4,994.00 Overtime Salaries203-480-704.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 283.00 283.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION203-480-712.00

21.92 154.54 0.00 705.00 705.00 Social Security203-480-715.00
50.00 613.02 0.00 1,226.00 1,226.00 Hospitalization203-480-716.00
4.53 501.74 0.00 11,081.00 11,081.00 Repair & Maintenance Supplies203-480-775.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 33,398.00 33,398.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL203-480-941.00

6.11 3,331.28 0.00 54,487.00 54,487.00 Total Dept 480 - Winter Maintenance

Dept 900 - Capital Outlay Control
675.50 238,096.18 11,837.22 37,000.00 37,000.00 Capital Outlay203-900-970.00

675.50 238,096.18 11,837.22 37,000.00 37,000.00 Total Dept 900 - Capital Outlay Control

119.24 278,249.12 11,837.22 243,272.00 243,272.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

457.67 (192,795.92)(11,837.22)(44,712.00)(44,712.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

119.24 278,249.12 11,837.22 243,272.00 243,272.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
43.04 85,453.20 0.00 198,560.00 198,560.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 203 - MVH Local Fund:

Fund 204 - MUNICIPAL STREET FUND
Revenues
Dept 000

100.00 41,168.45 0.00 0.00 0.00 Interest204-000-665.00

100.00 41,168.45 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 000

100.00 41,168.45 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 441 - Street

48.14 11,554.19 0.00 24,000.00 24,000.00 Payroll204-441-702.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 5,400.00 5,400.00 Part-time Salaries204-441-703.00

23.47 735.20 0.00 3,132.00 3,132.00 Overtime Salaries204-441-704.00
138.68 905.59 0.00 653.00 653.00 Social Security204-441-715.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 6,960.00 6,960.00 Hospitalization204-441-716.00

Page 123 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 17/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 204 - MUNICIPAL STREET FUND
Expenditures

7.06 141.15 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 Operating Supplies204-441-740.00
188.76 45,717.50 48,661.36 50,000.00 50,000.00 Professional Services204-441-801.00
92.11 1,153,381.85 228,206.25 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00 Contracted Services204-441-820.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Advertising204-441-901.00
0.76 234.64 0.00 30,720.00 30,720.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL204-441-941.00

25.00 1,033.25 0.00 4,133.00 4,133.00 COST ALLOCATION204-441-955.00

91.56 1,213,703.37 276,867.61 1,627,998.00 1,627,998.00 Total Dept 441 - Street

91.56 1,213,703.37 276,867.61 1,627,998.00 1,627,998.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

89.03 (1,172,534.92)(276,867.61)(1,627,998.00)(1,627,998.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

91.56 1,213,703.37 276,867.61 1,627,998.00 1,627,998.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 41,168.45 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 204 - MUNICIPAL STREET FUND:

Fund 207 - MARSHALL REGIONAL LAW ENFORCEMENT CENTER
Revenues
Dept 000

78.42 138,488.82 0.00 176,604.00 176,604.00 Charges for Services - Contract Revenue207-000-628.00
100.00 1,657.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 Interest207-000-665.00
58.15 24,192.00 0.00 41,600.00 41,600.00 Reimbursement207-000-676.00
100.00 5,097.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE207-000-679.00
44.18 48,759.30 0.00 110,374.00 110,374.00 Contributions - General Fund207-000-699.01

66.41 218,194.74 0.00 328,578.00 328,578.00 Total Dept 000

66.41 218,194.74 0.00 328,578.00 328,578.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 304 - MRLEC OPERATIONS

46.53 11,184.44 0.00 24,038.00 24,038.00 Payroll207-304-702.00
47.41 10,267.26 0.00 21,658.00 21,658.00 Part-time Salaries207-304-703.00
45.71 22,464.00 0.00 49,140.00 49,140.00 PT Salaries - exempt207-304-703.01
4.22 84.38 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 Overtime Salaries207-304-704.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 2,973.00 2,973.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION207-304-712.00

21.77 1,619.25 0.00 7,438.00 7,438.00 Social Security207-304-715.00
45.97 1,855.78 0.00 4,037.00 4,037.00 Hospitalization207-304-716.00
45.90 9.18 0.00 20.00 20.00 Life Insurance207-304-717.00
43.86 1,054.43 0.00 2,404.00 2,404.00 RETIREMENT - D/C207-304-718.10
21.64 1,081.84 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 Operating Supplies207-304-740.00
51.09 204.36 0.00 400.00 400.00 Fuels & Lubricants207-304-757.00
28.83 1,729.73 0.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 Building Maintenance Supplies207-304-776.00
21.86 2,229.71 0.00 10,200.00 10,200.00 Contracted Services207-304-820.00
110.27 8,863.20 13,294.80 20,094.00 20,094.00 Contracted Maint. - Plowing207-304-820.01

0.00 0.00 0.00 12,650.00 12,650.00 Contracted Maint - Lawn207-304-820.02
109.17 16,723.90 0.00 15,319.00 15,319.00 Insurance207-304-825.00
62.23 7,542.43 0.00 12,120.00 12,120.00 Communications207-304-850.00
100.00 29.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Advertising207-304-901.00
48.12 15,741.85 0.00 32,717.00 32,717.00 Utilities - Gas207-304-921.00

Page 124 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 18/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 207 - MARSHALL REGIONAL LAW ENFORCEMENT CENTER
Expenditures

48.63 52,772.40 0.00 108,522.00 108,522.00 Utilities-Elec, Water, Sewer207-304-922.00
31.48 6,359.75 0.00 20,200.00 20,200.00 Equipment Maintenance207-304-930.00
63.74 12,587.95 0.00 19,750.00 19,750.00 Maintenance of Building207-304-931.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 Contracted Maintenance207-304-939.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 480.00 480.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL207-304-941.00

50.00 817.56 0.00 1,635.00 1,635.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE207-304-941.01
50.00 912.48 0.00 1,825.00 1,825.00 MOTOR POOL REPLACEMENT CHARGE207-304-941.02
59.86 2,526.50 0.00 4,221.00 4,221.00 MOTOR POOL OPERATING CHARGE207-304-941.03
25.00 2,053.25 0.00 8,213.00 8,213.00 COST ALLOCATION207-304-955.00
63.73 9,975.00 9,975.00 31,305.00 31,305.00 Capital Outlay207-304-970.00

50.12 190,689.63 23,269.80 426,859.00 426,859.00 Total Dept 304 - MRLEC OPERATIONS

50.12 190,689.63 23,269.80 426,859.00 426,859.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

4.31 27,505.11 (23,269.80)(98,281.00)(98,281.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

50.12 190,689.63 23,269.80 426,859.00 426,859.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
66.41 218,194.74 0.00 328,578.00 328,578.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 207 - MARSHALL REGIONAL LAW ENFORCEMENT CENTER:

Fund 208 - Recreation Fund
Revenues
Dept 000

99.51 202,920.12 0.00 203,912.00 203,912.00 Current Property Taxes208-000-402.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 Delinquent Personal Prop Taxes208-000-412.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 400.00 400.00 Penalties & Int. on Taxes208-000-445.00

27.62 2,320.22 0.00 8,402.00 8,402.00 LOCAL COMM STAB SHARE TAX208-000-573.00
47.85 93,231.50 0.00 194,846.00 194,846.00 Use Fees208-000-651.00
451.94 225.97 0.00 50.00 50.00 Interest208-000-665.00

73.26 298,697.81 0.00 407,710.00 407,710.00 Total Dept 000

73.26 298,697.81 0.00 407,710.00 407,710.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 751 - Recreation

44.90 37,586.17 0.00 83,703.00 83,703.00 Payroll208-751-702.00
166.67 1,875.00 0.00 1,125.00 1,125.00 Other Fringe Benefits-taxable208-751-702.01
38.65 11,175.62 0.00 28,915.00 28,915.00 Part-time Salaries208-751-703.00
41.14 3,457.25 0.00 8,404.00 8,404.00 PT Salaries - exempt208-751-703.01
100.00 4.45 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime Salaries208-751-704.00
36.00 1,599.05 0.00 4,442.00 4,442.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION208-751-712.00
43.09 3,749.45 0.00 8,701.00 8,701.00 Social Security208-751-715.00
35.77 9,930.41 0.00 27,765.00 27,765.00 Hospitalization208-751-716.00
42.16 59.44 0.00 141.00 141.00 Life Insurance208-751-717.00
49.53 20,343.49 0.00 41,069.00 41,069.00 RETIREMENT - D/B208-751-718.00
50.40 16,045.74 0.00 31,835.00 31,835.00 Retiree Health Insurance208-751-718.01
43.15 1,679.37 0.00 3,892.00 3,892.00 RETIREMENT - D/C208-751-718.10
72.92 51,773.46 0.00 71,000.00 71,000.00 Operating Supplies208-751-740.00
1.60 15.97 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Miscellaneous Supplies208-751-755.00

Page 125 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 19/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 208 - Recreation Fund
Expenditures

134.31 458.01 0.00 341.00 341.00 Fuels & Lubricants208-751-757.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 Building Maintenance Supplies208-751-776.00

100.00 372.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 Professional Services208-751-801.00
62.50 375.00 0.00 600.00 600.00 Dues & Memberships208-751-810.00
64.66 12,959.58 2,560.00 24,000.00 24,000.00 Contracted Services208-751-820.00
110.00 2,089.98 0.00 1,900.00 1,900.00 Insurance208-751-825.00
20.39 244.65 0.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 Communications208-751-850.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 400.00 400.00 Transportation & Travel208-751-860.00

100.00 112.86 0.00 0.00 0.00 Advertising208-751-901.00
45.88 1,238.87 0.00 2,700.00 2,700.00 Utilities-Elec, Water, Sewer208-751-922.00
50.00 3,573.00 0.00 7,146.00 7,146.00 Rentals208-751-940.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL208-751-941.00

50.00 3,180.48 0.00 6,361.00 6,361.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE208-751-941.01
50.00 1,190.52 0.00 2,381.00 2,381.00 MOTOR POOL REPLACEMENT CHARGE208-751-941.02
59.86 3,790.02 0.00 6,332.00 6,332.00 MOTOR POOL OPERATING CHARGE208-751-941.03
0.00 0.00 0.00 (15,000.00)(15,000.00)VEHICLE RENTAL CREDIT208-751-941.05

25.00 1,829.50 0.00 7,318.00 7,318.00 COST ALLOCATION208-751-955.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Education & Training208-751-958.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 Refund or Rebates208-751-964.00

53.06 190,709.94 2,560.00 364,271.00 364,271.00 Total Dept 751 - Recreation

53.06 190,709.94 2,560.00 364,271.00 364,271.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

242.70 107,987.87 (2,560.00)43,439.00 43,439.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

53.06 190,709.94 2,560.00 364,271.00 364,271.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
73.26 298,697.81 0.00 407,710.00 407,710.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 208 - Recreation Fund:

Fund 211 - FARMERS MARKET
Revenues
Dept 000

0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 CONTRIBUTIONS211-000-588.10
100.00 2,006.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CONTRIBUTIONS - FRIENDS OF THE MARKET211-000-588.11

2.33 210.00 0.00 9,000.00 9,000.00 Charges for Services - Contract Revenue211-000-628.00
100.00 56.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 Interest211-000-665.00
162.20 6,488.00 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 Rents211-000-667.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE211-000-679.00
24.67 185.00 0.00 750.00 750.00 MISC REVENUE - SR PROJECT FRESH211-000-679.26

34.74 8,945.23 0.00 25,750.00 25,750.00 Total Dept 000

34.74 8,945.23 0.00 25,750.00 25,750.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 000

100.00 2,592.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 Part-time Salaries211-000-703.00
8.33 850.00 0.00 10,200.00 10,200.00 PT Salaries - exempt211-000-703.01
0.00 0.00 0.00 37.00 37.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION211-000-712.00

25.43 198.33 0.00 780.00 780.00 Social Security211-000-715.00

Page 126 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 20/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 211 - FARMERS MARKET
Expenditures

0.00 0.00 0.00 150.00 150.00 Office Supplies211-000-727.00
11.67 350.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 Miscellaneous Supplies211-000-755.00
100.00 55.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 Professional Services211-000-801.00

2.63 10.50 0.00 400.00 400.00 BANK FEES211-000-804.00
48.99 240.06 0.00 490.00 490.00 Communications211-000-850.00
20.00 240.00 0.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 Advertising211-000-901.00
3.50 105.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 Marketing211-000-902.00

56.34 676.02 0.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 Utilities-Elec, Water, Sewer211-000-922.00
26.76 910.00 0.00 3,400.00 3,400.00 Rentals211-000-940.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 750.00 750.00 Projects/Fundraisers211-000-944.00

25.00 76.00 0.00 304.00 304.00 COST ALLOCATION211-000-955.00

25.31 6,304.01 0.00 24,911.00 24,911.00 Total Dept 000

25.31 6,304.01 0.00 24,911.00 24,911.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

314.81 2,641.22 0.00 839.00 839.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

25.31 6,304.01 0.00 24,911.00 24,911.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
34.74 8,945.23 0.00 25,750.00 25,750.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 211 - FARMERS MARKET:

Fund 226 - Leaf, Brush and Trash Removal
Revenues
Dept 000

94.66 165,319.63 0.00 174,640.00 174,640.00 Current Property Taxes226-000-402.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 200.00 Penalties & Int. on Taxes226-000-445.00

42.43 1,897.08 0.00 4,471.00 4,471.00 LOCAL COMM STAB SHARE TAX226-000-573.00
100.00 233.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 Interest226-000-665.00

93.39 167,449.75 0.00 179,311.00 179,311.00 Total Dept 000

93.39 167,449.75 0.00 179,311.00 179,311.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 000

130.30 23,454.86 0.00 18,000.00 18,000.00 Payroll - Leaf Disposal226-000-702.64
82.94 5,986.03 0.00 7,217.00 7,217.00 Payroll - Brush Disposal226-000-702.65
93.28 11,641.76 0.00 12,480.00 12,480.00 Part-time Leaf Disposal226-000-703.64
85.15 19,812.15 0.00 23,266.00 23,266.00 Overtime - Leaf Disposal226-000-704.64
100.00 855.63 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime - Brush Disposal226-000-704.65

0.00 0.00 0.00 1,694.00 1,694.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION226-000-712.00
169.99 4,649.22 0.00 2,735.00 2,735.00 Social Security226-000-715.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 MINOR TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT226-000-777.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 Contracted Services226-000-820.00

100.00 350.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Advertising226-000-901.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 15,840.00 15,840.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL226-000-941.00

50.00 1,794.48 0.00 3,589.00 3,589.00 MOTOR POOL REPLACEMENT CHARGE226-000-941.02
59.85 1,894.98 0.00 3,166.00 3,166.00 MOTOR POOL OPERATING CHARGE226-000-941.03
25.00 1,220.25 0.00 4,881.00 4,881.00 COST ALLOCATION226-000-955.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 Transfers to Other Funds226-000-995.00

Page 127 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 21/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 226 - Leaf, Brush and Trash Removal
Expenditures

49.47 71,659.36 0.00 144,868.00 144,868.00 Total Dept 000

49.47 71,659.36 0.00 144,868.00 144,868.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

278.11 95,790.39 0.00 34,443.00 34,443.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

49.47 71,659.36 0.00 144,868.00 144,868.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
93.39 167,449.75 0.00 179,311.00 179,311.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 226 - Leaf, Brush and Trash Removal:

Fund 246 - FEDERAL GRANT FUND-SAFER GRANT
Revenues
Dept 336 - Fire

37.00 103,143.01 0.00 278,747.00 278,747.00 Federal Grant246-336-505.00

37.00 103,143.01 0.00 278,747.00 278,747.00 Total Dept 336 - Fire

37.00 103,143.01 0.00 278,747.00 278,747.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 336 - Fire

44.56 64,710.37 0.00 145,230.00 145,230.00 Payroll246-336-702.00
100.00 3,712.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 Other Fringe Benefits-taxable246-336-702.01

8.66 962.36 0.00 11,110.00 11,110.00 Social Security246-336-715.00
14.64 11,427.31 0.00 78,045.00 78,045.00 Hospitalization246-336-716.00
3.54 55.08 0.00 1,557.00 1,557.00 Life Insurance246-336-717.00

53.05 22,707.57 0.00 42,805.00 42,805.00 RETIREMENT - D/B246-336-718.00

37.16 103,575.19 0.00 278,747.00 278,747.00 Total Dept 336 - Fire

37.16 103,575.19 0.00 278,747.00 278,747.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 (432.18)0.00 0.00 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

37.16 103,575.19 0.00 278,747.00 278,747.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
37.00 103,143.01 0.00 278,747.00 278,747.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 246 - FEDERAL GRANT FUND-SAFER GRANT:

Fund 247 - NORTHEAST NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT AUTH
Revenues
Dept 000

133.02 54,644.06 0.00 41,080.00 41,080.00 Current Property Taxes247-000-402.00
100.00 165.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 Interest247-000-665.00

133.42 54,810.01 0.00 41,080.00 41,080.00 Total Dept 000

133.42 54,810.01 0.00 41,080.00 41,080.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Page 128 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 22/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 247 - NORTHEAST NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT AUTH
Expenditures
Dept 000

100.00 595.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Professional Services247-000-801.00
25.00 31.75 0.00 127.00 127.00 COST ALLOCATION247-000-955.00

493.50 626.75 0.00 127.00 127.00 Total Dept 000

493.50 626.75 0.00 127.00 127.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

132.31 54,183.26 0.00 40,953.00 40,953.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

493.50 626.75 0.00 127.00 127.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
133.42 54,810.01 0.00 41,080.00 41,080.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 247 - NORTHEAST NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT AUTH:

Fund 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Revenues
Dept 000

91.36 155,223.87 0.00 169,908.00 169,908.00 Current Property Taxes248-000-402.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 50.00 Delinquent Personal Prop Taxes248-000-412.00

147.73 36,931.25 0.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 LOCAL COMM STAB SHARE TAX248-000-573.00
100.00 1,411.85 0.00 0.00 0.00 Interest248-000-665.00

0.11 58.94 0.00 54,000.00 54,000.00 MISC REVENUE - BLUES FEST248-000-679.16

77.77 193,625.91 0.00 248,958.00 248,958.00 Total Dept 000

77.77 193,625.91 0.00 248,958.00 248,958.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 000

100.00 282.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Payroll248-000-702.00
18.58 557.49 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 Payroll - Rubbish/Garbage248-000-702.40
0.00 0.00 0.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 Payroll - Mowing/Trimming248-000-702.41

33.15 265.16 0.00 800.00 800.00 Payroll - Parking Structure248-000-702.42
4.46 44.55 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Payroll - Sidewalk Snow Removal248-000-702.43

15.51 217.09 0.00 1,400.00 1,400.00 Payroll - Flowers248-000-702.44
41.70 5,421.26 0.00 13,000.00 13,000.00 Part-time Salaries248-000-703.00
100.00 106.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 PART-TIME - SIDEWALK SNOW REMOVAL248-000-703.43
100.00 242.18 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime - Rubbish/Garbage248-000-704.40
100.00 178.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime - Parking Structure248-000-704.42
100.00 175.81 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime - Sidewalk Snow Removal248-000-704.43

0.00 0.00 0.00 623.00 623.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION248-000-712.00
57.01 567.23 0.00 995.00 995.00 Social Security248-000-715.00
140.77 3,519.35 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 Miscellaneous Supplies248-000-755.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 2,040.00 2,040.00 MISC SUPPLIES - DOWNTOWN PLANTERS248-000-755.01
100.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Fuels & Lubricants248-000-757.00
18.89 18.89 0.00 100.00 100.00 MINOR TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT248-000-777.00
345.70 977.00 2,480.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Professional Services248-000-801.00
100.00 2.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 Service Fee248-000-803.00
46.97 17,251.02 0.00 36,725.00 36,725.00 Administrative Costs248-000-805.00
29.68 14,838.00 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 Contracted Services248-000-820.00
50.00 360.00 0.00 720.00 720.00 Communications248-000-850.00

Page 129 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 23/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Expenditures

28.10 14,050.13 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 COMMUNITY PROMOTIONS248-000-961.00

37.40 59,273.86 2,480.00 165,103.00 165,103.00 Total Dept 000

Dept 718 - DDA Parking Ramp
0.27 12.34 0.00 4,560.00 4,560.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL248-718-941.00

0.27 12.34 0.00 4,560.00 4,560.00 Total Dept 718 - DDA Parking Ramp

Dept 719 - DDA Sidewalk
0.00 0.00 0.00 5,370.00 5,370.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL248-719-941.00

50.00 752.52 0.00 1,505.00 1,505.00 MOTOR POOL REPLACEMENT CHARGE248-719-941.02
59.85 1,263.52 0.00 2,111.00 2,111.00 MOTOR POOL OPERATING CHARGE248-719-941.03

22.44 2,016.04 0.00 8,986.00 8,986.00 Total Dept 719 - DDA Sidewalk

35.70 61,302.24 2,480.00 178,649.00 178,649.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

184.68 132,323.67 (2,480.00)70,309.00 70,309.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

35.70 61,302.24 2,480.00 178,649.00 178,649.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
77.77 193,625.91 0.00 248,958.00 248,958.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY:

Fund 250 - LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY FUND
Revenues
Dept 000

90.29 561,155.03 0.00 621,474.00 621,474.00 Current Property Taxes250-000-402.00
145.79 207,026.09 0.00 142,000.00 142,000.00 LOCAL COMM STAB SHARE TAX250-000-573.00

26,952.06 13,476.03 0.00 50.00 50.00 Interest250-000-665.00

102.37 781,657.15 0.00 763,524.00 763,524.00 Total Dept 000

102.37 781,657.15 0.00 763,524.00 763,524.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 000

1,792.05 41,146.22 48,456.21 5,000.00 5,000.00 Professional Services250-000-801.00
100.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 Service Fee250-000-803.00
49.83 79,999.98 0.00 160,537.00 160,537.00 Administrative Costs250-000-805.00
62.10 621.02 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Taxes250-000-811.00
89.60 201,600.00 15,220.40 242,000.00 242,000.00 Contracted Services250-000-820.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 Marketing250-000-902.00
4.12 49.45 0.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 Utilities-Elec, Water, Sewer250-000-922.00
4.12 14,823.70 0.00 360,000.00 360,000.00 Capital Outlay250-000-970.00

96.60 3,588,152.17 2,070,327.85 5,857,780.00 0.00 BROOKS INDUSTRIAL PARK SUBSTATION250-000-970.35
0.00 0.00 0.00 335,000.00 335,000.00 Debt Service250-000-990.00

63.97 95,958.88 0.00 150,000.00 150,000.00 Bond Interest Paid250-000-994.00

Page 130 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 24/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 250 - LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY FUND
Expenditures

86.54 4,022,851.42 2,134,004.46 7,114,517.00 1,256,737.00 Total Dept 000

86.54 4,022,851.42 2,134,004.46 7,114,517.00 1,256,737.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

84.64 (3,241,194.27)(2,134,004.46)(6,350,993.00)(493,213.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

86.54 4,022,851.42 2,134,004.46 7,114,517.00 1,256,737.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
102.37 781,657.15 0.00 763,524.00 763,524.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 250 - LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY FUND:

Fund 251 - SOUTH NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
Revenues
Dept 000

160.01 20,831.70 0.00 13,019.00 13,019.00 Current Property Taxes251-000-402.00
2,159.95 431.99 0.00 20.00 20.00 Interest251-000-665.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 19,500.00 19,500.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE251-000-679.00

65.35 21,263.69 0.00 32,539.00 32,539.00 Total Dept 000

65.35 21,263.69 0.00 32,539.00 32,539.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 000

5.83 175.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 Professional Services251-000-801.00
100.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Administrative Costs251-000-805.00
25.00 740.75 0.00 2,963.00 2,963.00 COST ALLOCATION251-000-955.00
50.00 13,005.00 0.00 26,010.00 26,010.00 Bond Interest Paid251-000-994.00

45.10 14,420.75 0.00 31,973.00 31,973.00 Total Dept 000

Dept 577 - Line Distribution
100.00 1,919.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 PAYROLL - ELECTRIC251-577-702.00
100.00 142.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 Social Security251-577-715.00

100.00 2,062.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 577 - Line Distribution

51.55 16,483.19 0.00 31,973.00 31,973.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

844.61 4,780.50 0.00 566.00 566.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

51.55 16,483.19 0.00 31,973.00 31,973.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
65.35 21,263.69 0.00 32,539.00 32,539.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 251 - SOUTH NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY:

Fund 265 - Drug Forfeiture Fund
Revenues
Dept 000

85.59 213.98 0.00 250.00 250.00 FINES & FORFEITS265-000-655.00

Page 131 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 25/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 265 - Drug Forfeiture Fund
Revenues

100.00 7.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 Interest265-000-665.00

88.59 221.48 0.00 250.00 250.00 Total Dept 000

88.59 221.48 0.00 250.00 250.00 TOTAL REVENUES

88.59 221.48 0.00 250.00 250.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
88.59 221.48 0.00 250.00 250.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 265 - Drug Forfeiture Fund:

Fund 287 - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT
Revenues
Dept 000

164.29 598,780.16 0.00 364,456.00 364,456.00 OTHER FEDERAL GRANTS287-000-528.00
100.00 4,763.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Interest287-000-665.00

165.60 603,543.16 0.00 364,456.00 364,456.00 Total Dept 000

165.60 603,543.16 0.00 364,456.00 364,456.00 TOTAL REVENUES

165.60 603,543.16 0.00 364,456.00 364,456.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
165.60 603,543.16 0.00 364,456.00 364,456.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 287 - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT:

Fund 295 - Airport
Revenues
Dept 000

53.28 60,737.20 0.00 114,000.00 74,000.00 Charges for Service - Fuel295-000-640.00
3,780.80 378.08 0.00 10.00 10.00 Interest295-000-665.00

58.57 16,984.20 0.00 29,000.00 29,000.00 Rents295-000-667.00
100.00 1,467.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Contributions - Miscellaneous295-000-675.99
100.00 697.06 0.00 0.00 0.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE295-000-679.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 57,624.00 57,624.00 Contributions - General Fund295-000-699.01

40.00 80,263.54 0.00 200,634.00 160,634.00 Total Dept 000

40.00 80,263.54 0.00 200,634.00 160,634.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 595 - Airport

46.53 5,431.98 0.00 11,674.00 11,674.00 Payroll295-595-702.00
68.61 14,144.58 0.00 20,615.00 20,615.00 Part-time Salaries295-595-703.00

Page 132 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 26/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 295 - Airport
Expenditures

56.44 327.34 0.00 580.00 580.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION295-595-712.00
59.69 1,474.36 0.00 2,470.00 2,470.00 Social Security295-595-715.00
45.69 1,210.74 0.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 Hospitalization295-595-716.00
50.26 11.56 0.00 23.00 23.00 Life Insurance295-595-717.00
43.88 512.03 0.00 1,167.00 1,167.00 RETIREMENT - D/C295-595-718.10
1.06 23.04 0.00 2,165.00 2,165.00 Operating Supplies295-595-740.00

64.83 71,130.36 180.46 110,000.00 70,000.00 Fuels & Lubricants295-595-757.00
100.00 128.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Professional Services295-595-801.00
100.00 50.00 0.00 50.00 50.00 License295-595-812.00
94.90 13,286.17 0.00 14,000.00 14,000.00 Contracted Services295-595-820.00
90.49 5,248.40 0.00 5,800.00 5,800.00 Insurance295-595-825.00
96.29 2,407.19 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 Communications295-595-850.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 150.00 150.00 Transportation & Travel295-595-860.00

22.05 441.09 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 Utilities - Gas295-595-921.00
46.39 3,015.25 0.00 6,500.00 6,500.00 Utilities-Elec, Water, Sewer295-595-922.00
273.07 5,461.49 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 Equipment Maintenance295-595-930.00
28.93 1,880.28 0.00 6,500.00 6,500.00 Maintenance of Building295-595-931.00
50.00 1,919.52 0.00 3,839.00 3,839.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE295-595-941.01
25.00 981.25 0.00 3,925.00 3,925.00 COST ALLOCATION295-595-955.00

65.09 129,084.63 180.46 198,608.00 158,608.00 Total Dept 595 - Airport

65.09 129,084.63 180.46 198,608.00 158,608.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

2,418.64 (48,821.09)(180.46)2,026.00 2,026.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

65.09 129,084.63 180.46 198,608.00 158,608.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
40.00 80,263.54 0.00 200,634.00 160,634.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 295 - Airport:

Fund 296 - FEDERAL GRANT FUNDS-CDBG SCHULERS
Revenues
Dept 000

60.98 322,796.65 0.00 529,390.00 0.00 CDBG FEDERAL GRANT REVENUES296-000-522.00
100.00 2,461.69 0.00 0.00 0.00 Interest296-000-665.00
98.89 1,077,532.85 0.00 1,089,628.00 0.00 Contrib. from Other Sources296-000-675.00

86.64 1,402,791.19 0.00 1,619,018.00 0.00 Total Dept 000

86.64 1,402,791.19 0.00 1,619,018.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 694 - CDBG

77.11 1,248,384.06 0.00 1,619,018.00 0.00 Contracted Services296-694-820.00

77.11 1,248,384.06 0.00 1,619,018.00 0.00 Total Dept 694 - CDBG

77.11 1,248,384.06 0.00 1,619,018.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Page 133 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 27/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 296 - FEDERAL GRANT FUNDS-CDBG SCHULERS

100.00 154,407.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

77.11 1,248,384.06 0.00 1,619,018.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
86.64 1,402,791.19 0.00 1,619,018.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 296 - FEDERAL GRANT FUNDS-CDBG SCHULERS:

Fund 297 - FEDERAL GRANT FUNDS-CDBG CAHILL
Expenditures
Dept 694 - CDBG

100.00 6,090.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Contracted Services297-694-820.00

100.00 6,090.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 694 - CDBG

100.00 6,090.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 (6,090.00)0.00 0.00 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

100.00 6,090.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 297 - FEDERAL GRANT FUNDS-CDBG CAHILL:

Fund 301 - Capital Improvement Bond Fund
Revenues
Dept 000

104.64 497,056.07 0.00 475,000.00 475,000.00 Current Property Taxes301-000-402.00
100.00 17,668.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 LOCAL COMM STAB SHARE TAX301-000-573.00
100.00 693.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 Interest301-000-665.00
100.00 532.41 0.00 0.00 0.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE301-000-679.00

108.62 515,950.64 0.00 475,000.00 475,000.00 Total Dept 000

108.62 515,950.64 0.00 475,000.00 475,000.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 000

100.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Administrative Costs301-000-805.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 390,000.00 390,000.00 Debt Service301-000-990.00

50.00 28,611.88 0.00 57,224.00 57,224.00 Bond Interest Paid301-000-994.00

6.51 29,111.88 0.00 447,224.00 447,224.00 Total Dept 000

6.51 29,111.88 0.00 447,224.00 447,224.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

1,752.73 486,838.76 0.00 27,776.00 27,776.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

6.51 29,111.88 0.00 447,224.00 447,224.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
108.62 515,950.64 0.00 475,000.00 475,000.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 301 - Capital Improvement Bond Fund:

Page 134 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 28/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 369 - Building Authority
Revenues
Dept 000

100.00 333,300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Transfers From Other Funds369-000-699.00

100.00 333,300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 000

100.00 333,300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 000

100.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Service Fee369-000-803.00
100.00 81,400.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Bond Interest Paid369-000-994.00

100.00 81,900.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 000

100.00 81,900.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 251,400.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

100.00 81,900.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 333,300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 369 - Building Authority:

Fund 404 - Special Projects Fund
Revenues
Dept 000

100.00 1,148.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 Interest404-000-665.00
100.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Contributions - C.O.P.404-000-675.04
100.00 716.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 Contributions - Police Train.404-000-675.05
100.00 88.41 0.00 0.00 0.00 Cobra Insurance404-000-675.08
100.00 4,630.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Contributions-Band Shell404-000-675.12
100.00 725.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CONTRIBUTIONS - CHRISTMAS DECORATIONS404-000-675.15
100.00 15,665.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CONTRIB.- ALLCOTT PARK404-000-675.19
100.00 550.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 POLICE GRANTS404-000-675.29
100.00 1,001.47 0.00 0.00 0.00 Contributions - Brooks Nature404-000-675.40

100.00 24,724.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 000

100.00 24,724.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 000

100.00 232.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Miscellaneous - C.O.P.404-000-955.04
100.00 1,706.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 Miscellaneous - Police Train.404-000-955.05
100.00 444.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 Miscellaneous- Cobra Insurance404-000-955.08

0.00 0.00 37,000.00 0.00 0.00 Miscellaneous - Bell Tower404-000-955.09
100.00 2,437.50 34,016.14 0.00 0.00 Miscellaneous- Fountain Repair404-000-955.11
100.00 18,665.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MISC - ALLCOTT PARK404-000-955.19
100.00 509.24 0.00 0.00 0.00 POLICE GRANTS404-000-955.29
100.00 1,130.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 MISC - BROOKS NATURE404-000-955.40

Page 135 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 29/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 404 - Special Projects Fund
Expenditures

100.00 26,077.50 29,762.50 0.00 0.00 MISC - EATON PARK404-000-955.46
100.00 5,980.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 KETCHUM PARK PHASE 2404-000-955.57

100.00 57,183.10 100,778.64 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 000

100.00 57,183.10 100,778.64 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 (32,458.14)(100,778.64)0.00 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

100.00 57,183.10 100,778.64 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 24,724.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 404 - Special Projects Fund:

Fund 536 - Marshall House Fund
Revenues
Dept 000

46.80 304,210.00 0.00 650,000.00 0.00 Federal Section 8 Grant536-000-531.00
2,572.68 3,087.22 0.00 120.00 0.00 Interest536-000-665.00

52.76 216,332.00 0.00 410,000.00 0.00 Rents536-000-667.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 80,105.00 80,105.00 Contributions - Marshall House536-000-675.02

43.59 8,718.92 0.00 20,000.00 0.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE536-000-679.00
49.34 11,348.00 0.00 23,000.00 0.00 MISC. REVENUE-CABLE536-000-679.02

45.95 543,696.14 0.00 1,183,225.00 80,105.00 Total Dept 000

45.95 543,696.14 0.00 1,183,225.00 80,105.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 692 - Marshall House

192.87 54,004.40 0.00 28,000.00 28,000.00 Payroll536-692-702.00
505.56 2,275.00 0.00 450.00 450.00 Other Fringe Benefits-taxable536-692-702.01
100.00 5,504.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 Part-time Salaries536-692-703.00
100.00 1,776.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION536-692-712.00
193.29 4,207.91 0.00 2,177.00 2,177.00 Social Security536-692-715.00
112.67 10,358.67 0.00 9,194.00 9,194.00 Hospitalization536-692-716.00
144.64 95.46 0.00 66.00 66.00 Life Insurance536-692-717.00
49.54 17,753.02 0.00 35,839.00 35,839.00 RETIREMENT - D/B536-692-718.00
104.06 4,556.99 0.00 4,379.00 4,379.00 Retiree Health Insurance536-692-718.01
100.00 1,902.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 RETIREMENT - D/C536-692-718.10
68.55 342.77 0.00 500.00 0.00 Office Supplies536-692-727.00
36.75 4,593.51 0.00 12,500.00 0.00 Operating Supplies536-692-740.00
36.84 184.20 0.00 500.00 0.00 Uniforms536-692-741.00
100.00 98.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 Miscellaneous Supplies536-692-755.00
100.00 162.47 0.00 0.00 0.00 Fuels & Lubricants536-692-757.00
58.15 6,978.24 0.00 12,000.00 0.00 Building Maintenance Supplies536-692-776.00
15.98 17,007.50 2,173.33 120,000.00 0.00 Professional Services536-692-801.00
0.00 4,037.89 (4,037.89)5,000.00 0.00 Dues & Memberships536-692-810.00

111.57 104,515.46 7,050.00 100,000.00 0.00 Contracted Services536-692-820.00
113.18 20,371.77 0.00 18,000.00 0.00 CONTRACTED MAINTENANCE536-692-820.03
44.78 8,956.92 0.00 20,000.00 0.00 Insurance536-692-825.00
98.68 5,427.30 0.00 5,500.00 0.00 Communications536-692-850.00

Page 136 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 30/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 536 - Marshall House Fund
Expenditures

49.60 124.00 0.00 250.00 0.00 Advertising536-692-901.00
30.81 11,706.31 0.00 38,000.00 0.00 Utilities - Gas536-692-921.00
43.85 31,572.92 0.00 72,000.00 0.00 Utilities-Elec, Water, Sewer536-692-922.00
47.77 8,599.46 0.00 18,000.00 0.00 Cable536-692-923.00
9.71 680.00 0.00 7,000.00 0.00 Equipment Maintenance536-692-930.00

116.75 49,625.97 8,748.28 50,000.00 0.00 Maintenance of Building536-692-931.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 420.00 0.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL536-692-941.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 8,000.00 0.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE536-692-941.01

100.00 875.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Education & Training536-692-958.00

69.08 378,295.81 13,933.72 567,775.00 80,105.00 Total Dept 692 - Marshall House

69.08 378,295.81 13,933.72 567,775.00 80,105.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

24.61 165,400.33 (13,933.72)615,450.00 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

69.08 378,295.81 13,933.72 567,775.00 80,105.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
45.95 543,696.14 0.00 1,183,225.00 80,105.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 536 - Marshall House Fund:

Fund 570 - FIBER TO THE PREMISE
Revenues
Dept 000

53.61 566,125.78 0.00 1,056,000.00 1,056,000.00 Residential Sales570-000-636.00
59.19 113,652.80 0.00 192,000.00 192,000.00 Commercial Sales570-000-644.00

9,745.30 974.53 0.00 10.00 10.00 Interest570-000-665.00
63.55 22,242.00 0.00 35,000.00 35,000.00 PENALTIES INCOME570-000-678.00

54.79 702,995.11 0.00 1,283,010.00 1,283,010.00 Total Dept 000

54.79 702,995.11 0.00 1,283,010.00 1,283,010.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 580 - FIBER TO THE PREMISE

51.84 115,042.17 0.00 221,938.00 221,938.00 Payroll570-580-702.00
553.91 1,550.96 0.00 280.00 280.00 Other Fringe Benefits-taxable570-580-702.01
90.00 3,914.10 0.00 4,349.00 4,349.00 Overtime Salaries570-580-704.00
55.08 660.97 0.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION570-580-712.00
49.36 8,555.05 0.00 17,333.00 17,333.00 Social Security570-580-715.00
50.80 24,761.22 0.00 48,739.00 48,739.00 Hospitalization570-580-716.00
40.08 187.16 0.00 467.00 467.00 Life Insurance570-580-717.00
59.70 10,183.73 0.00 17,057.00 17,057.00 RETIREMENT - D/C570-580-718.10
41.31 413.08 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Office Supplies570-580-727.00
9.45 23.62 0.00 250.00 250.00 Postage and Shipping570-580-727.02

105.92 2,118.46 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 Operating Supplies570-580-740.00
169.70 1,272.76 0.00 750.00 750.00 Uniforms570-580-741.00
56.17 2,001.82 0.00 3,564.00 3,564.00 Fuels & Lubricants570-580-757.00
39.55 201.72 0.00 510.00 510.00 Safety Supplies570-580-761.00
82.92 2,487.63 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 MINOR TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT570-580-777.00
50.88 4,770.58 317.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 Professional Services570-580-801.00
64.05 768.56 0.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 Administrative Costs570-580-805.00

Page 137 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 31/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 570 - FIBER TO THE PREMISE
Expenditures

94.45 62,063.96 96,000.00 167,344.00 167,344.00 Contracted Services570-580-820.00
109.11 2,727.76 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 Insurance570-580-825.00
94.77 1,895.30 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 Communications570-580-850.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Transportation & Travel570-580-860.00
2.90 43.50 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 Advertising570-580-901.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 Marketing570-580-902.00

65.11 6,510.64 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 Utilities-Elec, Water, Sewer570-580-922.00
278.80 16,930.28 24,890.22 15,000.00 15,000.00 Equipment Maintenance570-580-930.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Vehicle Maintenance570-580-932.00
50.00 4,416.00 0.00 8,832.00 8,832.00 Rentals570-580-940.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 480.00 480.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL570-580-941.00

50.00 6,686.52 0.00 13,373.00 13,373.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE570-580-941.01
50.00 6,411.00 0.00 12,822.00 12,822.00 MOTOR POOL REPLACEMENT CHARGE570-580-941.02
59.85 7,578.50 0.00 12,663.00 12,663.00 MOTOR POOL OPERATING CHARGE570-580-941.03
25.00 5,832.50 0.00 23,330.00 23,330.00 COST ALLOCATION570-580-955.00
6.63 199.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 Education & Training570-580-958.00
4.37 1,966.15 0.00 45,000.00 45,000.00 INSTALLATION OF EQUIPMENT COST570-580-963.00

50.00 69,853.98 0.00 139,708.00 139,708.00 Depreciation570-580-968.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 93,353.00 93,353.00 NOTE INTEREST570-580-994.00

55.51 372,028.68 121,207.22 888,542.00 888,542.00 Total Dept 580 - FIBER TO THE PREMISE

55.51 372,028.68 121,207.22 888,542.00 888,542.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

53.18 330,966.43 (121,207.22)394,468.00 394,468.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

55.51 372,028.68 121,207.22 888,542.00 888,542.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
54.79 702,995.11 0.00 1,283,010.00 1,283,010.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 570 - FIBER TO THE PREMISE:

Fund 582 - Electric Fund
Revenues
Dept 000

100.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Licenses and Permits582-000-476.00
109.68 3,400.00 0.00 3,100.00 3,100.00 NSF Revenue582-000-602.00
35.75 21,450.00 0.00 60,000.00 60,000.00 Charges for Services - Fees582-000-607.00
54.61 2,276,453.55 0.00 4,168,190.00 4,168,190.00 Residential Sales582-000-636.00
50.30 290,761.09 0.00 578,000.00 578,000.00 SALES TO CITY GOVERNMENT582-000-642.03
55.29 2,636,779.63 0.00 4,769,275.00 4,769,275.00 Commercial Sales582-000-644.00
54.09 2,091,456.43 0.00 3,866,871.00 3,866,871.00 COMMERCIAL SALES - MMMF582-000-644.01
43.50 2,450,847.45 0.00 5,633,991.00 5,633,991.00 Industrial Sales582-000-645.00
47.70 27,448.90 0.00 57,539.00 57,539.00 Public Str. & Hwy. Lighting582-000-646.00
48.26 26,058.97 0.00 54,000.00 54,000.00 Security & Resort Lighting582-000-647.00
175.53 35,106.54 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 Interest582-000-665.00
100.00 6,401.00 0.00 6,401.00 6,401.00 Rents582-000-667.00
46.69 29,932.48 0.00 64,105.00 64,105.00 PENALTIES INCOME582-000-678.00
18.00 18,234.71 0.00 101,281.00 101,281.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE582-000-679.00

51.15 9,914,630.75 0.00 19,382,753.00 19,382,753.00 Total Dept 000

51.15 9,914,630.75 0.00 19,382,753.00 19,382,753.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Page 138 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 32/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 582 - Electric Fund
Expenditures
Dept 572 - Administration

25.08 75,533.47 0.00 301,174.00 301,174.00 Payroll582-572-702.00
25.50 255.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Part-time Salaries582-572-703.00
100.00 6.24 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime Salaries582-572-704.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 309.00 309.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION582-572-712.00
24.05 5,560.17 0.00 23,117.00 23,117.00 Social Security582-572-715.00
50.56 34,869.44 0.00 68,968.00 68,968.00 Hospitalization582-572-716.00
51.99 154.42 0.00 297.00 297.00 Life Insurance582-572-717.00
49.53 152,195.76 0.00 307,249.00 307,249.00 RETIREMENT - D/B582-572-718.00
63.11 117,967.37 0.00 186,932.00 186,932.00 Retiree Health Insurance582-572-718.01
44.15 6,020.95 0.00 13,637.00 13,637.00 RETIREMENT - D/C582-572-718.10
42.09 2,346.04 0.00 5,574.00 5,574.00 Office Supplies582-572-727.00
49.90 8,902.43 0.00 17,839.00 17,839.00 Postage and Shipping582-572-727.02
34.97 397.60 0.00 1,137.00 1,137.00 Operating Supplies582-572-740.00
32.59 73.97 0.00 227.00 227.00 Miscellaneous Supplies582-572-755.00
87.33 37,248.00 17,800.00 63,036.00 63,036.00 Professional Services582-572-801.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 258.00 258.00 Service Fee582-572-803.00

179.57 1,294.72 0.00 721.00 721.00 BANK FEES582-572-804.00
63.27 2,965.54 0.00 4,687.00 4,687.00 Administrative Costs582-572-805.00
4.76 759.16 0.00 15,965.00 15,965.00 Dues & Memberships582-572-810.00

21.77 8,968.24 0.00 41,200.00 41,200.00 Energy Optimization582-572-813.00
93.02 11,727.50 0.00 12,607.00 12,607.00 Contracted Services582-572-820.00
148.11 85,427.68 0.00 57,680.00 57,680.00 Insurance582-572-825.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 155.00 155.00 Communications582-572-850.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 3,708.00 3,708.00 Transportation & Travel582-572-860.00

57.29 590.10 0.00 1,030.00 1,030.00 Advertising582-572-901.00
29.75 232.31 0.00 781.00 781.00 Equipment Maintenance582-572-930.00
50.00 799.02 0.00 1,598.00 1,598.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE582-572-941.01
50.00 161,929.98 0.00 323,860.00 323,860.00 RENT-ROW582-572-942.00
25.00 72,259.00 0.00 289,036.00 289,036.00 COST ALLOCATION582-572-955.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 1,545.00 1,545.00 Bad Debt Expense582-572-956.00

28.25 847.36 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 Education & Training582-572-958.00
50.00 8,515.98 0.00 17,032.00 17,032.00 Depreciation582-572-968.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 2,266.00 2,266.00 AMORTIZATION582-572-968.01

50.00 87,262.50 0.00 174,525.00 174,525.00 Bond Interest Paid582-572-994.00

46.49 885,109.95 17,800.00 1,942,150.00 1,942,150.00 Total Dept 572 - Administration

Dept 576 - Powerhouse
100.00 8,037.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 Part-time Salaries582-576-703.00
183.20 10,992.12 0.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 Overtime Salaries582-576-704.00
100.00 862.41 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime- Electrical Apparatus582-576-704.04
23.27 62,972.89 0.00 270,653.00 270,653.00 Station Labor582-576-705.00
49.70 13,383.42 0.00 26,929.00 26,929.00 Other Fringe Benefits-taxable582-576-705.01
100.00 10,393.41 0.00 0.00 0.00 LABOR - STRUCTURE IMP. & MAINT582-576-708.01
100.00 21,291.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 LABOR - DIESELS & GENERATORS582-576-708.03
100.00 15,141.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 LABOR - ELECTRICAL APPARATUS582-576-708.04
100.00 5,625.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 LABOR - DAM & WATERWAYS582-576-708.24
100.00 6,874.19 0.00 0.00 0.00 LABOR - HYDRO582-576-708.25

0.00 0.00 0.00 4,770.00 4,770.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION582-576-712.00
48.90 11,357.11 0.00 23,224.00 23,224.00 Social Security582-576-715.00
38.87 29,266.39 0.00 75,296.00 75,296.00 Hospitalization582-576-716.00
46.36 244.80 0.00 528.00 528.00 Life Insurance582-576-717.00
49.54 26,092.72 0.00 52,675.00 52,675.00 RETIREMENT - D/B582-576-718.00
51.95 3,605.26 0.00 6,940.00 6,940.00 RETIREMENT - D/C582-576-718.10

Page 139 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 33/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 582 - Electric Fund
Expenditures

0.00 0.00 0.00 222.00 222.00 Postage and Shipping582-576-727.02
43.48 4,765,701.69 0.00 10,960,814.00 10,960,814.00 Purchase Power - MSCPA582-576-738.00
111.74 2,301.87 0.00 2,060.00 2,060.00 Operating Supplies582-576-740.00
74.93 2,997.01 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 Uniforms582-576-741.00
141.95 1,462.05 0.00 1,030.00 1,030.00 Diesel Fuel - Oil582-576-750.00
115.12 16,600.08 0.00 14,420.00 14,420.00 Diesel Fuel - Gas582-576-751.00
265.58 5,470.95 0.00 2,060.00 2,060.00 Lubricants582-576-752.00
454.66 9,093.26 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 Fuels & Lubricants582-576-757.00
99.71 2,619.49 0.00 2,627.00 2,627.00 Safety Supplies582-576-761.00
151.34 3,117.66 0.00 2,060.00 2,060.00 Building Maintenance Supplies582-576-776.00
40.65 837.49 0.00 2,060.00 2,060.00 MINOR TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT582-576-777.00
83.10 24,632.53 1,045.00 30,900.00 30,900.00 Professional Services582-576-801.00
100.00 150.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Dues & Memberships582-576-810.00
136.71 31,343.33 10,899.59 30,900.00 30,900.00 Contracted Services582-576-820.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 6,180.00 6,180.00 State Emmission Fee582-576-832.00
18.79 580.64 0.00 3,090.00 3,090.00 Communications582-576-850.00
15.53 160.00 0.00 1,030.00 1,030.00 Transportation & Travel582-576-860.00
70.06 1,562.38 0.00 2,230.00 2,230.00 Equipment Maintenance582-576-930.00
3.20 66.00 0.00 2,060.00 2,060.00 MAINTENANCE - STRUCTURES & IMP582-576-934.01

38.78 399.47 0.00 1,030.00 1,030.00 MAINT. - FUEL OIL TANKS582-576-934.02
163.03 5,037.59 0.00 3,090.00 3,090.00 MAINT.- DIESELS & GENERATOR582-576-934.03
43.72 6,088.68 2,918.05 20,600.00 20,600.00 MAINT. - ELECTRICAL APPARATUS582-576-934.04
115.79 2,315.70 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 MAINTENANCE - DAM & WATERWAYS582-576-934.24
77.19 2,205.00 1,654.29 5,000.00 5,000.00 MAINTENANCE - HYDRO582-576-934.25
0.00 0.00 0.00 480.00 480.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL582-576-941.00

50.00 3,460.02 0.00 6,920.00 6,920.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE582-576-941.01
64.79 2,961.52 0.00 4,571.00 4,571.00 MOTOR POOL REPLACEMENT CHARGE582-576-941.02
50.00 3,429.48 0.00 6,859.00 6,859.00 MOTOR POOL OPERATING CHARGE582-576-941.03
0.99 30.60 0.00 3,090.00 3,090.00 Education & Training582-576-958.00

50.00 66,949.98 0.00 133,900.00 133,900.00 Depreciation582-576-968.00

44.39 5,187,715.08 16,516.93 11,724,298.00 11,724,298.00 Total Dept 576 - Powerhouse

Dept 577 - Line Distribution
100.00 4,286.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 Payroll582-577-702.00
100.00 201.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 Other Fringe Benefits-taxable582-577-702.01

2.70 540.00 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 Part-time Salaries582-577-703.00
59.46 2,497.19 0.00 4,200.00 4,200.00 Overtime Salaries582-577-704.00
58.17 15,124.70 0.00 26,000.00 26,000.00 Overtime - Overhead Lines582-577-704.05
19.67 432.74 0.00 2,200.00 2,200.00 Overtime - Transformer & Dev582-577-704.06
24.77 1,585.32 0.00 6,400.00 6,400.00 Overtime - Services582-577-704.07
0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 Overtime - St. Lights & Signs582-577-704.09
0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 200.00 Overtime - Security Lights582-577-704.10
0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 Overtime - Meter Reading582-577-704.12
0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Overtime- Christmas Decoration582-577-704.13

46.22 462.15 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Overtime - Meter Shop582-577-704.14
7.06 176.44 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 Overtime - Underground Lines582-577-704.29

56.39 281.96 0.00 500.00 500.00 Overtime - Line Clearance582-577-704.30
17.88 166,363.69 0.00 930,432.00 930,432.00 Station Labor582-577-705.00
56.35 15,983.45 0.00 28,367.00 28,367.00 Other Fringe Benefits-taxable582-577-705.01
100.00 106,687.99 0.00 0.00 0.00 LABOR - OVERHEAD LINES582-577-708.05
100.00 436.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 LABOR - SERVICES582-577-708.07
100.00 218.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 LABOR - METERS582-577-708.08
100.00 7,669.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 LABOR - ST. LIGHTS & SIGNALS582-577-708.09
100.00 980.57 0.00 0.00 0.00 LABOR - BROOKS FOUNTAIN582-577-708.11

Page 140 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 34/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 582 - Electric Fund
Expenditures

100.00 47,002.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 LABOR - METER READING582-577-708.12
100.00 8,314.73 0.00 0.00 0.00 LABOR - CHRISTMAS DECORATIONS582-577-708.13
100.00 30,274.65 0.00 0.00 0.00 LABOR - METER SHOP582-577-708.14
100.00 13,442.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 LABOR - UNDERGROUND LINES582-577-708.29
100.00 243.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 MPM CIRCUIT582-577-708.33
90.11 18,170.93 0.00 20,165.00 20,165.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION582-577-712.00
36.74 28,773.31 0.00 78,321.00 78,321.00 Social Security582-577-715.00
30.40 61,640.28 0.00 202,787.00 202,787.00 Hospitalization582-577-716.00
38.80 611.88 0.00 1,577.00 1,577.00 Life Insurance582-577-717.00
44.00 56,849.65 0.00 129,206.00 129,206.00 RETIREMENT - D/B582-577-718.00
43.86 22,012.12 0.00 50,185.00 50,185.00 RETIREMENT - D/C582-577-718.10
0.00 0.00 0.00 222.00 222.00 Postage and Shipping582-577-727.02

31.51 4,300.72 0.00 13,648.00 13,648.00 Operating Supplies582-577-740.00
58.55 5,855.15 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 Uniforms582-577-741.00
100.00 10,461.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 Fuels & Lubricants582-577-757.00
14.32 1,504.28 0.00 10,506.00 10,506.00 Safety Supplies582-577-761.00
87.32 13,490.58 0.00 15,450.00 15,450.00 MINOR TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT582-577-777.00
106.02 9.60 5,900.00 5,574.00 5,574.00 Professional Services582-577-801.00
67.63 821.00 0.00 1,214.00 1,214.00 MEDICAL SERVICES582-577-806.00
58.84 109,331.29 23,995.50 226,600.00 226,600.00 Contracted Services582-577-820.00
10.67 241.80 0.00 2,266.00 2,266.00 Communications582-577-850.00
22.64 1,865.92 0.00 8,240.00 8,240.00 Transportation & Travel582-577-860.00
100.00 859.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 Advertising582-577-901.00
100.00 1,052.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 Utilities-Elec, Water, Sewer582-577-922.00
27.93 622.90 0.00 2,230.00 2,230.00 Equipment Maintenance582-577-930.00
99.77 6,588.35 (4,533.10)2,060.00 2,060.00 Vehicle Maintenance582-577-932.00
7.57 3,785.26 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 MAINT. - OVERHEAD LINES582-577-934.05

12.47 5,611.06 0.00 45,000.00 45,000.00 MAINT.- TRANSFORMERS & DEVICES582-577-934.06
21.94 4,388.60 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 MAINTENANCE - SERVICES582-577-934.07
77.43 6,977.07 12,381.03 25,000.00 25,000.00 MAINTENANCE - METERS582-577-934.08
66.76 13,352.73 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 MAINTENANCE - ST. LIGHTS & SIG582-577-934.09
100.11 11,012.30 0.00 11,000.00 11,000.00 MAINTENANCE - SECURITY LIGHTS582-577-934.10

0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 MAINTENANCE - BROOKS FOUNTAIN582-577-934.11
0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 MAINT. - CHRISTMAS DECORATIONS582-577-934.13

44.81 18,460.46 0.00 41,200.00 41,200.00 MAINTENANCE- UNDERGROUND LINES582-577-934.29
49.02 36,037.00 0.00 73,516.00 73,516.00 Rentals582-577-940.00
7.06 211.72 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL582-577-941.00

50.00 7,585.98 0.00 15,172.00 15,172.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE582-577-941.01
56.52 57,673.02 0.00 102,044.00 102,044.00 MOTOR POOL REPLACEMENT CHARGE582-577-941.02
50.00 33,769.02 0.00 67,538.00 67,538.00 MOTOR POOL OPERATING CHARGE582-577-941.03
0.00 0.00 0.00 (6,000.00)(6,000.00)VEHICLE RENTAL CREDIT582-577-941.05
0.00 0.00 0.00 16,480.00 16,480.00 Education & Training582-577-958.00

50.00 212,500.02 0.00 425,000.00 425,000.00 Depreciation582-577-968.00

44.87 1,179,634.68 37,743.43 2,713,200.00 2,713,200.00 Total Dept 577 - Line Distribution

Dept 900 - Capital Outlay Control
25.79 70,779.99 0.00 274,500.00 350,000.00 Capital Outlay582-900-970.00
100.00 40,426.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 HYDRO #3582-900-970.09
77.04 49,228.47 2,000.00 66,500.00 0.00 POWERHOUSE ENGINE REPAIR582-900-970.10
100.00 5,695.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 2022 HANOVER CONVERSION582-900-970.28

0.00 0.00 0.00 50,000.00 0.00 METER REPLACEMENTS582-900-970.36
0.00 0.00 0.00 125,000.00 0.00 #4 DIESEL OXIDATION CATALYST582-900-970.37
0.00 0.00 0.00 60,000.00 0.00 PEARL ST SWITCH GEAR582-900-970.38

100.00 14,046.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 UTILITY POLE REPLACEMENT582-900-970.39

Page 141 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 35/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 582 - Electric Fund
Expenditures

31.63 180,177.35 2,000.00 576,000.00 350,000.00 Total Dept 900 - Capital Outlay Control

44.27 7,432,637.06 74,060.36 16,955,648.00 16,729,648.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

99.21 2,481,993.69 (74,060.36)2,427,105.00 2,653,105.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

44.27 7,432,637.06 74,060.36 16,955,648.00 16,729,648.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
51.15 9,914,630.75 0.00 19,382,753.00 19,382,753.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 582 - Electric Fund:

Fund 588 - DART Fund
Revenues
Dept 000

98.87 201,878.07 0.00 204,178.00 204,178.00 Current Property Taxes588-000-402.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 Delinquent Personal Prop Taxes588-000-412.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 200.00 Penalties & Int. on Taxes588-000-445.00

94.96 75,967.41 0.00 80,000.00 80,000.00 Federal Section 5311 Grant588-000-530.00
47.15 66,008.40 0.00 140,000.00 140,000.00 State Operating Assistance588-000-568.00
11.60 2,320.22 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 LOCAL COMM STAB SHARE TAX588-000-573.00
60.27 15,067.06 0.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 Passenger Fares588-000-613.00

14,266.58 5,706.63 0.00 40.00 40.00 Interest588-000-665.00
50.65 1,620.79 0.00 3,200.00 3,200.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE588-000-679.00

77.97 368,568.58 0.00 472,718.00 472,718.00 Total Dept 000

Dept 575 - DART - ALBION
41.92 8,384.59 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 Federal Section 5311 Grant588-575-530.00
36.67 7,333.60 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 State Operating Assistance588-575-568.00
80.06 2,401.67 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 Passenger Fares588-575-613.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 6,500.00 6,500.00 Contrib. from Other Sources588-575-675.00

44.80 179.21 0.00 400.00 400.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE588-575-679.00

36.67 18,299.07 0.00 49,900.00 49,900.00 Total Dept 575 - DART - ALBION

74.02 386,867.65 0.00 522,618.00 522,618.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 575 - DART - ALBION

24.04 2,200.95 0.00 9,156.00 9,156.00 Payroll588-575-702.00
22.51 675.37 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 ADMIN HOURS588-575-702.81
42.91 16,305.55 0.00 38,000.00 38,000.00 Part-time Salaries588-575-703.00
42.37 2,965.95 0.00 7,000.00 7,000.00 PART-TIME DISPATCH588-575-703.82
5.11 71.51 0.00 1,400.00 1,400.00 Overtime Salaries588-575-704.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 OVERTIME - DISPATCH588-575-704.82

72.86 765.00 0.00 1,050.00 1,050.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION588-575-712.00
43.45 1,738.04 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 Social Security588-575-715.00
10.32 177.03 0.00 1,716.00 1,716.00 Hospitalization588-575-716.00
3.00 141.24 0.00 4,713.00 4,713.00 RETIREMENT - D/C588-575-718.10

100.00 322.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 Office Supplies588-575-727.00
7.50 225.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 Operating Supplies588-575-740.00

Page 142 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 36/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 588 - DART Fund
Expenditures

58.57 7,613.83 0.00 13,000.00 13,000.00 Fuels & Lubricants588-575-757.00
100.00 534.47 0.00 0.00 0.00 Professional Services588-575-801.00
100.00 106.85 0.00 0.00 0.00 MEDICAL SERVICES588-575-806.00

5.68 388.17 0.00 6,830.00 6,830.00 Insurance588-575-825.00
19.83 1,012.40 0.00 5,105.00 5,105.00 Communications588-575-850.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 682.00 682.00 Advertising588-575-901.00
3.65 364.57 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE588-575-932.00

25.75 377.04 0.00 1,464.00 1,464.00 Tires588-575-933.00
16.42 492.49 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 Rentals588-575-940.00
50.00 454.02 0.00 908.00 908.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE588-575-941.01
50.00 4,112.52 0.00 8,225.00 8,225.00 Depreciation588-575-968.00
100.00 1,531.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 Transfers to Other Funds588-575-995.00

34.80 42,575.34 0.00 122,349.00 122,349.00 Total Dept 575 - DART - ALBION

Dept 596 - DART
34.27 17,780.15 0.00 51,882.00 51,882.00 Payroll588-596-702.00
36.95 5,912.10 0.00 16,000.00 16,000.00 ADMIN HOURS588-596-702.81
36.08 46,531.22 0.00 128,973.00 128,973.00 Part-time Salaries588-596-703.00
42.02 13,499.66 0.00 32,130.00 32,130.00 PART-TIME DISPATCH588-596-703.82
9.00 360.08 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 Overtime Salaries588-596-704.00

60.49 483.88 0.00 800.00 800.00 OVERTIME - DISPATCH588-596-704.82
75.78 3,076.81 0.00 4,060.00 4,060.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION588-596-712.00
38.74 6,313.52 0.00 16,298.00 16,298.00 Social Security588-596-715.00
16.01 1,557.45 0.00 9,727.00 9,727.00 Hospitalization588-596-716.00
8.45 11.16 0.00 132.00 132.00 Life Insurance588-596-717.00

49.53 19,936.15 0.00 40,247.00 40,247.00 RETIREMENT - D/B588-596-718.00
67.57 34,178.85 0.00 50,582.00 50,582.00 Retiree Health Insurance588-596-718.01
38.71 1,824.36 0.00 4,713.00 4,713.00 RETIREMENT - D/C588-596-718.10
2.73 136.71 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 Operating Supplies588-596-740.00

45.22 12,660.74 0.00 28,000.00 28,000.00 Fuels & Lubricants588-596-757.00
155.95 1,952.23 1,166.67 2,000.00 2,000.00 Professional Services588-596-801.00
100.00 622.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 MEDICAL SERVICES588-596-806.00
100.00 3,664.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Contracted Services588-596-820.00
27.29 1,561.22 0.00 5,720.00 5,720.00 Insurance588-596-825.00
355.35 7,107.06 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 Communications588-596-850.00
100.00 84.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Advertising588-596-901.00
100.00 257.85 0.00 0.00 0.00 Equipment Maintenance588-596-930.00

8.38 1,005.98 0.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 Vehicle Maintenance588-596-932.00
25.77 788.56 0.00 3,060.00 3,060.00 Tires588-596-933.00
45.02 4,454.01 0.00 9,893.00 9,893.00 Rentals588-596-940.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 480.00 480.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL588-596-941.00

50.00 4,429.98 0.00 8,860.00 8,860.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE588-596-941.01
100.00 700.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Education & Training588-596-958.00
50.00 28,249.98 0.00 56,500.00 56,500.00 Depreciation588-596-968.00
0.00 0.00 273,824.00 0.00 0.00 Capital Outlay588-596-970.00

25.00 4,897.50 0.00 19,590.00 19,590.00 TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS588-596-995.00

97.34 224,037.44 274,990.67 512,647.00 512,647.00 Total Dept 596 - DART

85.29 266,612.78 274,990.67 634,996.00 634,996.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Page 143 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 37/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 588 - DART Fund

137.69 120,254.87 (274,990.67)(112,378.00)(112,378.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

85.29 266,612.78 274,990.67 634,996.00 634,996.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
74.02 386,867.65 0.00 522,618.00 522,618.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 588 - DART Fund:

Fund 590 - Wastewater Fund
Revenues
Dept 000

50.00 558,984.74 0.00 1,118,000.00 1,118,000.00 Residential Sales590-000-636.00
88.39 34,473.74 0.00 39,000.00 39,000.00 SALES TO CITY GOVERNMENT590-000-642.03
50.99 324,275.36 0.00 636,000.00 636,000.00 Commercial Sales590-000-644.00
53.43 57,703.08 0.00 108,000.00 108,000.00 COMMERCIAL SALES - MARIJUANA PRODUCTION590-000-644.01
53.73 86,779.03 0.00 161,500.00 161,500.00 Industrial Sales590-000-645.00
100.00 1,815.56 0.00 0.00 0.00 Interest590-000-665.00
53.36 6,402.98 0.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 PENALTIES INCOME590-000-678.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE590-000-679.00

100.00 (19,885.00)0.00 0.00 0.00 CONNECTION FEES590-000-679.01

50.16 1,050,549.49 0.00 2,094,500.00 2,094,500.00 Total Dept 000

50.16 1,050,549.49 0.00 2,094,500.00 2,094,500.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 572 - Administration

41.28 54,448.60 0.00 131,903.00 131,903.00 Payroll590-572-702.00
100.00 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 Other Fringe Benefits-taxable590-572-702.01
100.00 22.37 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime Salaries590-572-704.00
211.95 2,407.74 0.00 1,136.00 1,136.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION590-572-712.00
39.39 4,019.50 0.00 10,205.00 10,205.00 Social Security590-572-715.00
58.56 22,390.43 0.00 38,238.00 38,238.00 Hospitalization590-572-716.00
57.46 132.73 0.00 231.00 231.00 Life Insurance590-572-717.00
49.54 47,465.10 0.00 95,821.00 95,821.00 RETIREMENT - D/B590-572-718.00
88.73 18,919.13 0.00 21,322.00 21,322.00 Retiree Health Insurance590-572-718.01
68.08 2,634.18 0.00 3,869.00 3,869.00 RETIREMENT - D/C590-572-718.10
159.32 2,389.83 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 Office Supplies590-572-727.00
46.82 2,808.91 0.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 Postage and Shipping590-572-727.02
31.56 1,875.50 2,385.75 13,500.00 13,500.00 Professional Services590-572-801.00
31.50 157.50 0.00 500.00 500.00 Service Fee590-572-803.00
38.08 647.36 0.00 1,700.00 1,700.00 BANK FEES590-572-804.00
100.00 427.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 Administrative Costs590-572-805.00
100.00 12.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 MEDICAL SERVICES590-572-806.00
33.70 155.00 0.00 460.00 460.00 Dues & Memberships590-572-810.00
52.04 7,310.00 0.00 14,047.00 14,047.00 Contracted Services590-572-820.00
108.26 27,064.74 0.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 Insurance590-572-825.00
48.01 240.06 0.00 500.00 500.00 Communications590-572-850.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 430.00 430.00 Transportation & Travel590-572-860.00

37.20 186.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 Advertising590-572-901.00
38.72 232.31 0.00 600.00 600.00 Equipment Maintenance590-572-930.00
50.00 6,726.00 0.00 13,452.00 13,452.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE590-572-941.01
50.00 42,504.00 0.00 85,008.00 85,008.00 RENT-ROW590-572-942.00
25.00 12,343.50 0.00 49,374.00 49,374.00 COST ALLOCATION590-572-955.00
5.00 75.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 Education & Training590-572-958.00

50.00 27,695.00 0.00 55,390.00 55,390.00 NOTE INTEREST590-572-994.00

Page 144 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 38/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 590 - Wastewater Fund
Expenditures

50.41 286,790.27 2,385.75 573,686.00 573,686.00 Total Dept 572 - Administration

Dept 578 - Operations
4.14 348.03 0.00 8,400.00 8,400.00 Part-time Salaries590-578-703.00

65.76 7,539.65 0.00 11,465.00 11,465.00 Overtime Salaries590-578-704.00
44.72 107,253.18 0.00 239,855.00 239,855.00 Station Labor590-578-705.00
109.09 1,200.00 0.00 1,100.00 1,100.00 Other Fringe Benefits-taxable590-578-705.01
100.00 231.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 LABOR - METER READING590-578-708.12

0.00 0.00 0.00 3,383.00 3,383.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION590-578-712.00
42.62 8,503.01 0.00 19,953.00 19,953.00 Social Security590-578-715.00
31.08 24,028.66 0.00 77,302.00 77,302.00 Hospitalization590-578-716.00
39.22 208.26 0.00 531.00 531.00 Life Insurance590-578-717.00
49.54 8,199.72 0.00 16,553.00 16,553.00 RETIREMENT - D/B590-578-718.00
55.84 9,862.31 0.00 17,661.00 17,661.00 RETIREMENT - D/C590-578-718.10
102.72 14,420.11 11,259.59 25,000.00 25,000.00 Operating Supplies590-578-740.00
100.00 1,526.78 0.00 0.00 0.00 Uniforms590-578-741.00
52.69 1,343.15 0.00 2,549.00 2,549.00 Fuels & Lubricants590-578-757.00
21.26 318.87 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 Safety Supplies590-578-761.00
34.60 518.96 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 Building Maintenance Supplies590-578-776.00
14.99 149.87 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 MINOR TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT590-578-777.00
139.40 56,629.31 54,890.81 80,000.00 80,000.00 Chemical Cost590-578-790.00
100.00 15.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 Professional Services590-578-801.00
44.00 5,500.00 0.00 12,500.00 12,500.00 Service Fee590-578-803.00
131.87 50,553.37 52,303.80 78,000.00 78,000.00 Contracted Services590-578-820.00
24.51 612.86 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 Communications590-578-850.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 150.00 150.00 Transportation & Travel590-578-860.00

37.31 1,305.84 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 Utilities - Gas590-578-921.00
58.94 73,673.45 0.00 125,000.00 125,000.00 Utilities-Elec, Water, Sewer590-578-922.00
100.00 3,124.51 (3,124.51)0.00 0.00 Vehicle Maintenance590-578-932.00
90.55 4,527.39 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 MAINTENANCE - STRUCTURES & IMP590-578-934.01
136.85 27,369.76 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 MAINTENANCE - PLANT EQUIPMENT590-578-934.15
55.01 7.58 10,995.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 MAINTENANCE - LIFT STATIONS590-578-934.16
0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 MAINTENANCE - SEWER LINES590-578-934.23
0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 MAINT. - SEWER LINES-CHEMICALS590-578-934.28
0.00 0.00 0.00 17,000.00 17,000.00 MAINTENANCE SCADA590-578-934.30
0.00 0.00 0.00 840.00 840.00 Rentals590-578-940.00
0.68 101.51 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL590-578-941.00

50.00 4,477.02 0.00 8,954.00 8,954.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE590-578-941.01
50.00 2,748.00 0.00 5,496.00 5,496.00 MOTOR POOL REPLACEMENT CHARGE590-578-941.02
59.85 5,999.52 0.00 10,025.00 10,025.00 MOTOR POOL OPERATING CHARGE590-578-941.03
0.00 0.00 0.00 (20,000.00)(20,000.00)VEHICLE RENTAL CREDIT590-578-941.05
6.40 160.00 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 Education & Training590-578-958.00

66.42 422,457.28 126,324.69 826,217.00 826,217.00 Total Dept 578 - Operations

Dept 900 - Capital Outlay Control
63.12 283,319.17 149,083.98 685,000.00 685,000.00 Capital Outlay590-900-970.00

63.12 283,319.17 149,083.98 685,000.00 685,000.00 Total Dept 900 - Capital Outlay Control

60.93 992,566.72 277,794.42 2,084,903.00 2,084,903.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Page 145 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 39/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 590 - Wastewater Fund

2,290.42 57,982.77 (277,794.42)9,597.00 9,597.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

60.93 992,566.72 277,794.42 2,084,903.00 2,084,903.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
50.16 1,050,549.49 0.00 2,094,500.00 2,094,500.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 590 - Wastewater Fund:

Fund 591 - Water Fund
Revenues
Dept 000

40.00 80.00 0.00 200.00 200.00 Charges for Services - Fees591-000-607.00
52.00 4,680.06 0.00 9,000.00 9,000.00 Private Fire Protection591-000-614.00
444.28 4,442.83 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Charges for Services591-000-626.00
53.93 620,187.60 0.00 1,150,000.00 1,150,000.00 Residential Sales591-000-636.00
54.14 40,607.71 0.00 75,000.00 75,000.00 SALES TO CITY GOVERNMENT591-000-642.03
52.57 294,368.03 0.00 560,000.00 560,000.00 Commercial Sales591-000-644.00
44.56 29,409.26 0.00 66,000.00 66,000.00 COMMERCIAL SALES - MARIJUANA PROD591-000-644.01
51.24 71,734.22 0.00 140,000.00 140,000.00 Industrial Sales591-000-645.00

1,688.38 25,325.64 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 Interest591-000-665.00
59.56 7,146.88 0.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 PENALTIES INCOME591-000-678.00
94.35 5,661.27 0.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE591-000-679.00
133.48 13,348.16 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 CONNECTION FEES591-000-679.01

55.01 1,116,991.66 0.00 2,030,700.00 2,030,700.00 Total Dept 000

55.01 1,116,991.66 0.00 2,030,700.00 2,030,700.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 572 - Administration

42.16 55,925.98 0.00 132,659.00 132,659.00 Payroll591-572-702.00
100.00 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 Other Fringe Benefits-taxable591-572-702.01
100.00 120.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Part-time Salaries591-572-703.00
100.00 22.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime Salaries591-572-704.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 2,188.00 2,188.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION591-572-712.00
40.70 4,174.20 0.00 10,256.00 10,256.00 Social Security591-572-715.00
56.65 18,086.32 0.00 31,925.00 31,925.00 Hospitalization591-572-716.00
47.07 108.73 0.00 231.00 231.00 Life Insurance591-572-717.00
49.54 43,863.80 0.00 88,551.00 88,551.00 RETIREMENT - D/B591-572-718.00
63.05 39,752.83 0.00 63,047.00 63,047.00 Retiree Health Insurance591-572-718.01
68.08 2,634.18 0.00 3,869.00 3,869.00 RETIREMENT - D/C591-572-718.10
165.27 2,313.79 0.00 1,400.00 1,400.00 Office Supplies591-572-727.00
51.85 2,488.64 0.00 4,800.00 4,800.00 Postage and Shipping591-572-727.02
634.69 1,396.31 0.00 220.00 220.00 Operating Supplies591-572-740.00
100.00 120.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 Miscellaneous Supplies591-572-755.00
79.19 25,079.00 14,514.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 Professional Services591-572-801.00
33.71 590.00 0.00 1,750.00 1,750.00 Service Fee591-572-803.00
43.16 647.37 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 BANK FEES591-572-804.00
123.04 492.17 0.00 400.00 400.00 Administrative Costs591-572-805.00
220.50 220.50 0.00 100.00 100.00 MEDICAL SERVICES591-572-806.00
96.69 1,257.00 0.00 1,300.00 1,300.00 Dues & Memberships591-572-810.00
37.45 7,490.00 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 Contracted Services591-572-820.00
113.44 14,449.22 0.00 12,737.00 12,737.00 Insurance591-572-825.00
100.00 51,996.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Bond Issuance Costs591-572-826.00
27.48 1,291.57 0.00 4,700.00 4,700.00 Communications591-572-850.00
7.25 43.50 0.00 600.00 600.00 Advertising591-572-901.00

116.16 232.31 0.00 200.00 200.00 Equipment Maintenance591-572-930.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 440.00 440.00 Rentals591-572-940.00

Page 146 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 40/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 591 - Water Fund
Expenditures

50.00 6,714.48 0.00 13,429.00 13,429.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE591-572-941.01
50.00 52,008.00 0.00 104,016.00 104,016.00 RENT-ROW591-572-942.00
25.00 11,438.50 0.00 45,754.00 45,754.00 COST ALLOCATION591-572-955.00
3.00 45.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 Education & Training591-572-958.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 3,309.00 3,309.00 AMORTIZATION591-572-968.01

50.00 92,367.50 0.00 184,735.00 184,735.00 NOTE INTEREST591-572-994.00

57.60 438,870.08 14,514.00 787,116.00 787,116.00 Total Dept 572 - Administration

Dept 577 - Line Distribution
100.00 7.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS-TAXABLE591-577-702.01
100.00 1,111.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 Part-time Salaries591-577-703.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 11,263.00 11,263.00 Overtime Salaries591-577-704.00
100.00 904.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime - Services591-577-704.07
100.00 76.89 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime - Meters591-577-704.08
100.00 4,473.41 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime - Mains591-577-704.27
19.45 31,090.42 0.00 159,875.00 159,875.00 Station Labor591-577-705.00
47.78 7,636.79 0.00 15,984.00 15,984.00 Other Fringe Benefits-taxable591-577-705.01
100.00 14,081.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 LABOR - SERVICES591-577-708.07
100.00 4,064.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 LABOR - METERS591-577-708.08
100.00 231.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 LABOR - METER READING591-577-708.12
100.00 10,665.39 0.00 0.00 0.00 LABOR - HYDRANTS591-577-708.20
100.00 873.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 LABOR - TOWERS591-577-708.22
100.00 17,047.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 LABOR - MAINS591-577-708.27
100.00 10.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 LABOR - KETCHUM PARK RESTROOM591-577-708.31
153.87 7,405.82 0.00 4,813.00 4,813.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION591-577-712.00
44.61 6,385.69 0.00 14,315.00 14,315.00 Social Security591-577-715.00
6.36 2,241.09 0.00 35,210.00 35,210.00 Hospitalization591-577-716.00
9.79 39.06 0.00 399.00 399.00 Life Insurance591-577-717.00

49.71 13,619.51 0.00 27,398.00 27,398.00 RETIREMENT - D/B591-577-718.00
17.88 998.06 0.00 5,583.00 5,583.00 RETIREMENT - D/C591-577-718.10
13.30 678.08 0.00 5,100.00 5,100.00 Operating Supplies591-577-740.00
50.75 1,268.70 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 Uniforms591-577-741.00
29.61 2,267.51 0.00 7,659.00 7,659.00 Fuels & Lubricants591-577-757.00
19.57 293.59 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 Safety Supplies591-577-761.00
7.80 272.97 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 MINOR TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT591-577-777.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 510.00 510.00 Equipment Maintenance Supplies591-577-780.00

32.68 6,015.25 138.75 18,830.00 18,830.00 Contracted Services591-577-820.00
20.00 360.00 0.00 1,800.00 1,800.00 Communications591-577-850.00
62.59 312.97 0.00 500.00 500.00 Advertising591-577-901.00
34.63 623.33 0.00 1,800.00 1,800.00 Utilities-Elec, Water, Sewer591-577-922.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 541.00 541.00 Equipment Maintenance591-577-930.00

31.65 6,329.04 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 MAINTENANCE - SERVICES591-577-934.07
48.49 9,698.53 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 MAINTENANCE - HYDRANTS591-577-934.20
1.00 150.00 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 MAINTENANCE - METERS591-577-934.21

87.07 1,741.44 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 MAINTENANCE - TOWERS591-577-934.22
78.72 15,744.74 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 MAINTENANCE - MAINS591-577-934.27
50.00 4,774.50 0.00 9,549.00 9,549.00 Rentals591-577-940.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 16,000.00 16,000.00 MOTOR POOL VEHICLE RENTAL591-577-941.00

50.00 8,098.02 0.00 16,196.00 16,196.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE591-577-941.01
50.00 14,635.02 0.00 29,270.00 29,270.00 MOTOR POOL REPLACEMENT CHARGE591-577-941.02
59.85 22,419.98 0.00 37,462.00 37,462.00 MOTOR POOL OPERATING CHARGE591-577-941.03
0.00 0.00 0.00 (7,920.00)(7,920.00)VEHICLE RENTAL CREDIT591-577-941.05

110.00 1,650.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 Education & Training591-577-958.00
50.00 165,649.98 0.00 331,300.00 331,300.00 Depreciation591-577-968.00

Page 147 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 41/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 591 - Water Fund
Expenditures

46.55 385,948.25 138.75 829,437.00 829,437.00 Total Dept 577 - Line Distribution

Dept 579 - Production
37.47 1,215.63 0.00 3,244.00 3,244.00 Overtime Salaries591-579-704.00
54.28 32,175.71 0.00 59,278.00 59,278.00 Station Labor591-579-705.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 1,776.00 1,776.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION591-579-712.00

49.89 2,386.07 0.00 4,783.00 4,783.00 Social Security591-579-715.00
99.64 22,383.34 0.00 22,465.00 22,465.00 Hospitalization591-579-716.00
125.09 165.12 0.00 132.00 132.00 Life Insurance591-579-717.00
48.56 2,878.64 0.00 5,928.00 5,928.00 RETIREMENT - D/C591-579-718.10
100.00 2,715.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 Operating Supplies591-579-740.00
60.50 423.50 0.00 700.00 700.00 Uniforms591-579-741.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 153.00 153.00 Safety Supplies591-579-761.00

57.90 649.64 0.00 1,122.00 1,122.00 Building Maintenance Supplies591-579-776.00
78.70 787.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 MINOR TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT591-579-777.00
63.49 13,968.04 0.00 22,000.00 22,000.00 Chemical Cost591-579-790.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 876.00 876.00 Professional Services591-579-801.00

40.61 1,137.00 0.00 2,800.00 2,800.00 Contracted Services591-579-820.00
109.53 3,614.60 0.00 3,300.00 3,300.00 STATE FEES591-579-831.00
61.32 1,839.69 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 Utilities - Gas591-579-921.00
52.17 18,781.09 0.00 36,000.00 36,000.00 Utilities-Elec, Water, Sewer591-579-922.00
68.70 824.40 0.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 MAINTENANCE - STRUCTURES & IMP591-579-934.01
44.45 180.04 0.00 405.00 405.00 MAINTENANCE - PLANT EQUIPMENT591-579-934.15
173.08 2,250.00 0.00 1,300.00 1,300.00 MAINTENANCE - WELLS591-579-934.18
62.76 1,637.78 1,500.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 MAINTENANCE - PURIFICATION EQ.591-579-934.19
0.00 0.00 0.00 5,595.00 5,595.00 MAINT - SCADA591-579-934.30
0.00 0.00 0.00 1,530.00 1,530.00 Education & Training591-579-958.00

60.74 110,012.95 1,500.00 183,587.00 183,587.00 Total Dept 579 - Production

Dept 900 - Capital Outlay Control
79.86 773,772.97 494,384.71 1,588,000.00 1,588,000.00 Capital Outlay591-900-970.00
100.00 7,727.00 5,054.16 0.00 0.00 CITYWORKS IMPLEMENTATION PROJ591-900-970.27

80.66 781,499.97 499,438.87 1,588,000.00 1,588,000.00 Total Dept 900 - Capital Outlay Control

65.87 1,716,331.25 515,591.62 3,388,140.00 3,388,140.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

82.13 (599,339.59)(515,591.62)(1,357,440.00)(1,357,440.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

65.87 1,716,331.25 515,591.62 3,388,140.00 3,388,140.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
55.01 1,116,991.66 0.00 2,030,700.00 2,030,700.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 591 - Water Fund:

Fund 596 - SOLID WASTE FUND
Revenues
Dept 000

75.82 319,256.33 0.00 421,092.00 421,092.00 RESIDENTIAL SALES-TRASH PICK-UP596-000-636.01
0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 BULK TRASH PICK-UP SALES596-000-636.02

3,345.40 167.27 0.00 5.00 5.00 Interest596-000-665.00
57.09 2,854.46 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 PENALTIES INCOME596-000-678.00

Page 148 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 42/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 596 - SOLID WASTE FUND
Revenues

75.55 322,278.06 0.00 426,597.00 426,597.00 Total Dept 000

75.55 322,278.06 0.00 426,597.00 426,597.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 528 - SOLID WASTE

33.77 5,014.54 0.00 14,847.00 14,847.00 Payroll596-528-702.00
100.00 24.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 Overtime Salaries596-528-704.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 50.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION596-528-712.00
31.56 358.48 0.00 1,136.00 1,136.00 Social Security596-528-715.00
18.98 1,790.84 0.00 9,435.00 9,435.00 Hospitalization596-528-716.00
18.41 3.13 0.00 17.00 17.00 Life Insurance596-528-717.00
51.71 556.96 0.00 1,077.00 1,077.00 RETIREMENT - D/C596-528-718.10
53.68 1,610.52 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 Postage and Shipping596-528-727.02
188.95 944.75 0.00 500.00 500.00 Operating Supplies596-528-740.00
100.00 533.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 Administrative Costs596-528-805.00
63.00 211,678.16 0.00 336,000.00 336,000.00 Contracted Services596-528-820.00
50.00 733.00 0.00 1,466.00 1,466.00 Rentals596-528-940.00
50.00 1,330.98 0.00 2,662.00 2,662.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE596-528-941.01
25.00 408.75 0.00 1,635.00 1,635.00 COST ALLOCATION596-528-955.00

60.51 224,988.63 0.00 371,825.00 371,825.00 Total Dept 528 - SOLID WASTE

60.51 224,988.63 0.00 371,825.00 371,825.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

177.63 97,289.43 0.00 54,772.00 54,772.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

60.51 224,988.63 0.00 371,825.00 371,825.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
75.55 322,278.06 0.00 426,597.00 426,597.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 596 - SOLID WASTE FUND:

Fund 636 - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
Revenues
Dept 000

49.51 132,093.48 0.00 266,782.00 266,782.00 Charges for Services636-000-626.00
708.96 354.48 0.00 50.00 50.00 Interest636-000-665.00

49.64 132,447.96 0.00 266,832.00 266,832.00 Total Dept 000

49.64 132,447.96 0.00 266,832.00 266,832.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 572 - Administration

0.00 0.00 0.00 17,072.00 17,072.00 Payroll636-572-702.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION636-572-712.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 1,306.00 1,306.00 Social Security636-572-715.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 2,018.00 2,018.00 Hospitalization636-572-716.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 33.00 33.00 Life Insurance636-572-717.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 1,707.00 1,707.00 RETIREMENT - D/C636-572-718.10

Page 149 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 43/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 636 - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
Expenditures

6.00 29.99 0.00 500.00 500.00 Office Supplies636-572-727.00
91.19 31,916.79 0.00 35,000.00 35,000.00 Equipment & Supplies636-572-728.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 6,500.00 6,500.00 Operating Supplies636-572-740.00
8.85 9,732.00 0.00 110,000.00 110,000.00 Professional Services636-572-801.00

244.69 129,063.38 (92,360.00)15,000.00 15,000.00 Contracted Services636-572-820.00
53.40 28,041.54 0.00 52,508.00 52,508.00 SOFTWARE COSTS636-572-833.00
149.62 14,962.00 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 Equipment Maintenance636-572-930.00
25.00 538.75 0.00 2,155.00 2,155.00 COST ALLOCATION636-572-955.00
50.00 6,499.98 0.00 13,000.00 13,000.00 Depreciation636-572-968.00

48.12 220,784.43 (92,360.00)266,899.00 266,899.00 Total Dept 572 - Administration

48.12 220,784.43 (92,360.00)266,899.00 266,899.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

6,005.27 (88,336.47)92,360.00 (67.00)(67.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

48.12 220,784.43 (92,360.00)266,899.00 266,899.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
49.64 132,447.96 0.00 266,832.00 266,832.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 636 - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY:

Fund 661 - Motor Pool Fund
Revenues
Dept 000

48.63 10,212.50 0.00 21,000.00 21,000.00 Contributions from Local Units661-000-588.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 4,320.00 4,320.00 VEHICLE RENTAL REVENUE661-000-642.00

49.70 205,466.10 0.00 413,403.00 413,403.00 REPLACEMENT CHARGE REVENUE661-000-642.07
59.55 254,839.56 0.00 427,916.00 427,916.00 OPERATING CHARGE REVENUE661-000-642.08
174.14 609.48 0.00 350.00 350.00 Interest661-000-665.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 Sales of Fixed Assets661-000-673.00

53.84 471,127.64 0.00 874,989.00 874,989.00 Total Dept 000

53.84 471,127.64 0.00 874,989.00 874,989.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 525 - Municipal Garage

45.19 31,311.91 0.00 69,292.00 69,292.00 Payroll661-525-702.00
607.17 255.01 0.00 42.00 42.00 Other Fringe Benefits-taxable661-525-702.01

0.00 0.00 0.00 5,850.00 5,850.00 Part-time Salaries661-525-703.00
21.01 453.87 0.00 2,160.00 2,160.00 Overtime Salaries661-525-704.00
62.07 976.97 0.00 1,574.00 1,574.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION661-525-712.00
38.60 2,284.05 0.00 5,917.00 5,917.00 Social Security661-525-715.00
43.77 9,588.89 0.00 21,905.00 21,905.00 Hospitalization661-525-716.00
45.49 33.66 0.00 74.00 74.00 Life Insurance661-525-717.00
49.53 5,359.46 0.00 10,820.00 10,820.00 RETIREMENT - D/B661-525-718.00
104.04 4,555.95 0.00 4,379.00 4,379.00 Retiree Health Insurance661-525-718.01
46.94 3,252.61 0.00 6,929.00 6,929.00 RETIREMENT - D/C661-525-718.10
43.84 175.35 0.00 400.00 400.00 Office Supplies661-525-727.00
75.50 679.47 0.00 900.00 900.00 Uniforms661-525-741.00
91.42 29,711.58 0.00 32,500.00 32,500.00 Fuels & Lubricants661-525-757.00
19.61 392.14 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 Building Maintenance Supplies661-525-776.00

Page 150 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 44/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 661 - Motor Pool Fund
Expenditures

(0.73)(10.90)0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 MINOR TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT661-525-777.00
72.69 25,803.73 0.00 35,500.00 35,500.00 Equipment Maintenance Supplies661-525-780.00
100.00 1,071.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Professional Services661-525-801.00
37.04 80.00 0.00 216.00 216.00 MEDICAL SERVICES661-525-806.00
81.82 180.00 0.00 220.00 220.00 Dues & Memberships661-525-810.00
558.07 27,903.73 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 Contracted Services661-525-820.00
165.30 106,151.16 0.00 64,216.00 64,216.00 Insurance661-525-825.00
100.00 84.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 Communications661-525-850.00
37.76 3,775.69 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 Utilities - Gas661-525-921.00
44.75 8,054.28 0.00 18,000.00 18,000.00 Utilities-Elec, Water, Sewer661-525-922.00
75.26 30,104.02 0.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 Equipment Maintenance661-525-930.00
100.00 1,665.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 Maintenance of Building661-525-931.00
44.84 4,484.19 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 Contracted Maintenance661-525-939.00
50.00 1,479.50 0.00 2,959.00 2,959.00 Rentals661-525-940.00
50.00 2,164.50 0.00 4,329.00 4,329.00 TECHNOLOGY INTERNAL SERVICE CHARGE661-525-941.01
0.00 0.00 0.00 (4,320.00)(4,320.00)VEHICLE RENTAL CREDIT661-525-941.05

25.00 2,305.75 0.00 9,223.00 9,223.00 COST ALLOCATION661-525-955.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 Education & Training661-525-958.00

50.00 197,500.02 0.00 395,000.00 395,000.00 Depreciation661-525-968.00
41.93 106,993.00 53,182.06 382,000.00 382,000.00 Capital Outlay661-525-970.00
0.00 20,287.17 (20,287.17)9,171.00 9,171.00 Bond Interest Paid661-525-994.00

57.60 629,107.37 32,894.89 1,149,256.00 1,149,256.00 Total Dept 525 - Municipal Garage

57.60 629,107.37 32,894.89 1,149,256.00 1,149,256.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

69.59 (157,979.73)(32,894.89)(274,267.00)(274,267.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

57.60 629,107.37 32,894.89 1,149,256.00 1,149,256.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
53.84 471,127.64 0.00 874,989.00 874,989.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 661 - Motor Pool Fund:

Fund 678 - Safety
Revenues
Dept 000

100.00 14.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 Interest678-000-665.00
100.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE678-000-679.00

100.00 314.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 000

100.00 314.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 572 - Administration

100.00 497.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 Operating Supplies678-572-740.00
100.00 320.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Miscellaneous Supplies678-572-755.00
100.00 1,213.81 0.00 0.00 0.00 Professional Services678-572-801.00

100.00 2,031.06 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 572 - Administration

Page 151 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 45/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 678 - Safety
Expenditures

100.00 2,031.06 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 (1,716.22)0.00 0.00 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

100.00 2,031.06 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 314.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 678 - Safety:

Fund 703 - Current Tax Collections Fund
Revenues
Dept 000

100.00 (3,528.63)0.00 0.00 0.00 Penalties & Int. on Taxes703-000-445.00
100.00 4,693.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 Interest703-000-665.00

100.00 1,164.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 000

100.00 1,164.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

100.00 1,164.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 1,164.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 703 - Current Tax Collections Fund:

Fund 704 - IMPREST PAYROLL FUND
Revenues
Dept 000

100.00 (21,650.31)0.00 0.00 0.00 Reimbursement704-000-676.00

100.00 (21,650.31)0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 000

100.00 (21,650.31)0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

100.00 (21,650.31)0.00 0.00 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 (21,650.31)0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 704 - IMPREST PAYROLL FUND:

Fund 736 - Retiree Health Care Fund
Revenues
Dept 000

100.00 200,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Contrib.- Blue Cross Blue Shie736-000-675.19

100.00 200,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 000

Page 152 of 174



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 46/46Page:02/06/2023 05:41 PM
User: WDOPP
DB: Marshall

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 50.41

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

2022-23
AMENDED BUDGET

2022-23
ORIGINAL

BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 736 - Retiree Health Care Fund
Revenues

100.00 200,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

100.00 200,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 200,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 736 - Retiree Health Care Fund:

Fund 751 - LOCAL UNIT INVESTMENT TRUST FUND
Revenues
Dept 000

100.00 7,937.43 0.00 0.00 0.00 Interest751-000-665.00

100.00 7,937.43 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 000

100.00 7,937.43 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

100.00 7,937.43 0.00 0.00 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 7,937.43 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 751 - LOCAL UNIT INVESTMENT TRUST FUND:

46.24 1,004,127.31 (3,804,940.22)(6,057,754.00)(63,408.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

59.59 24,412,506.76 3,804,940.22 47,350,539.00 38,495,094.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS
61.55 25,416,634.07 0.00 41,292,785.00 38,431,686.00 TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS

Page 153 of 174



 

ITEM 12.L 

 
  
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
FROM: Derek N. Perry, City Manager 

William Dopp, Finance Director/ City Treasurer 
DATE: March 6, 2023  
SUBJECT: SECOND QUARTER FY2023 INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO  
  
 
Public Act 213 of 2007 requires local governments to report their investments quarterly to the 
governing body. The investments in the portfolio conform to the Investment Policy, reviewed 
and approved by Council on February 16, 2016 and updated and adopted by Council on April 
19, 2021. 
  
The weighted average earnings yield of the active portfolio of investments held as of December 
31, 2022, was .80%. The weighted average of pooled cash as of December 31, 2022, was 
4.464%. The weighted average of all investments during the fiscal year, including pooled cash, 
was 2.03%. The duration of investments typically range from 6-month Commercial Paper to five-
year Federal Home Loan Bank notes, which is consistent with the City’s investment policy. The 
duration is dependent on the time of the year and cash flow needs. To the extent possible, the 
portfolio represents diversification by institution as well as by investment type. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Accept the Second Quarter FY 2023 Investment Portfolio report and place it on file.  
 

Page 154 of 174



City of Marshall, Michigan
INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

December 2022
 Average

Maturity Purchase Maturity Current Interest Broker/ Investment
Date Investment Date Amount Ref. Value Rate Bank Type

02/14/23 Commercial Paper 10/17/22 250,000.00$                               248,578.48$        N/A Huntington CP
12/10/24 Certificates of Deposit 12/07/21 250,000.00$                               232,925.00$        0.900% Huntington CD
12/15/23 Certificates of Deposit 12/07/21 250,000.00$                               240,625.00$        0.600% Huntington CD
06/12/23 Certificates of Deposit 12/07/21 250,000.00$                               245,712.15$        0.400% Huntington CD
12/16/24 Federal Home Loan Bank Note 12/07/21 1,000,000.00$                            931,920.00$        1.100% Huntington FHLB
12/23/26 Federal Home Loan Bank Note 12/07/21 1,000,000.00$                            910,180.00$        1.000% Huntington FHLB

$2,809,940.63 0.800%  

(Active Portfolio) (Active Portfolio)

Pooled Cash: Balance Interest Rate
Interest Rate 
% of Portfolio

N/A Huntington Bank Cash N/A N/A 31,327.52$          3.330% 0.074% HB PC
N/A MBIA Class Account N/A N/A 1,387,631.00$    4.490% 4.391% MA PC

b) 1,418,958.52$    4.464%

Grand Total c) 4,228,899.15$    2.0295%

Investment Key
Federal Home Loan Bank Note FHLB 1,842,100.00$    43.56%
Commercial Paper CP 248,578.48$        5.88%
Certificates of Deposit CD 719,262.15$        17.01%
Pooled Cash PC 1,418,958.52$    33.55%

4,228,899.15$    

$1,842,100.00 , 
44%

$248,578.48 , 
6%

$719,262.15 , 
17%

$1,418,958.52 , 
33%

City of Marshall
Pooled Cash and Investments

 Federal Home Loan Bank Note  Commercial Paper

 Certificates of Deposit  Pooled Cash

Page 155 of 174



 

ITEM 12.M 

 
  
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
FROM: Derek N. Perry, City Manager 

William Dopp, Finance Director/ City Treasurer 
DATE: March 6, 2023  
SUBJECT: SECOND QUARTER FY2023 CASH POSITION REPORT  
  
 
The Finance Department has developed a Cash Position Summary Report that reflects cash 
balances as of December 31, 2022.  Please note cash and investment balances reflect the 
balance as of that day and are not necessarily indicative of financial health given the complexity 
of operations. 
  
The "Cash" column of the report is primarily cash maintained for operations. The "Cash 
Restricted" column reflects those reserves that are designated for specific purposes or projects, 
required for bond covenants, and for debt service payments. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Accept the Second Quarter FY2023 Cash Position Report and place on file. 
 

Page 156 of 174



CASH & INVEST.
UNRESTRICTED

FUND # FUND NAME CASH CASH RESTRICTED
POOLED 

INVESTMENTS MSCPA CASH MSCPA INVESTMENT TOTAL

101 General 2,450,188$      184,000$                  1,040,200$        3,490,388$          
151 Cemetery Trust Fund 100,987           520,831              621,818$             
202 Major Str. 224,066           189,182              413,248$             
203 Local Str. 389,498           313,375              702,873$             
204 Municipal Street Fund 1,744,516        1,744,516$          
207 MRLEC 267,630           197,502                    267,630$             
208 Recreation 116,470           187,110              303,580$             
211 Farmer's Market 20,042              20,042$                
226 Leaf, Brush 117,858           117,858$             
244 EDC 9,310                9,310$                  
246 SAFER fund (109,694)          (109,694)$            
247 Northeast NIA 110,592           110,592$             
248 DDA 234,673           30,038                 264,711$             
250 LDFA (1,511,881)      5,162,783                 995                      (1,510,886)$        
251 South NIA 70,633              -                             -                       70,633$                
265 Drug Forfeiture 4,689                4,689$                  
287 American Rescue Plan Act 603,736           603,736$             
295 Airport (56,606)            (56,606)$              
296 CDBG 152,711           152,711$             
297 CDBG-Cahill (200)                  (200)$                    
301 Capital Improvement Bond Fund 502,049                    -$                      
369 Building Auth Debt 252,545           252,545$             
404 Special Projects 171,865           -                             26,394                 198,259$             
469 Building Auth Const 50                      50$                        
536 Marshall House 594,398           829,429                    594,398$             
570 Fiber to the Premise 593,343           593,343$             
582 Electric (1,349,411)      544,880                    1,259                   382,006            3,617,307                      (1,348,152)$        
588 DART 1,101,621        715                      1,102,336$          
590 Wastewater 934,145           17,038                       1,143,755           2,077,900$          
591 Water 2,653,321        249,068                    546,288              3,199,609$          
596 Solid Waste 89,056              89,056$                
636 Information Technology 219,279           173,769              393,048$             
661 Motor Pool 360,055           132,838              492,893$             
678 Safety 8,393                39                         8,432$                  
703 Current Tax 1,123,866        1,123,866$          

11,691,744$   7,686,749$               4,306,788$        382,006$         3,617,307$                   15,998,532$       

CITY OF MARSHALL
CASH & INVESTMENTS
12/31/2022

Page 157 of 174



 

ITEM 12.N 

 
  
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
FROM: Derek N. Perry, City Manager 

William Dopp, Finance Director/ City Treasurer 
DATE: March 6, 2023  
SUBJECT: SECOND QUARTER FY2023 BUDGET AMENDMENTS  
  
 
Public Act 2 of 1968, better known as the Uniform Budgeting and Accounting Act, requires an 
amendment to the adopted budget when it can be determined that the budget projections will be 
different than originally anticipated.  Each quarter, staff reviews the revenues and expenditures 
to develop an amended budget resolution to more closely reflect the actual operational costs 
and the associated revenues.  All numbers in the “change column” in parentheses, reflect a 
negative direction in terms of the budget.  For example, if the “change column” for revenue has 
a parenthesis, then revenues are expected to be lower than originally budgeted. 
  
The following is a summary of the recommended budget amendments: 
  
General Fund (Fund 101): The City Hall Department requires an expenditure increase for 
building maintenance of $13,655 to cover the cost of a replacement generator. The Crossing 
Guards Department is at 103% expended YTD and requires a $2,700 expenditure increase for 
part-time salaries to cover services for the rest of the fiscal year.  
  
Cemetery Fund (Fund 151): This establishes a capital outlay expenditure budget of $24,000 
for the cemetery portion of the S Marshall Ave watermain replacement project.  
  
MVH Local (Fund 203): This budget amendment increases the capital outlay expenditures 
budget by $315,000 for the Prospect Street project.  
  
Municipal Street (Fund 204): This establishes a capital outlay expenditure budget of $98,000 
for a portion of the S Marshall Ave watermain replacement project.  In addition, a budget 
amendment is needed for $50,000 for professional services. 
  
Marshall House (Fund 536): This budget amendment increases the professional services 
expenditure budget by $293,000 for environmental activities performed by Triterra in support of 
the sale of the Marshall House.  
  
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
As detailed by the information included in this Administrative Report. 
 

Page 158 of 174



RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt City Resolution 2023-06 to amend the FY 2023 Budget. 
 

Page 159 of 174



Attachment
3/6/2023 Marshall Budget Amendment Resolution

 Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Proposed Budget Amendments
General Fund (Fund 101)

Summary Current Budget
Proposed Budget

Amendment New Budget
Revenues 7,289,702 - 7,289,702
Expenditures: 7,985,351 16,355 8,001,706

Excess Revenues/(Expenditures) (695,649) (16,355) (712,004)

Beginning Fund Balance 6/30/2022 3,827,902 3,827,902
Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2023 (budget) 3,132,253 (16,355) 3,115,898

Detail Increase Decrease

Expenditure: City Hall: Increase Maintenance of Building Expenditures for Generator
Replacement

101-265-931.00 Maintenance of Building 13,655

 
Crossing Guards: Increase Part-Time Expenditures for Program to Cover
Remainder of the Year

101-315-703.00 Part-time Salaries 2,700

Cemetery Trust Fund (Fund 151)

Summary Current Budget
Proposed Budget

Amendment New Budget
Revenues - - -
Expenditures: - 24,000 24,000

Excess Revenues/(Expenditures) - (24,000) (24,000)

Beginning Fund Balance 6/30/2022 612,601 612,601
Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2023 (budget) 612,601 (24,000) 588,601

Detail Increase Decrease

Expenditure:
Establish Expenditure Budget for Cemetery Portion of S Marshall Ave
Watermain Replacement Project

151-900-970.00 Capital Outlay 24,000

MVH Local Fund (Fund 203)

Summary Current Budget
Proposed Budget

Amendment New Budget
Revenues 198,560 - 198,560
Expenditures: 243,272 315,000 558,272

Excess Revenues/(Expenditures) (44,712) (315,000) (359,712)

Beginning Fund Balance 6/30/2022 889,119 889,119
Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2023 (budget) 844,407 (315,000) 529,407

Detail

Revenue: Increase Decrease
-

Expenditure: Increase Capital Outlay Expenditures to Account for Prospect Street Project   
203-903-970.00 Capital Outlay 315,000

1

Page 160 of 174



Municipal Street Fund (Fund 204)

Summary Current Budget
Proposed Budget

Amendment New Budget
Revenues - - -
Expenditures: 1,627,998 148,000 1,775,998

Excess Revenues/(Expenditures) (1,627,998) (148,000) (1,775,998)

Beginning Fund Balance 6/30/2022 2,903,383 2,903,383
Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2023 (budget) 1,275,385 (148,000) 1,127,385

Detail

Expenditure:
Establish Expenditure Budget for Portion of S Marshall Ave Watermain
Replacement Project-Road portion

204-441-801.00 Professional Services 50,000
204-900-970.00 Capital Outlay 98,000

Marshall House Fund (Fund 536)

Summary Current Budget
Proposed Budget

Amendment New Budget
Revenues 1,183,225 - 1,183,225
Expenditures: 567,775 293,000 860,775

Excess Revenues/(Expenditures) 615,450 (293,000) 322,450

Beginning Net Assets 6/30/2022 2,116,616 2,116,616
Ending Net Assets 6/30/2023 (budget) 2,732,066 (293,000) 2,439,066

Detail
Increase Decrease

Expenditure:
Increase Expenditure Budget for Environmental Activities Performed by Triterra
in Support of the Sale of the Marshall House

536-692-801.00 Professional Services 293,000

Attachment
3/6/2023 Marshall Budget Amendment Resolution

 Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Proposed Budget Amendments

2

Page 161 of 174



CITY OF MARSHALL, MICHIGAN
RESOLUTION #2023-06

THE CITY OF MARSHALL
AMENDED GENERAL APPROPRIATION ACT RESOLUTION

July 1, 2022 – June 30, 2023

THE CITY OF MARSHALL RESOLVES that the revenues and expenditures for the fiscal 
year, commencing July 1, 2022, and ending June 30, 2023, are hereby amended on a 
departmental and fund total basis per the attachment, summarized as follows:

Revenues Expenditures
General (Fund 101) 16,355
   City Hall    13,655
   Crossing Guards    2,700
Cemetery Trust (Fund 151) 24,000
MVH Local (Fund 203) 315,000
Municipal Street (Fund 204) 148,000
Marshall House (Fund 536) 293,000

RESOLVED, the use of prior year’s fund balance/net position reserves is not reflected in 
a Fund’s revenue figure above, and that the source of funding for a Fund’s Net 
Loss/(Deficit) shall be the use of prior year’s fund balance/net position reserves.

This Resolution shall take effect upon adoption.
Dated March 6, 2023

___________________________
Michelle Eubank, City Clerk

I, Michelle Eubank, being duly sworn as the City Clerk for the City of Marshall, hereby
certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the City
Council, City of Marshall, County of Calhoun, State of Michigan, at a regular meeting
held on March 6, 2023, and that said meeting was conducted and that the minutes of 
said meeting were kept and will be or have been made available.

___________________________
Michelle Eubank, City Clerk

Page 162 of 174



 

ITEM 12.O 

 
  
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
FROM: Derek N. Perry, City Manager 

Joshua Lankerd, Chief of Police 
DATE: March 6, 2023  
SUBJECT: WARNER VINEYARDS JOINT OFF-PREMISE TASTING ROOM  
  
 
City Staff received two Liquor Control Application approval requests from Warner Vineyards Inc. 
located at 116 E. Michigan Ave.  They requested approval of a Joint Off-Premises Tasting 
Room permit with Maria's Uncorked at the 116 E. Michigan Ave location.  They currently have 
an On-Premise Tasting License and are transitioning  to a Joint Off-Premise License.  Maria's 
Uncorked recently made the same change and was approved for a Joint Off-Premise Tasting 
room by the City Council on December 5, 2022.  
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
No budget impact is anticipated as Warner Vineyard's already has an on-premise license.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution 2023-07 for the approval of Warner Vineyards Inc. Joint Off-Premises 
License.   
 

Page 163 of 174



Page 164 of 174



Page 165 of 174



Page 166 of 174



Page 167 of 174



Page 168 of 174



 

ITEM 12.P 

 
  
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
FROM: Derek N. Perry, City Manager 

Joshua Lankerd, Chief of Police 
DATE: March 6, 2023  
SUBJECT: WARNER VINEYARDS SOCIAL DISTRICT REQUEST  
  
 
Warner Vineyards Inc is requesting approval for a Social District Permit at 116 E. Michigan Ave 
in conjunction with their off premise tasting room license.  Currently, Maria's Uncorked has a 
Social District Permit for this address.   
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
There may be a slight increase in LLC fees from the addition of the Social District Permit. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 Approve Resolution 2023-08 approving the Warner Vineyards Social District Permit 
Application.  
 

Page 169 of 174



Page 170 of 174



Page 171 of 174



Page 172 of 174



Page 173 of 174



Page 174 of 174


	7) CONSENT AGENDA
	A. City Council Minutes
	February 21, 2023 Council Regular Session Minutes
	February 21, 2023 Council Work Session Minutes

	B. City Bills
	Purchases - 2/17/2023
	Purchases - 2/24/2023
	Purchases - 3/7/2023


	12) REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
	A. STEPS OF VALHALLA SPECIAL EVENT
	Administrative Report
	Steps of Valhalla Special Event Application
	Proof of Non-Profit
	Map

	B. ALBAN HEFIN - CELTIC FESTIVAL SPECIAL EVENT REQUES
	Administrative Report
	Proof of Non Profit
	Alban Hefin Celtic Festival Special Event Appication
	Event Request Letter to City of Marshall Letter 2023

	C. THE DARK MASQUERADE (MICHIGAN VAMPIRE BALL) AND CA
	Administrative Report
	The Dark Masquerade (Michigan Vampire Ball) Special Event Application
	Special Event Request Letter to City of Marshall Letter 2023
	Proof of Non-Profit Status

	D. OAKLAWN COLOR CLASSIC 5K AND FUN RUN SPECIAL EVENT
	Administrative Report
	Event Application
	MDOT Permit
	MDOT Trunkline Detour
	COI

	E. OAKLAWN PET, BIKE, AND WAGON PARADE
	Administrative Report
	Detour - 2023 Pet Bike Wagon Parade
	MDOT_IndividualPermit
	Pet Bike & Wagon Parade Applications

	F. RUEBEN RACE SPECIAL EVENT
	Administrative Report
	Special Event Application
	Race Maps

	G. Industrial road construction update and engineerin
	Administrative Report
	Industrial Rd WM - Construction Engineering

	H. Northeast NIA- Green Development Ventures Developm
	Administrative Report
	Forest Development Agreement map
	Development Areement - Forest Street 02202023

	I. Senior Millage Grant Request
	Administrative Report

	J. MLB - Scotts Field Refurbishment Grant
	Administrative Report

	K. SECOND QUARTER FY2023 FINANCIAL REPORT
	Administrative Report
	FY2023 2nd Qtr All Funds Detail

	L. SECOND QUARTER FY2023 INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
	Administrative Report
	FY2023 2nd Quarter Investment Reports

	M. SECOND QUARTER FY2023 CASH POSITION REPORT
	Administrative Report
	Cash Position 2nd Quarter FY2023

	N. SECOND QUARTER FY2023 BUDGET AMENDMENTS
	Administrative Report
	Budget Amendments Marshall Q2 2023
	Resolution 2023-06-FY23 Budget Amendments Quarter Two

	O. WARNER VINEYARDS JOINT OFF-PREMISE TASTING ROOM
	Administrative Report
	Warner's Vineyards MLCC applications

	P. WARNER VINEYARDS SOCIAL DISTRICT REQUEST
	Administrative Report
	Warner's Vineyards MLCC applications





